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1. CALL TO ORDER

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

4.1. Approval of Minutes of May 10, 2016 Meeting

5. DEPUTATIONS

6. MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED

6.1. Request to Alter a Heritage Designated Property, Crozier Farmhouse, 4265 Perivale
Road (Ward 6)

RECOMMENDATION 
That the request to alter the property at 4265 Perivale Road, as described in 
the report from the Commissioner of Community Services, dated May 19, 
2016, be approved. 

6.2. Request to Demolish a Heritage Listed Property: 891 Longfellow Avenue (Ward 2) 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the property at 891 Longfellow Avenue, which is listed on the City’s Heritage 
Register, is not worthy of heritage designation, and consequently, that the owner’s 
request to demolish proceed through the applicable process. 

6.3. Request to Demolish a Structure within a Heritage Listed Property: 3359 Mississauga 
Road (Ward 8) 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the North Building on the property at 3359 Mississauga Road, which is listed on 
the City’s Heritage Register, is not worthy of heritage designation, and consequently, 
that the owner’s request to demolish proceed through the applicable process.   

6.4. Request to Demolish Heritage Listed Properties, 6, 10 and 12 Queen Street South 
(Ward 11) 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the properties at 6, 10 and 12 Queen Street South, which are listed on the City’s 
Heritage Register, are not worthy of heritage designation, and consequently, that the 
owner’s request to demolish proceed through the applicable process. 
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6.5. Adaptive Re-Use of Designated Property: 271 Queen Street South Preliminary Proposal 
Memorandum from Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator, dated May 20, 2016 
for information. 

6.7. Heritage Impact Assessment for property adjacent to designated Property: 701 and 805 
Winston Churchill Boulevard  
Memorandum from Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator, dated May 20, 2016 
for information. 

7. SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES

7.1. Heritage Designation Subcommittee

7.2. Public Awareness Subcommittee

8. INFORMATION ITEMS

8.1. Facility Naming and Dedications Policy
Memorandum from Paula Wubbenhorst, Senior Heritage Coordinator, dated May 20,
2016 

8.2. Significant Tree Nomination - Miles Lane Tree 1 by Ursula Bennett, Mississauga Watch 
for information 

9. OTHER BUSINESS

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING – July 12, 2016, Council Chamber, Civic Centre

11. ADJOURNMENT
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Heritage Advisory Committee
Date 
2016/05/10 
Time 
9:30 AM 
Location 
Civic Centre, Council Chamber,  
300 City Centre Drive, Mississauga, Ontario, L5B 3C1  Ontario 

Members Present 
Councillor George Carlson, Ward 11 (Chair) 
Rick Mateljan, Citizen Member (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Carolyn Parrish, Ward 5 
Elizabeth Bjarnason, Citizen Member 
Robert Cutmore, Citizen Member 
Lindsay Graves, Citizen Member 
James Holmes, Citizen Member 
Cameron McCuaig, Citizen Member 
Matthew N. Wilkinson, Citizen Member 

Members Absent 
Michael Battaglia, Citizen Member 
David Dodaro, Citizen Member 
Paul McGuigan, Citizen Member 

Staff Present 
Mark Warrack, Manager, Culture and Heritage Planning 
Paula Wubbenhorst, Senior Heritage Coordinator, Culture Division 
Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator, Culture Division 
Mumtaz Alikhan, Legislative Coordinator 
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1. 
 

CALL TO ORDER – 9:31 a.m. 
 

2. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Councillor Carlson noted an addition to the agenda, Item 8.3 - Committee of Adjustment 
Applications  
 
APPROVED (J. Homes) 
 
 

3. 
 

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST - Nil 
 
 

4. 
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1. 
 

Approval of Minutes of April 12, 2016 Meeting 
APPROVED (R. Mateljan) 
 

5. 
 

DEPUTATIONS 
 

5.1. 
 

Inspiration Port Credit – 1 Port Street East – Update For Information by Ruth Marland, 
Strategic Leader, Strategic Community Initiatives, Planning and Building  
 
Ruth Marland, Strategic Leader, Strategic Community Initiatives, updated the Committee 
with respect to the 1 Port Street East Master Plan. 
 
The Committee commented as follows: 

 Built form should not compromise the view; 

 Concerns with the traffic impact given the proposed density; 

 Impact on parking as it is currently a problem now; 

 Proposed density ratio is excessive to the amount of land available; 

 Too much development is being proposed and consideration be given to housing 
the same number of people in fewer but taller buildings; 

 Skimpy on the greenspace. 
 
Ms. Marland responded that the reduced standard for parking is because it is in a 
mobility hub with the LRT being 800 metres from the site and the Lakeshore Road 
Transportation Master Plan will evaluate what is needed around transit to alleviate 
traffic.  She also stated that additional work will be done to ensure aspects of the Local 
Area Plan are retained. 
 
HAC-0019-2016 
That the Memorandum dated May 2, 2016 and the PowerPoint Presentation entitled 
“Inspiration Port Credit – 1 Port Street East – Update for Information” from Ruth 
Marland, Strategic Leader, Strategic Community Initiatives, to the Heritage Advisory 
Committee on May 10, 2016, be received for information. 
 
RECEIVED (R. Cutmore) 
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6. 
 

MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED 
 

6.1. 
 

2016 Designated Heritage Property Grants 
 
In response to Councillor Parrish’s question regarding an increase in the grant amounts, 
Andrew Douglas, Grants Officer, Culture Division, advised that the amount has not been 
increased in a while as the demand has not been there.  Councillor Parrish requested a 
report on the viability of increasing the amounts to keep pace with inflation.  
 
HAC-0020-2016 
That the Heritage Property Grant Program requests be approved as outlined in the 
report from the Commissioner of Community Services, dated April 15, 2016. 
 
That staff bring back a report with respect to increasing the grant amounts. 
 

6.2. 
 

Request to Demolish a Heritage Listed Property: 1293 Woodland Avenue (Ward 1) 
 
Corporate Report dated April 12, 2016 from the Commissioner of Community Services. 
 
HAC-0021-2016 
That the property at 1293 Woodland Avenue, which is listed on the City’s Heritage 
Register, is not worthy of heritage designation, and consequently, that the owner’s 
request to demolish proceed through the applicable process. 
 
APPROVED (R. Cutmore) 
 

6.3. 
 

Heritage Permit By-law Revision 
 
Corporate Report dated April 14, 2016 from the Commissioner of Community Services. 
 
HAC-0022-2016 

1. That a revised heritage permit by-law be adopted, as outlined in this Corporate 
Report from the Commissioner of Community Services (dated April 14, 2016), in 
order to simplify the heritage permit application process and to delegate authority 
to staff to accept applications and provide consent on certain alterations of 
properties according to the Ontario Heritage Act (the “Act”), as amended. 

 
2. That the existing heritage permit by-law 77-2014 be repealed.  

 
ADOPTED (R. Cutmore) 
 

7. 
 

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES 
 

7.1. 
 

Heritage Designation Sub-Committee Draft Terms of Reference and Priorities 
 
Mr. McCuaig spoke to the Terms of Reference for the Sub-committee proposed 
Priorities which were developed in 2015 with the objective that the Sub-Committee 
would support and provide guidance to staff with respect to potential designations prior 
to them coming before the Heritage Advisory Committee.  He also noted that members 
of the Sub-Committee are available to support staff with respect to advancing initiatives, 
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as well as provide access to the expertise available on the Panel to residents of 
Mississauga prior to decisions made by the Heritage Advisory Committee  
 
Councillor Carlson stated that the Sub-Committee’s input will be important in the 
heritage management process through the Thematic Heritage Outline of Mississauga 
(THOM) exercise outlined in the Museums and Heritage Planning Strategic Plan dated 
March 2016.  
 
HAC-0023-2016 
That the Heritage Designation Sub-Committee Draft Terms of Reference be approved 
as presented and that the Priorities for designations be received for information and 
referred to the Sub-Committee. 
 
APPROVED (R. Mateljan) 
 

7.2. 
 

Public Awareness Sub-Committee 
 
M. Wilkinson advised that the Sub-Committee is meeting with staff and will be providing 
a report to the Committee shortly. 
 
 

8. 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

8.1. 
 

New Construction on Listed Property: 46 Queen Street South  
 
In response to M. Wilkinson, Ms. Nin Hernandez advised that the wall is stepped to 
break it up and because the building is very close to the next property, the Owners have 
chosen not to articulate windows on the north side of the property.  
 
HAC-0024-2016 
That the Memorandum from Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator, dated April 
14, 2016 entitled “New Construction on Listed Property at 46 Queen Street South” be 
received for information. 
 
RECEIVED (Councillor C. Parrish) 
 
 

8.2. 
 

Wartime Housing  
 
Councillor Carlson noted that Kitchener’s St. Mary’s Heritage Conservation District 
(HCD) Plan is restrictive.   
 
Councillor Parrish thanked staff for the information and noted that it is her hope to at 
least cap heights and setbacks in Malton. 
 
Ms. Nin Hernandez spoke to the St. Mary’s HCD Plan and added that they also have 
landscape conservation guidelines for private and public areas as well as protection of 
street trees. 
 
R. Cutmore expressed concern that there is a huge number of wartime housing in 
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Lakeview which will start disappearing similar to that which Malton is experiencing.  
 
Councillor Parrish requested that Chris Rouse, Manager, Development North, and 
Jordan Lee, Planner, Development and Design Division, be invited to a future HAC 
meeting, to provide information, similar to one they provided for Victory Village in 
Malton, with respect to what can be done to save heritage properties in Mississauga.  
 
HAC-0025-2016 
That the Memorandum from Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator, dated April 
14, 2016 entitled “Wartime Housing” including a copy of Kitchener’s St. Mary’s Heritage 
Conservation District Plan, be received for information. 
 
RECEIVED (Councillor C. Parrish) 
 
 

8.3. Committee of Adjustment Applications within the Old Port Credit Village HCD, 42 Front 
Street South and 43 John Street South 
 
Peter Nolay, Owner of 42 Front Street, spoke to the Application in which he was seeking 
a portion of the back yard from 43 John Street owned by a family member to be 
transferred to him. 
 
Ms. Nin Hernandez reviewed the Committee of Adjustment Application.  She stated that 
the severance will result in the lot size of 43 John Street property becoming smaller 
under the Zoning By-law.  Ms. Nin Hernandez said that this matter was before this 
Committee for information. 
 
HAC-0026-2016 
That the Memorandum dated May 10, 2016 from Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage 
Coordinator entitled ”Committee of Adjustment Applications within the Old Port Credit 
Village HCD, 42 Front Street South and 43 John Street South” be received for 
information. 
 
RECEIVED (R. Mateljan) 
 
 

9. 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
There were no other items of business. 
 
 

10. 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING – June 14, 2016 
 
 

11. 
 

ADJOURNMENT – 10:48 am 
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Date: 2016/05/19 
 
To: Chair and Members of Heritage Advisory Committee 
 
From: Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of 

Community Services  

Originator’s files: 
 

Meeting date: 
2016/06/14 
 

 

 

Subject 
Request to Alter a Heritage Designated Property 

Crozier Farmhouse 

4265 Perivale Road 

(Ward 6) 

 

Recommendation 
That the request to alter the property at 4265 Perivale Road, as described in the report from the 

Commissioner of Community Services, dated May 19, 2016, be approved. 

Background 
The original (rear) portion of the farmhouse at the subject property was built c. 1845, the front in 

1905. (A location map is attached as Appendix 1.) Additional changes have been made since 

that time, including the installation of an attached brick two bay garage, which was enclosed in 

2015. The City designated the property under the Ontario Heritage Act (by-law 515-2001) in 

2001. 

The owner now proposes to add a detached two car garage with second storey storage space. 

A site plan and drawings are attached as Appendices 2 and 3 respectively. 

Comments 
Section 33.1 of the Ontario Heritage Act states that “No owner of property designated under 
section 29 shall alter the property or permit the alteration of the property if the alteration is likely 

to affect the property’s heritage attributes […] unless the owner applies to the Council of the 
municipality.” 

The property is designated for its “historical, architectural and contextual significance.” The 

designation by-law concludes: “The site is a reminder of the once rural setting of this property 

which has now been developed into a residential community. The house is retained on a large 

lot that provides distraction and a proper setting for the heritage structure.” 
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The proposed garage is simple and shorter in height than the 1.5 storey farmhouse. It is set 

back from Beacon Lane, the road on which the property, despite its Perivale Road address, now 

fronts. The proposed garage would not detract from the visibility of the farmhouse from the lane. 

The addition of this proposed secondary built form would not undermine the large lot setting. As 

such, Heritage Planning staff recommend that the new garage be approved. 

Financial Impact 
There is no financial impact. 

Conclusion 
The property owner wishes to add a detached two car garage. As this additional built form will 

not negatively impact the property, the proposal should be approved. 

 

Attachments 
Appendix 1: Location Map 

Appendix 2: Site Plan 

Appendix 3: Drawings 

 

 
 

Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of Community Services 

 

Prepared by:   P. Wubbenhorst, Senior Heritage Coordinator 
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Appendix 1: Location Map 

 

 

4265 Perivale Road 
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Appendix 26.1 - 4



Appendix 36.1 - 5
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Date: 2016/05/19 
 
To: Chair and Members of Heritage Advisory Committee 
 
From: Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of 

Community Services  

Originator’s files: 
 

Meeting date: 
2016/06/14 
 

 

 

Subject 
Request to Demolish a Heritage Listed Property: 891 Longfellow Avenue (Ward 2) 

 

Recommendation 
That the property at 891 Longfellow Avenue, which is listed on the City’s Heritage Register, is 
not worthy of heritage designation, and consequently, that the owner’s request to demolish 
proceed through the applicable process.

Background 
Section 27.3 of the Ontario Heritage Act states that structures or buildings on property listed on 

the City’s Heritage Register cannot be removed or demolished without at least 60 days’ notice 
to Council.  This legislation allows time for Council to review the property’s cultural heritage 
value to determine if the property merits designation. 

 
The owner of the subject property has submitted a heritage permit application to demolish and 

replace the existing detached dwelling.  The subject property is listed on the City’s Heritage 
Register as it forms part of the Lorne Park Estates cultural landscape.  This cultural landscape 

is noted for being a unique shoreline community established in the late 19th century with a 

balance of low density residential and protected mature forest of significant ecological interest 

within the City of Mississauga.    

The landscaping, urban design and conservation authority related issues will be reviewed as 

part of the Site Plan review process to ensure the project respects the character of the 

surrounding community.

Comments 
The owner of the subject property has requested permission to demolish the existing structure. 

The applicant has provided a Heritage Impact Statement compiled by Hicks Design Studio Inc.  

It is attached as Appendix 1.  The consultant has concluded that the house at 891 Longfellow 

Avenue is not worthy of designation.  Staff concurs with this finding.
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Financial Impact 
There is no financial impact.

Conclusion 
The owner of 891 Longfellow Avenue has requested permission to demolish a structure on a 

property that is listed on the City’s Heritage Register. The applicant has submitted a 
documentation report which provides information which does not support the building’s merit for 
designation under the Ontario Heritage Act.

Attachments 
Appendix: Heritage Impact Statement 

 

 
 

 

Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of Community Services 

 

Prepared by:   Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator 
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HERITAGE IMPACT STATEMENT 

 
LYCHACZ RESIDENCE 

891 LONGFELLOW AVENUE 
 

HICKS DESIGN STUDIO INC. 
March 21, 2016 

AMENDED APRIL 13, 2016 
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SECTION 1  INTRODUCTION 

LORNE PARK ESTATES NEIGHBOURHOOD / CULTURAL LANDSCAPE  

LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates ǁas deǀeloped oƌigiŶallǇ as a suŵŵeƌ ƌesoƌt iŶ the late ϭϴϴϬ’s. It has eǆisted eǀeƌ 
siŶĐe as a pƌiǀatelǇ held ĐoŶdoŵiŶiuŵ ĐoƌpoƌatioŶ iŶ esseŶĐe ǁith its oǁŶ Boaƌd of DiƌeĐtoƌs. The 
ƌoads aŶd ƌaǀiŶes aƌe oǁŶed pƌiǀatelǇ aŶd the LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates aƌea has ďeeŶ self-ƌegulated foƌ 
the past ϭϯϬ Ǉeaƌs.  

It is a uŶiƋue aƌea ǁith a ǁide ǀaƌietǇ of housiŶg tǇpes. Theƌe aƌe ǀeƌǇ feǁ oƌigiŶal Đottages that 
ƌeŵaiŶ iŶ the Estates.  Theƌe aƌe soŵe that haǀe ďeeŶ ƌeŶoǀated so ŵaŶǇ tiŵes that the oƌigiŶal 
house has ǀiƌtuallǇ disappeaƌed.  

The oƌigiŶal Estates ǁas desigŶed as a seƌies of shiŶgle stǇle Đottages ǁith soŵe aƌts aŶd Đƌaft 
Đottages that ǁeƌe eǆistiŶg as ǁell at oŶe poiŶt iŶ tiŵe.  These haǀe foƌ the ŵost paƌt ďeeŶ 
deŵolished. 
 
The stƌeets aŶd ƌaǀiŶes aƌe heaǀilǇ tƌeed aŶd the aƌea is iŶ faĐt, desigŶated iŶ the PƌoǀiŶĐe as a 
CaƌoliŶiaŶ foƌest eǆaŵple. The AssoĐiatioŶ ŵaiŶtaiŶs the foƌests aŶd pƌaĐtiĐes Ŷeǁ plaŶtiŶg aŶd 
pƌeseƌǀatioŶ ǁithiŶ the aƌea.  

What has eǀolǀed todaǇ is a ǁoŶdeƌful Ŷeighďouƌhood ǁith a ǀaƌietǇ of ƋualitǇ housiŶg stoĐk aŶd a 
ƌiĐh stiŵulatiŶg laŶdsĐape that ďleŶds the houses ǁith theiƌ Ŷatuƌal aŶd ŵaŶiĐuƌed suƌƌouŶdiŶgs.  

A gƌadual iŶfilliŶg has Ŷot iŶĐƌeased the deŶsitǇ oǀeƌ the Ǉeaƌs as theƌe haǀe ďeeŶ ǀeƌǇ feǁ 
oppoƌtuŶities foƌ laŶd diǀisioŶ, aŶd the ƌaǀiŶes ƌeŵaiŶ pƌoteĐted fƌoŵ deǀelopŵeŶt ďǇ the paƌk itself. 
Gƌeat Đaƌe has ďeeŶ takeŶ to eŶsuƌe that ƌedeǀelopŵeŶt iŶ the aƌea does Ŷot ƌuiŶ the ǀeƌǇ ƋualitǇ 
aŶd ĐhaƌaĐteƌ that ŵakes this Ŷeighďouƌhood so appealiŶg aŶd attƌaĐtiǀe. Of the ŵaŶǇ 
Ŷeighďouƌhoods iŶ Mississauga, the LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates Ŷeighďouƌhood staŶds out as oŶe of the ŵost 
ǀisuallǇ iŶteƌestiŶg aŶd ŵeŵoƌaďle.  

As is ofteŶ the Đase, ǁheŶ Ŷeǁ deǀelopŵeŶt is ďalaŶĐed ǁith the pƌoteĐtioŶ of the Ŷatuƌal 
eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt, a tƌulǇ liǀaďle aŶd sustaiŶaďle ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ eǀolǀes.  

LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates ǁas iŶitiallǇ a LoƌŶe Paƌk pleasuƌe ƌesoƌt ǁheŶ it ǁas fiƌst deǀeloped iŶ ϭϴϳϵ.  IŶ 
ϭϴϴϲ. It ǁas deǀeloped as The ToƌoŶto aŶd LoƌŶe Paƌk “uŵŵeƌ Resoƌt CoŵpaŶǇ aŶd it ďeĐaŵe aŶ 
aƌea used as a Đottage ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ foƌ ŵaŶǇ Ǉeaƌs. “iŶĐe that peƌiod of tiŵe, the aƌea has sloǁlǇ 
deǀeloped ǁith a seƌies of Ŷeǁ hoŵes ƌeplaĐiŶg old Đottages. A hotel ;Hotel LouiseͿ oƌigiŶallǇ opeŶed 
iŶ the ƌesoƌt iŶ ϭϴϴϵ.   It ǁas lateƌ iŶ a fiƌe aŶd ďuƌŶt aŶd ǁas deŵolished iŶ ϭϵϮϬ. Paƌts of that hotel 
ǁeƌe saǀed aŶd aƌe fouŶd iŶ ŵaŶǇ of the oldeƌ houses iŶ the Paƌk iŶĐludiŶg the Authoƌ’s oƌigiŶal 
house oŶ BuƌŶs AǀeŶue.  IŶ faĐt, the oƌigiŶal fƌoŶt dooƌ of the Hotel ǁas fouŶd iŶ the Authoƌ’s 
ďaseŵeŶt oŶ BuƌŶs AǀeŶue. 
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EdŵuŶd Buƌke ǁas oŶe of the oƌigiŶal oǁŶeƌs of the LoƌŶe Paƌk “uŵŵeƌ Resoƌt CoŵpaŶǇ. He ǁas a 
ǁell kŶoǁŶ ToƌoŶto AƌĐhiteĐt aŶd he desigŶed ŵaŶǇ of the Đottages that ǁeƌe ďuilt iŶ the late ϭϴϬϬ’s.  
 
MaŶǇ of the oƌigiŶal Đottages haǀe ďeeŶ deŵolished aŶd the last tƌulǇ oƌigiŶal Buƌke Cottage loĐated 
aĐƌoss the stƌeet fƌoŵ the Authoƌ ďuƌŶt doǁŶ iŶ ϭϵϵϵ.  
 
LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates is aďuŶdaŶt ǁith ĐouŶtless speĐies of ďiƌds, ĐoǇotes, deeƌ, ƌaĐĐooŶs, a ďush ǁolf 
aŶd ŵaŶǇ foǆes ǁhiĐh ŵakes it a haǀeŶ foƌ ǁildlife. 
 
HISTORICAL ASSOCIATIONS  
 
The folloǁiŶg is a ďƌief histoƌǇ of the LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates aƌea. The aƌea ǁas iŶitiated as a ϳϱ aĐƌe 
paƌĐel of laŶd oŶ the shoƌes of Lake OŶtaƌio.  The lots ǁeƌe seǀeƌed iŶto a seƌies of lots that ǁeƌe 
tǇpiĐallǇ ϱϬ’ ǆ ϭϬϬ feet iŶ depth eǆĐept aloŶg the ŵaŶǇ ƌaǀiŶes that Đƌoss thƌough the site. 
 
IŶ ϭϴϬϱ ǁheŶ the settleŵeŶt of ϴϬ,ϬϬϬ aĐƌes of laŶd ǁas ŵade fƌoŵ the Mississaugas to the 
CƌoǁŶ, the fiƌst offiĐial suƌǀeǇ of Lots ϮϮ aŶd Ϯϯ, CoŶĐessioŶ ϯ-“.D.“. ǁas Đƌeated ďǇ “aŵuel 
Wilŵot iŶ ϭϴϬϲ.  The fiƌst appliĐaŶt foƌ the CƌoǁŶ GƌaŶt ǁas Moses PolleǇ, ďut his appliĐatioŶ 
ǁas ƌejeĐted iŶ ϭϵϮϵ, ďeĐause it ǁas ďelieǀed that he ǁas ĐoŶǀiĐted of assault iŶ ϭϴϮϮ.  The Ŷeǆt 
appliĐaŶt ǁas OffiĐeƌ LieuteŶaŶt Aƌthuƌ JoŶes, he Đaŵe to CaŶada iŶ ϭϴϮϰ, ŵaƌƌied aŶd left the 
aƌŵǇ iŶ ϭϴϯϬ aŶd this ǁas ǁheŶ he applied foƌ the laŶd gƌaŶt.   
 
Aƌthuƌ JoŶes had alƌeadǇ oǁŶed pƌopeƌtǇ lots Ϯϰ aŶd Ϯϯ CoŶĐessioŶ ϯ aŶd ƌeƋuested to the 
ToƌoŶto House gƌaŶt foƌ Lots ϮϮ aŶd Ϯϭ so he Đould joiŶ his lots togetheƌ aŶd haǀe eŶough spaĐe 
to ďuild faƌŵ laŶd.  Aƌthuƌ JoŶes sold the laŶd ϭϭ ŵoŶths lateƌ to FƌedeƌiĐk Chase Capƌeol.   
 
FƌedeƌiĐk had foƌŵed the Peel GeŶeƌal MaŶufaĐtuƌiŶg CoŵpaŶǇ ǁhiĐh ǁould take oǀeƌ the 
Cƌedit Riǀeƌ aŶd ǁould ďuild ŵaŶufaĐtuƌiŶg plaŶts.  FƌedƌiĐk Chase Capƌeol’s idea of the Peel 
GeŶeƌal MaŶufaĐtuƌiŶg CoŵpaŶǇ ǁas Ŷot suĐĐessful aŶd if it had ďeeŶ, LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates 
ǁouldŶ’t ďe ǁhat it is todaǇ, LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates ǁould haǀe ďeeŶ ŵoƌe iŶdustƌial. 
 
BetǁeeŶ ϭϴϯϵ aŶd ϭϴϳϴ ďefoƌe Coluŵďus H. GƌeeŶe puƌĐhased paƌts of Lot ϮϮ aŶd Ϯϯ the laŶd 
of ϳϱ aĐƌes ǁas ďought aŶd sold aďout ϭϬ tiŵes aŶd the Đost of the laŶd ǁould ƌaŶge fƌoŵ $ϳϱ 
to $ϰ,ϬϬϬ.  IŶ ϭϴϳϴ, Coluŵďus H. GƌeeŶe theŶ sold the ϳϱ aĐƌes to NeaǀeŶ MĐCoŶŶell aloŶg ǁith 
eight otheƌ ŵeŶ.  These ŶiŶe ŵeŶ applied to Đƌeate a ĐoŵpaŶǇ uŶdeƌ the OŶtaƌio “toĐk 
CoŵpaŶies letteƌs PateŶt AĐt.  TheǇ Ŷaŵed theiƌ ĐoŵpaŶǇ ͞The ToƌoŶto Paƌk AssoĐiatioŶ͟.  
WithiŶ a peƌiod of siǆ ŵoŶths, theǇ ǁeƌe aďle to Đleaƌ the laŶd aŶd ďegaŶ to ďuild gazeďos, a 
ǁhaƌf, a piĐŶiĐ paǀilioŶ, aŶ oǀeƌall paƌk foƌ ďusiŶess aŶd pleasuƌe.  The Paƌk opeŶed MaǇ Ϯϰ, 
ϭϴϳϵ.   
 
“oŵetiŵe ďetǁeeŶ ϭϴϴϬ aŶd ϭϴϴϲ, NeaǀeŶ MĐCoŶŶell aŶd his paƌtŶeƌs ďeĐaŵe fiŶaŶĐiallǇ 
uŶaďle to paǇ theiƌ dues.  TheǇ oǁed ŵoŶeǇ to tƌadesŵeŶ aŶd ĐoŶtƌaĐtoƌs aŶd still had aŶ 
outstaŶdiŶg ďalaŶĐe to paǇ the laŶd to Coluŵďus H. GƌeeŶe.  Lateƌ MĐCoŶŶell ǁas aďle to keep 
oǁŶeƌship of the laŶd foƌ aŶ eǆtƌa fiǀe Ǉeaƌs.   
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IŶ the “uŵŵeƌ of ϭϴϴϲ, MĐCoŶŶell paƌtŶeƌs gaǀe up theiƌ Đlaiŵs oŶ the pƌopeƌtǇ ďut MĐCoŶŶell ǁas aďle 
to sell the Paƌk to Ŷeǁ oǁŶeƌs foƌ $ϳ,ϬϬϬ that saŵe suŵŵeƌ.  
 
NeǀeŶ MĐCoŶŶell sold the laŶd to JohŶ W. “toĐkǁell aŶd DiƌeĐtoƌs Ŷaŵed “toĐkǁell, VeŶŶ, 
HeŶdeƌsoŶ, MĐIŶtǇƌe, Neǀille, Boustead, Eaƌls, HillŵaŶ aŶd Heǁlett, theǇ foƌŵed a ĐoŵpaŶǇ 
togetheƌ Đalled ͞The ToƌoŶto aŶd LoƌŶe Paƌk “uŵŵeƌ Resoƌt CoŵpaŶǇ͟.  Afteƌ the pƌopeƌtǇ ǁas 
ƌegisteƌed uŶdeƌ the Ŷeǁ ĐoŵpaŶǇ Ŷaŵe, plaŶs ǁeƌe ŵade to suďdiǀide the ďuildiŶg lots that 
ǁeƌe to ďe sold.  OŶĐe the laŶd ǁas suƌǀeǇed, Ŷeǁ ƌoads had to ďe Ŷaŵed.  Thus the DiƌeĐtoƌs 
Ŷaŵed the ƌoads that ƌuŶ Noƌth aŶd “outh afteƌ faŵous poets suĐh as LoŶgfelloǁ aŶd “aŶgsteƌ 
aŶd the ƌoads that ƌaŶ East aŶd West, ǁeƌe Ŷaŵed afteƌ the DiƌeĐtoƌs theŵselǀes suĐh as, 
“toĐkǁell aŶd HeŶdeƌsoŶ. 
 
IŶ ϭϴϵϭ foƌ ƌeasoŶs that ƌeŵaiŶ uŶkŶoǁŶ, ͞The ToƌoŶto aŶd LoƌŶe Paƌk “uŵŵeƌ Resoƌt Co.͟ 
tƌaŶsfeƌƌed the pƌopeƌtǇ to FƌedeƌiĐk Ropeƌ ǁho ǁas the PƌesideŶt foƌ the CoŵpaŶǇ at that tiŵe.  
FƌedeƌiĐk Ropeƌ iŶ the saŵe Ǉeaƌ tƌaŶsfeƌƌed the ĐoŵpaŶǇ Ŷaŵe to The LoƌŶe Paƌk CoŵpaŶǇ 
Liŵited aŶd it ǁas at this saŵe tiŵe that he Ŷaŵed a ƌoad afteƌ hiŵself ǁhiĐh is ͞Ropeƌ AǀeŶue͟ 
ǁhiĐh iŶteƌseĐts ǁith “aŶgsteƌ AǀeŶue.   
 
OŶĐe FƌedeƌiĐk Ropeƌ gƌaŶted the tƌaŶsfeƌ, ŵaŶǇ lots ǁeƌe ďeiŶg sold ďetǁeeŶ ϭϴϴϲ aŶd ϭϴϵϭ.  
Theƌe ǁeƌe Ϯϳ Đottages; ŵost ǁeƌe ďuilt Ŷeǁ fƌoŵ the gƌouŶd up oƌ ǁeƌe ǁell ƌeŶoǀated.   
 
EdŵuŶd Buƌke a ǁell kŶoǁŶ ToƌoŶto AƌĐhiteĐt ǁho ǁas the desigŶeƌ foƌ the Roďeƌt “iŵpsoŶ 
CoŵpaŶǇ ďuildiŶg oŶ QueeŶ “t., also desigŶed ŵost of the Đottages iŶ LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates.  
 
A feǁ of the Đottages that EdŵuŶd Buƌke desigŶed iŶ LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates aƌe: the BueŶaǀista, the 
Ropeƌ ƌesideŶĐe, LiŶstoĐk Villa, Boustead ƌesideŶĐe, AƌgǇle, the Caŵpďell ƌesideŶĐe. MǇƌtle, the 
“toĐkǁell ƌesideŶĐe, PioŶeeƌ Villa, the RiĐheǇ ƌesideŶĐe, The Massaǁippƌ, the HeŶdeƌsoŶ 
ƌesideŶĐe aŶd the BeƌǁǇŶ Cottage.  IŶ ϭϴϴϵ EdŵuŶd Buƌke also desigŶed, ͞The Hotel Louise͟. 
 
“oŵetiŵe ďetǁeeŶ ϭϵϬϱ aŶd ϭϵϭϬ the Paƌk Ŷo loŶgeƌ ǁas opeŶ to the puďliĐ aŶd this is ǁheŶ 
LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates ďeĐaŵe a pƌiǀate suŵŵeƌ ƌesoƌt.   LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates is still a pƌiǀate 
Ŷeighďouƌhood todaǇ.  
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SECTION 2   THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
EXISTING CONSTRUCTION  

The house ďased oŶ ƌeĐoƌds ƌeǀieǁed aŶd disĐussioŶs ǁith Matheǁ WilkiŶsoŶ fƌoŵ Heƌitage 
Mississauga the oƌigiŶal Đottage stƌuĐtuƌe ǁhiĐh is fouŶd at the fƌoŶt poƌtioŶ of the ďuildiŶg ǁas 
ĐoŶstƌuĐted iŶ oƌ aďout ϭϵϮϳ ďǇ the RaǇ faŵilǇ. Theƌe is ǀeƌǇ little iŶfoƌŵatioŶ oŶ the RaǇ faŵilǇ 
otheƌ thaŶ he sat oŶ the Boaƌd of DiƌeĐtoƌs foƌ the LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates AssoĐiatioŶ. 

OŶ oƌ aďout ϭϵϱϵ, the house ǁas puƌĐhased ďǇ JaĐk aŶd FloƌeŶĐe GuŶdill ǁho the Authoƌ of this 
ƌepoƌt kŶeǁ ǀeƌǇ ǁell foƌ ŵaŶǇ Ǉeaƌs. It ƌeŵaiŶed iŶ theiƌ haŶds uŶtil it ǁas fiŶallǇ sold iŶ ϮϬϭϮ   
 
JaĐk GuŶdill ǁas a ĐaƌpeŶteƌ/ĐeŵeŶt laǇeƌ ďǇ tƌade; FloƌeŶĐe, his ǁife, Đaŵe fƌoŵ EŶglaŶd aŶd the 
Đouple had Ŷo ĐhildƌeŶ; FloƌeŶĐe ǁas a teaĐheƌ at ŶeaƌďǇ OǁeŶǁood PuďliĐ “Đhool ͞foƌ ages͟; Both 
JaĐk aŶd FloƌeŶĐe haǀe passed aǁaǇ; Theiƌ house at ϴϵϭ LoŶgfelloǁ ǁas a gatheƌiŶg plaĐe foƌ the 
ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ – theǇ hosted ͞Tƌilliuŵ Tea͟ soĐials iŶ theiƌ ďaĐkǇaƌd oŶ the ƌaǀiŶe – Đaƌpeted ďǇ ǀast 
Tƌilliuŵ ďeds – theƌe is a stƌoŶg seŶse that these should ďe pƌoteĐted aŶd pƌeseƌǀed; eǀeƌǇoŶe iŶ the 
Paƌk kŶeǁ FloƌeŶĐe, aŶd she kŶeǁ eǀeƌǇoŶe – she ǁas the Paƌk’s ͞stoƌǇtelleƌ͟ aŶd alǁaǇs ŵade suƌe 
the histoƌǇ faĐts ǁeƌe ͞ƌight͟; the loĐals Đalled the GuŶdill house ͞the house that JaĐk ďuilt͟ – ďut 
JaĐk added oŶ to aŶd ƌeŶoǀated aŶ eaƌlieƌ ϭϵϮϬs house that ďeloŶged to the RaǇ faŵilǇ. Theƌe is ǀeƌǇ 
little iŶfoƌŵatioŶ oŶ the RaǇ faŵilǇ, oŶlǇ that FƌaŶkliŶ RaǇ ǁas iŶǀolǀed ǁith the Boaƌd foƌ the Paƌk.  
It ǁas sold iŶ ϭϵϱϵ as fouŶd iŶ the laŶd ƌegistƌǇ ƌeĐoƌds.  Theƌe ǁas aŶ additioŶ ďuilt iŶ ϭϵϲϰ ǁhiĐh 
eǆpaŶded the house ďeǇoŶd the oƌigiŶal Đottage stƌuĐtuƌe to the east. 
 
Like ŵaŶǇ of the oldeƌ houses ďuilt afteƌ the fiƌe iŶ the Hotel, ŵuĐh of the ǁood paŶelliŶg ǁas 
ƌepuƌposed iŶ ŵaŶǇ diffeƌeŶt houses iŶĐludiŶg the Authoƌ of this ƌepoƌt.  The eǆistiŶg house has soŵe 
of this saŵe paŶelliŶg iŶ it. UŶfoƌtuŶatelǇ, this paŶelliŶg iŶ the house, has ďeeŶ seƌiouslǇ daŵaged 
ďǇ ŵold iŶfestatioŶ as the house has ƌeŵaiŶed eŵptǇ foƌ ŵaŶǇ Ǉeaƌs aŶd has falleŶ iŶto disƌepaiƌ.  
 
IŶ the past, the Authoƌ offeƌed to ƌeŵoǀe the paŶelliŶg iŶ this house ďefoƌe it ǁas deŵolished ďut 
theƌe ǁas Ŷo desiƌe to ƌetaiŶ it ďǇ the Paƌk, Ŷoƌ aŶǇ plaĐe to use it. 
 
The house ǁe ďelieǀe ǁas ďuilt ďǇ Mƌ. RaǇ aŶd its ĐhaƌaĐteƌ ĐloselǇ ƌeseŵďles a siŵple ĐƌaftsŵeŶ’s 
iŶspiƌed ďuŶgaloǁ.  It is ǀeƌǇ siŵple iŶ ĐhaƌaĐteƌ aŶd does Ŷot possess ŵaŶǇ of the ĐhaƌaĐteƌistiĐs 
usuallǇ Ŷoted iŶ ĐƌaftsŵeŶ’s stǇle hoŵes. 
 
Theƌe ǁas a fƌoŶt poƌĐh oŶ the south side aŶd this ǁas iŶfilled at soŵe poiŶt iŶ tiŵe ďǇ the GuŶdill’s 
aŶd thus the house lost ŵuĐh of its Đhaƌŵ ǁheŶ this poƌĐh ǁas ƌeŵoǀed. 
 
The additioŶs oŶ the ďaĐk of the hoŵe ǁeƌe ďuilt ďǇ JaĐk hiŵself aŶd ǁeƌe doŶe iŶ appƌoǆiŵatelǇ 
ϭϵϲϮ. 
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Theƌe is a fƌeestaŶdiŶg gaƌage ǁhiĐh ǁas ďuilt iŶ appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϭϵϯϬ aŶd it is stƌuĐtuƌallǇ failiŶg at 
this tiŵe due to its loĐatioŶ oŶ the edge of the slope.  IŶ faĐt, theƌe is Ŷo fouŶdatioŶ oŶ it. Theƌe is 
also a sŵall gaƌdeŶ shed that appeaƌs to haǀe ďeeŶ ďuilt post ϭϵϯϬ, ďut Ŷo ƌeĐoƌds eǆist oŶ the aĐtual 
ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ date as it ǁas ŵost likelǇ ďuilt ǁithout peƌŵits ďǇ the oƌigiŶal oǁŶeƌ. 
 
The oƌigiŶal fƌoŶt paƌt of the house is ĐoŶstƌuĐted of ǁood fƌaŵe ǁith sidiŶg. Theƌe is Ŷo ďaseŵeŶt 
uŶdeƌ this poƌtioŶ of the house ďut theƌe is a sŵall Đƌaǁl spaĐe ǁhiĐh is Ŷot aĐĐessiďle it appeaƌs. The 
fouŶdatioŶ ǁas ďuilt of ĐoŶĐƌete as ǁeƌe ŵaŶǇ of the houses that used to eǆist iŶ the Paƌk. 

The additioŶs to the house aƌe ĐoŶstƌuĐted oŶ a ĐoŶĐƌete ďloĐk fouŶdatioŶ ǁith a ŵiǆ of ǁood fƌaŵe 
eǆteƌioƌ, ǁalls Đlad ǁith ǁood sidiŶg ǁhiĐh ǁas tǇpiĐal foƌ this peƌiod of ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ.   

The AƌĐhiteĐt of the house ǁas Ŷot ideŶtified aŶd the dƌaǁiŶgs ǁould haǀe ďeeŶ siŵplǇ doŶe ďǇ a 
dƌaftsŵaŶ to ĐoŶstƌuĐt a siŵple Đottage oŶ the pƌopeƌtǇ. The oǁŶeƌs ŵaǇ haǀe ƌefeƌƌed to soŵe 
staŶdaƌd plaŶ ďooks that ŵight haǀe eǆisted ďut that faĐt is Ŷot kŶoǁŶ. The Đottage is a ǀeƌǇ siŵple 
stǇle Ƌuite tǇpiĐal of Đottages ďuilt fƌoŵ the eaƌlǇ ϭϵϬϬ’s to ϭϵϯϬ. 
 
WiŶdoǁs aƌe geŶeƌallǇ ǁood fƌaŵe thƌoughout aŶd aƌe iŶ pooƌ ĐoŶditioŶ 

The ƌoof is fiŶished ǁith asphalt shiŶgles ǁhiĐh aƌe iŶ ǀeƌǇ pooƌ ĐoŶditioŶ as the house has ďeeŶ 
eŵptǇ foƌ ϱ Ǉeaƌs aŶd has falleŶ iŶto a total state of disƌepaiƌ. 

Theƌe aƌe Ŷo ŵeaŶiŶgful aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal eleŵeŶts ǁithiŶ the eǆistiŶg house that aƌe ǁoƌthǇ of 
pƌeseƌǀatioŶ. Baseďoaƌds aƌe ŵiŶiŵal as aƌe ǁiŶdoǁ ĐasiŶgs aŶd tƌiŵ detailiŶg iŶ geŶeƌal. WheŶ the 
ĐuƌƌeŶt oǁŶeƌs puƌĐhased the house suďstaŶtial deŵolitioŶ had oĐĐuƌƌed ǁithiŶ the house foƌ 
salǀage puƌposes ďǇ the pƌeǀious oǁŶeƌs.  The house is full of ŵould aŶd asďestos aŶd is iŶ ǀeƌǇ pooƌ 
ĐoŶditioŶ. 

Theƌe aƌe soŵe aƌeas of the fƌoŶt Đottage poƌtioŶ of the house that aƌe fiŶished ǁith ǁhat appeaƌs 
to ďe soŵe of the oƌigiŶal paŶelliŶg fƌoŵ the Hotel Louise.  This ǁas ĐoŵŵoŶ iŶ a Ŷuŵďeƌ of houses 
ǁithiŶ the Paƌk afteƌ the fiƌe at the Hotel ǁheŶ ŵuĐh of the ǁood ǁas salǀaged.  The Authoƌ had a 
pƌeǀious house iŶ the Paƌk ǁheƌe this sidiŶg ǁas also loĐated aŶd its ƌeŵoǀal ǁas ǀiƌtuallǇ iŵpossiďle 
due to hoǁ dƌǇ the ǁood ǁas. That ďeiŶg said, theƌe is Ŷo use foƌ these ŵateƌials aŶd the AssoĐiatioŶ 
ǁithiŶ LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates, is Ŷot iŶteƌested iŶ pƌeseƌǀiŶg this. 
 
The otheƌ iŶteƌioƌ fiŶishes aƌe dƌǇǁall, ǁood flooƌiŶg iŶ soŵe aƌeas, ǀiŶǇl flooƌiŶg iŶ otheƌs.  

Theƌe aƌe Ŷo details of aŶǇ paƌtiĐulaƌ ĐhaƌaĐteƌ oƌ iŶteƌest ǁithiŶ the house aŶd it appeaƌs it has 
ƌeŵaiŶed as ďuilt foƌ at least ϲϬ Ǉeaƌs ǁith oŶgoiŶg ŵaiŶteŶaŶĐe aŶd upgƌades as ƌeƋuiƌed oǀeƌ the 
Ǉeaƌs.  

“ee AppeŶdiǆ A – “ite CoŶteǆt Map foƌ the lot loĐatioŶ.   
“ee AppeŶdiǆ B - CuƌƌeŶt lot suƌǀeǇ  
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EXISTING FLOOR PLANS  (Appendix C) 
 
“ee attaĐhed flooƌ plaŶs ǁhiĐh ƌepƌeseŶt the ĐuƌƌeŶt state of the house upoŶ aĐƋuisitioŶ ďǇ AŶŶa 
WiŶsoƌ the pƌeǀious oǁŶeƌ pƌioƌ to its ƌeĐeŶt sale.  
 
 See Appendix C attached herewith for copies of these floor plans including Photo numbers 
 referenced in Appendix E – Existing Interior Photos 
 
The hoŵe is ďuilt oŶ oŶe flooƌ ǁith a full ďaseŵeŶt. The aƌea of the eǆistiŶg fiŶished house is 
appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϭ,ϱϮϵ sƋ. ft.  
 
 
EXTERIOR PHOTOS  (Appendix D) 
 
The eǆteƌioƌ photos ǁeƌe takeŶ oŶ MaƌĐh Ϯϭ, ϮϬϭϲ aŶd theǇ depiĐt the ĐuƌƌeŶt state of the eǆistiŶg 
house.  It has ƌeŵaiŶed ǀaĐaŶt foƌ soŵe ϱ Ǉeaƌs Ŷoǁ aŶd it is iŶ a total state of disƌepaiƌ. 
  
 See Photos in the attached Appendix D.  
 
 
INTERIOR PHOTOS  (Appendix E) 
 
Theƌe aƌe Ŷo ƌeŵaƌkaďle ĐhaƌaĐteƌistiĐs of the hoŵe iŶteƌioƌ aŶd ĐeƌtaiŶlǇ ŶothiŶg ǁoƌthǇ of 
pƌeseƌǀatioŶ foƌ aŶǇ ƌeasoŶ. The house is full of ŵold aŶd asďestos aŶd ŵust ďe deŵolished 
 
 Refer to Appendix E - Photos of the interior 
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SECTION 3 CULTURAL LANDSCAPE AND FEATURE CRITERIA 
 
The LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates aƌea has ďeeŶ desigŶated ǁithiŶ the ĐitǇ as aŶ aƌea haǀiŶg iŶteƌest ƌelated to 
the laŶdsĐape eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt, aŶd sigŶifiĐaŶt eĐologiĐal iŶteƌest as ǁell aŶ aƌea ǁith soŵe degƌee of 
iŵpoƌtaŶĐe plaĐed oŶ the Built EŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt. 
 
The site speĐifiĐallǇ falls ǁithiŶ the juƌisdiĐtioŶ of the Cƌedit ǀalleǇ CoŶseƌǀatioŶ AuthoƌitǇ aŶd 
the Peel Coƌe GƌeeŶlaŶds aƌea.  As suĐh.  The site plaŶ aŶd aƌďoƌists ƌepoƌts haǀe ďeeŶ ĐiƌĐulated 
to these ageŶĐies. The Cƌedit ValleǇ CoŶseƌǀatioŶ AuthoƌitǇ has appƌoǀed iŶ pƌiŶĐiple, the 
pƌoposed site plaŶ aŶd its setďaĐks aŶd tƌee pƌeseƌǀatioŶ ŵeasuƌes. 
 
The Ŷeighďouƌhood of LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates ;Refer to Appendix G-Neighbourhood Existing Houses); is 
kŶoǁŶ foƌ a Ŷuŵďeƌ of uŶiƋue attƌiďutes iŶĐludiŶg iŶ suŵŵaƌǇ the folloǁiŶg:  
 
Landscape Environment 
 
The aƌea is doŵiŶated ǁith ŵatuƌe laŶdsĐapiŶg aŶd laƌge tƌees that Đƌeate a ĐaŶopǇ oǀeƌ the ƌoad iŶ 
ŵaŶǇ aƌeas thus addiŶg to the uŶiƋue Đhaƌŵ of the aƌea. A Ŷuŵďeƌ of the pƌopeƌties haǀe ďouŶdaƌǇ 
laŶdsĐapiŶg plaŶted ŵaŶǇ Ǉeaƌs ago that help to defiŶe the Ŷeighďouƌhood pƌopeƌties aŶd thus add 
to the Ŷatuƌal eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt aŶd ĐhaƌaĐteƌ.  
 
The aƌea ĐoŶsists of oǀeƌ ϰϱ aĐƌes of Ŷatuƌalized deǀelopŵeŶt ǁith ƌaǀiŶes aŶd ŵiŶoƌ ǁateƌ Đouƌses 
ĐƌossiŶg the aƌea iŶ a Ŷuŵďeƌ of loĐatioŶs. The loĐatioŶ oŶ Lake OŶtaƌio aŶd the Ŷatuƌal ďeaĐhes that 
eǆist add a uŶiƋue aŶd ǀisual ƋualitǇ to the Ŷeighďouƌhood.  
 
This paƌtiĐulaƌ lot is heaǀilǇ tƌeed aŶd has ƌetaiŶed its ĐhaƌaĐteƌ foƌ ŵaŶǇ Ǉeaƌs thus ŵakiŶg it aŶ 
iŵpoƌtaŶt paƌt of the sĐeŶiĐ eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt ǁithiŶ LoƌŶe Paƌk estates. 
 
Built Environment 
 
The aƌea has a ǁide ǀaƌietǇ of housiŶg tǇpes ƌaŶgiŶg fƌoŵ HistoƌiĐ hoŵes to ďuŶgaloǁs’, to laƌge 
sĐale hoŵes of eǀeƌǇ size. OŶe of the thiŶgs that ŵake it uŶiƋue is that this ǁide ǀaƌietǇ of housiŶg 
tǇpes aŶd ĐoŶfiguƌatioŶs eǆist, thus addiŶg to the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ aŶd diǀeƌsitǇ. All the hoŵes Đoeǆist 
aesthetiĐallǇ iŶ the Ŷeighďouƌhood iŶ laƌge paƌt ďeĐause of the ƌetaiŶed laŶdsĐapiŶg ǀeƌsus the aĐtual 
stǇle of the house.  
 
The aƌea does Ŷot ĐoŶsist of eŶgiŶeeƌed stƌeets ǁith Đuƌďs aŶd gutteƌs, ďut iŶstead it is ŵade up out 
of siŵple paǀed ƌoads ǁith ditĐhes aŶd a laƌge Ŷuŵďeƌ of ŵatuƌe tƌees ǁithiŶ the ƌoad ƌight of ǁaǇ 
uŶlike Ŷeǁeƌ suď-diǀisioŶs deǀeloped elseǁheƌe ǁithiŶ the CitǇ of Mississauga. Theƌe is a ƋuaiŶt 
Đhaƌŵ to the stƌeets.  
 
Theƌe aƌe Ŷo seǁeƌs aŶd all pƌopeƌties aƌe oŶ pƌiǀate septiĐ sǇsteŵs.  
 
Theƌe aƌe Ŷo stoƌŵ seǁeƌs aŶd all dƌaiŶage is ǀia suƌfaĐe ƌuŶ off toǁaƌds the stƌeet. 
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SECTION 4      PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

 
MuŶiĐipal Addƌess  

 
ϴϵϭ LoŶgfelloǁ AǀeŶue  

Legal DesĐƌiptioŶ  LOT“ ϳϮ,ϳϯ,ϳϰ,ϳϳ,ϳϴ AND ϳϵ PLAN A-Ϯϯ 
MuŶiĐipal Waƌd  Waƌd Ϯ  
)oŶiŶg  RϮ-ϱ 
Lot FƌoŶtage  ϱϵ.ϰϯ M  
Lot Depth  ϲϬ.ϵϲ M  
Lot Aƌea  ϯϲϮϬ.ϲϮ ŵϮ  
OƌieŶtatioŶ  East side of LoŶgfelloǁ AǀeŶue  
EǆistiŶg house tǇpe  OŶe stoƌeǇ ďuŶgaloǁ ǁith paƌtial ǁalk out ďaseŵeŶt 
EǆistiŶg VegetatioŶ  “uďstaŶtial tƌees iŶ fƌoŶt aŶd ďaĐk aŶd south side Ǉaƌds ǁhiĐh is a 

paƌtial ƌaǀiŶe 
 
 
HISTORY OF OWNERSHIP  
 
The folloǁiŶg data has ďeeŶ gatheƌed fƌoŵ the OŶtaƌio LaŶd ƌegistƌǇ OffiĐe. OƌigiŶal PlaŶ of 
suďdiǀisioŶ foƌ this lot appeaƌs to haǀe ďeeŶ iŶ JulǇ of ϭϴϴϲ, ǁheŶ it ǁas tƌaŶsfeƌƌed to J. W. 
“toĐkǁell oŶe of the oǁŶeƌs of the LoƌŶe Paƌk “uŵŵeƌ Resoƌt CoŵpaŶǇ.  

 
  Refer to Appendix I. Chain of Title  
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SECTION 5 IMPACT OF DEVELOPMENT OR SITE ALTERATION 
 
AREA DESCRIPTION  
 
The LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates aƌea iŶ ǁhiĐh this pƌopeƌtǇ is fouŶd has ďeeŶ desigŶated as a Đultuƌal 
laŶdsĐape aƌea aŶd as suĐh, the ƌeƋuiƌeŵeŶt eǆists to suďŵit a Heƌitage IŵpaĐt “tateŵeŶt ƌepoƌt to 
justifǇ the ƌeŵoǀal of the eǆistiŶg house oŶ the pƌopeƌtǇ ǁhiĐh has ďeeŶ ƌeĐeŶtlǇ oĐĐupied as a siŶgle 
faŵilǇ hoŵe ďǇ oŶe oǁŶeƌ foƌ ϱϬ Ǉeaƌs.  
 
The aƌea is Ŷot desigŶated as a Heƌitage DistƌiĐt uŶdeƌ the AĐt ďut the ĐitǇ ƌeǀieǁs appliĐatioŶs 
geŶeƌallǇ iŶ aĐĐoƌdaŶĐe ǁith the ƌules of The OŶtaƌio Heƌitage AĐt.  
 
The speĐifiĐ aƌea iŶ ǁhiĐh this pƌopeƌtǇ is loĐated has uŶdeƌgoŶe ƌeĐeŶt ƌedeǀelopŵeŶt iŶ the past 
feǁ Ǉeaƌs aŶd is ĐuƌƌeŶtlǇ ĐoŶtiŶuiŶg to ďe ƌedeǀeloped. Refer to Appendix G - Photos of the 
Neighbouring houses; ǁhiĐh ƌepƌeseŶt ďoth Ŷeǁ aŶd eǆistiŶg hoŵes oŶ the saŵe stƌeet aŶd ǁithiŶ 
the ďloĐk iŶ ǁhiĐh this house is loĐated. The Ŷeǁ oǁŶeƌs of the pƌopeƌtǇ iŶteŶd to deŵolish aŶd 
ƌeĐoŶstƌuĐt a Ŷeǁ tǁo stoƌeǇ siŶgle faŵilǇ hoŵe as peƌ the dƌaǁiŶgs that aƌe attaĐhed.  
 
The pƌopeƌtǇ ǁas aĐƋuiƌed ďǇ the ĐuƌƌeŶt oǁŶeƌs iŶ ϮϬϭϱ afteƌ ŵost ƌeĐeŶt oǁŶeƌship ďǇ the 
WiŶsoƌ’s foƌ thƌee Ǉeaƌs, although it ǁas Ŷeǀeƌ oĐĐupied ǁhile theǇ sought appƌoǀal foƌ a Ŷeǁ house.  
Pƌioƌ to that it had ďeeŶ liǀed iŶ ďǇ oŶe oǁŶeƌ foƌ the pƌeǀious ϱϬ Ǉeaƌs. The house ǁas ĐoŶstƌuĐted 
iŶ oƌ aƌouŶd ϭϵϮϳ, aŶd is ďut oŶe eǆaŵple of a tƌaditioŶal Đottage stǇle ďuŶgaloǁ ǁhiĐh ǁas 
pƌedoŵiŶaŶt iŶ the aƌea.  
 
Theƌe haǀe ďeeŶ a sŵall Ŷuŵďeƌ of additioŶs aŶd ƌeŶoǀatioŶs to the eǆistiŶg ďuildiŶg oǀeƌ the past 
ϲϬ Ǉeaƌs iŶĐludiŶg additioŶs of sŵall Đoǀeƌed poƌĐhes oŶ the ǁest side aŶd the additioŶ of a sŵall 
Đoǀeƌed ďaseŵeŶt shelteƌ foƌ aŶ eŶtƌǇ oŶ the south side of the house, aŶd a fƌeestaŶdiŶg gaƌage iŶ 
fƌoŶt of the house as ǁell as a gaƌdeŶ shed.  
 
The ďuildiŶg does Ŷot haǀe aŶǇ speĐifiĐ aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal iŶteƌest. 
 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT DETAILS 
 
The oǁŶeƌs’ iŶteŶt is to deŵolish the eǆistiŶg house aŶd ĐoŶstƌuĐt a Ŷeǁ house geŶeƌallǇ iŶ a siŵilaƌ 
loĐatioŶ to the eǆistiŶg house.  Refer to Appendix F – Site Plan; shoǁiŶg the pƌoposed Ŷeǁ house 
footpƌiŶt oŶ lot.  Theƌe is aŶ oldeƌ house to the Ŷoƌth of the pƌopeƌtǇ that ǁill ŵost likelǇ ďe 
deŵolished iŶ the Ŷeǆt tǁo Ǉeaƌs aŶd ƌedeǀeloped.  The house to the south is appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϮϬϬ feet 
south aŶd it is a laƌge fƌaŵe heƌitage stƌuĐtuƌe that sites ǁell aďoǀe this house iŶ teƌŵs of it eleǀatioŶ 
aŶd ƌoof height.   Refer to Appendix A1 – Streetscape. 
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The oǁŶeƌ is ŵaiŶtaiŶiŶg ŵost of the tƌees oŶ the lot. Theƌe aƌe a total of 10 tƌees ďeiŶg ƌeŵoǀed to 
faĐilitate ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ aŶd soŵe light oŶ the pƌopeƌtǇ.  Theƌe aƌe oǀeƌ ϮϬϬ tƌees oŶ the site aŶd it is 
deŶselǇ foƌested aŶd this shall ƌeŵaiŶ.  Thus the ƌeŵoǀal of tƌees has aŶǇ oƌ ǀeƌǇ little iŵpaĐt oŶ the 
laŶdsĐape ƋualitǇ of the site. IŶ faĐt, the site has ďeeŶ left to ďeĐoŵe oǀeƌgƌoǁŶ foƌ a Ŷuŵďeƌ of 
Ǉeaƌs. 
 
The ƌaǀiŶe to the “outh aŶd East of the house has a laƌge Ŷuŵďeƌ of tƌees soŵe of ǁhiĐh haǀe ďloǁŶ 
oǀeƌ iŶ ƌeĐeŶt stoƌŵs. Most of this aƌea ǁill ďe Ŷatuƌalized aŶd ŵaiŶtaiŶed as is. 
 
Theƌe ǁas aŶ Aƌďoƌist Repoƌt suďŵitted as paƌt of the ƌedeǀelopŵeŶt plaŶ aŶd it is attaĐhed heƌeǁith 
as Appendix J.  
 
PROPOSED STREETSCAPE 
 
 Refer to Appendix H to show the plans and elevations of the new house from the street.  
 
It should ďe Ŷoted that theƌe aƌe ǀeƌǇ feǁ houses oŶ the stƌeet ďetǁeeŶ this pƌopeƌtǇ aŶd the lake 
ǁith oŶlǇ oŶe otheƌ house oŶ the saŵe side aŶd thƌee oŶ the opposite side of the stƌeet. 
 
 
IMPACT ON NEIGHBOURHOOD 
 
Theƌe aƌe ĐeƌtaiŶ speĐifiĐ Đƌiteƌia laid out iŶ the OffiĐial PlaŶ foƌ the aƌea ǁhiĐh Ŷote the ƌeasoŶs foƌ 
the aƌea ďeiŶg desigŶated as a Cultuƌal Heƌitage Aƌea.  
 
EVALUATION CRITERIA  
 
The LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates Ŷeighďouƌhood has ďeeŶ iŶĐluded iŶ the Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐape IŶǀeŶtoƌǇ ǁithiŶ 
the CitǇ of Mississauga. It is iŶĐluded foƌ its Ŷeighďouƌhood ĐhaƌaĐteƌ ǀeƌsus ďeiŶg of aŶǇ speĐifiĐ 
heƌitage iŶteƌest. It is also aŶ aƌea of sigŶifiĐaŶt eĐologiĐal iŶteƌest.  
 
The iŶǀeŶtoƌǇ desĐƌiďes the aƌeas of speĐifiĐ iŶteƌest ǁithiŶ the Ŷeighďouƌhood ǁhiĐh should ďe 
ƌeǀieǁed.  
 
These iŶĐlude the folloǁiŶg:  
 
Landscape Environment  

• “ĐeŶiĐ aŶd Visual QualitǇ  
• Natuƌal EŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt  
• LaŶdsĐape DesigŶ  

 
Historical Association  

• “tǇles, TƌeŶds aŶd PatteƌŶs  
• “oĐial aŶd PhǇsiĐal DeǀelopŵeŶt  

 

6.2 - 20



 

19 | P a g e  

 

Built Environment  
• AesthetiĐ / Visual QualitǇ  
• “Đale of Built Featuƌes  

 
LANDSCAPE ENVIRONMENT  
 
SCENIC AND VISUAL QUALITY  
 
This uŶiƋue shoƌeliŶe ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ ĐoŵďiŶes a loǁ deŶsitǇ ƌesideŶtial deǀelopŵeŶt estaďlished iŶ the 
ϭϴϴϬ’s ǁith the pƌoteĐtioŶ aŶd ŵaŶageŵeŶt of aŶ aŵaziŶg foƌested ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ ǁhiĐh is 
ƌepƌeseŶtatiǀe of the pƌe settleŵeŶt shoƌeliŶe of Lake OŶtaƌio. A ŵatuƌe CaƌoliŶiaŶ foƌest ŵade up 
of ǁhite piŶe, ƌed oak aŶd ƌed piŶe giǀes this ƌesideŶtial ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ a uŶiƋue ǀisual ƋualitǇ.  
 
The pƌoposed deǀelopŵeŶt ŵaiŶtaiŶs this ƌelatioŶship ďetǁeeŶ the Ŷeǁ hoŵe aŶd the stƌeet ǁhiĐh 
is ĐoŶsisteŶt ǁith the Ŷeighďouƌhood ǁhile haǀiŶg uŶdeƌgoŶe suďstaŶtial ƌedeǀelopŵeŶt iŶ past 
Ǉeaƌs. it has ŵaiŶtaiŶed its ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of plaĐe.  IŶ faĐt, the eǆistiŶg site has had a fƌeestaŶdiŶg gaƌage 
iŶ fƌoŶt of the house foƌ soŵe ϰϬ Ǉeaƌs aŶd the Ŷeǁ deǀelopŵeŶt ƌepƌoduĐes this ƌelatioŶship. 
 
The pƌopoŶeŶt iŶteŶds to ŵaiŶtaiŶ ŵost of the foƌest Đoǀeƌ oŶ the site aŶd to Ŷatuƌalize the site. 
Theƌe is Ŷo iŶteŶt to add a pool aŶd/oƌ laƌge laǁŶ aƌeas. 
 
Thus, iŶ the opiŶioŶ of the Authoƌ of this ƌepoƌt, Ŷeitheƌ the ƌeŵoǀal of the eǆistiŶg house Ŷoƌ the 
pƌoposed Ŷeǁ deǀelopŵeŶt, ǁill alteƌ ŶegatiǀelǇ the sĐeŶiĐ aŶd ǀisual ƋualitǇ of the Ŷeighďouƌhood.  
 
IŶ faĐt, iŶ ouƌ opiŶioŶ, it ǁill ďe eŶhaŶĐed as this pƌopeƌtǇ has ďeeŶ a seƌious state of disƌepaiƌ foƌ 
Ƌuite soŵe tiŵe.  
 
NATURAL ENVIRONMENT  
 
The tƌees oŶ site aƌe foƌ the ŵost paƌt ďeiŶg ƌetaiŶed. The ďaĐk of the lot aŶd the south side of the 
lot iŶ the ƌaǀiŶe aƌea is heaǀilǇ foƌested oŶ the edge aŶd this ǁill ďe ƌetaiŶed. Theƌe ǁill ďe Ŷo iŵpaĐt 
oŶ the Ŷatuƌal eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt Đaused ďǇ ƌeŵoǀal of the house oƌ the ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ of the Ŷeǁ hoŵe.  
The ƌeŵoǀal of the ϭϬ tƌees ǁill ďe offset ďǇ plaŶtiŶg of Ŷeǁ tƌees upoŶ ĐoŵpletioŶ of the 
deǀelopŵeŶt that ǁill add to the laŶdsĐape ƋualitǇ of the stƌeet aŶd Ŷeighďouƌhood. 
 
The Cƌedit ValleǇ CoŶseƌǀatioŶ AuthoƌitǇ is satisfied ǁith the pƌoposed plaŶ aŶd has Ŷot ƌeƋuiƌed 
aŶǇ speĐifiĐ ŵitigatioŶ plaŶs. 
 
LANDSCAPE DESIGN  
 
As Ŷoted, the pƌoposed deǀelopŵeŶt iŶĐludes a ǀeƌǇ ƌiĐh laŶdsĐape ƌestoƌatioŶ plaŶ that ƌeiŶfoƌĐes 
ďoth the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the lot aŶd the Ŷeighďouƌhood, as a ǁhole. The ƌesultiŶg Ŷeǁ house aŶd 
laŶdsĐape ǁill ďe aŶ eŶhaŶĐeŵeŶt to the aƌea aŶd it ǁill pƌeseƌǀe the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the LoƌŶe Paƌk 
Estates Ŷeighďouƌhood.  
  

6.2 - 21



 

20 | P a g e  

 

STYLE AND PATTERN  
 
The eǆistiŶg Ŷeighďouƌhood has a ǁide ǀaƌietǇ of lots, shapes aŶd patteƌŶs ďut theǇ aƌe ĐoŶsisteŶt iŶ 
the ǁaǇ theǇ addƌess the ƌoad ǁith a seaŵless laŶdsĐape fƌoŵ asphalt to fƌoŶt dooƌ. The patteƌŶ of 
the eǆistiŶg iŵŵediate Ŷeighďouƌhood iŶĐludes ďuildiŶgs of ǀaƌǇiŶg setďaĐks aŶd depths of lots.  
 
The pƌoposed Ŷeǁ house ŵaiŶtaiŶs this seŶse of stǇle aŶd patteƌŶ aŶd it iŶseƌts, a Ŷeǁ hoŵe that 
ŵeets all of the desigŶ iŶteŶt of the UƌďaŶ DesigŶ PoliĐies iŵpleŵeŶted, as paƌt of the site plaŶ 
pƌoĐess.  
 
PHYSICAL DEVELOPMENT  
 
The ƌeŵoǀal of the eǆistiŶg hoŵe aŶd the ĐƌeatioŶ of the Ŷeǁ house do Ŷot affeĐt the stƌoŶg histoƌǇ 
aŶd oƌ ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the aƌea. LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates ƌeŵaiŶs a ǁoŶdeƌful eǆaŵple of a uŶiƋue 
deǀelopŵeŶt iŶ the CitǇ.  IŶ faĐt, the Ŷeǁ house aŶd its fƌeestaŶdiŶg gaƌage, ŵaiŶtaiŶ the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ 
that has eǆisted foƌ ŵaŶǇ Ǉeaƌs. 
 
AESTHETIC AND VISUAL QUALITY  
 
The eǆistiŶg ŵodest house does Ŷot ƌepƌeseŶt a ƌaƌe oƌ uŶiƋue eǆaŵple of a paƌtiĐulaƌ stǇle oƌ tǇpe 
oƌ ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ ŵethodologǇ. Theƌe is Ŷo eǀideŶĐe of a high degƌee of ĐƌaftsŵaŶship oƌ aƌtistiĐ ŵeƌit 
iŶ the eǆistiŶg stƌuĐtuƌe. Its ƌeŵoǀal ǁill Ŷot iŵpaĐt oŶ the aesthetiĐ oƌ ǀisual ƋualitǇ of the 
Ŷeighďouƌhood.  
 
SCALE  
 
The eǆistiŶg stƌeet has a ǁide ǀaƌietǇ of house tǇpes oŶ it ďut the pƌedoŵiŶaŶt ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the aƌea, 
ŵight ďe desĐƌiďed as oŶe of ϭ.ϱ aŶd Ϯ stoƌeǇ houses. The eǆistiŶg house is a ďuŶgaloǁ ǁhiĐh has 
ďeeŶ suďstaŶtiallǇ ŵodified. The pƌoposed Ŷeǁ hoŵe is a Ϯ.Ϭ stoƌeǇ house ǁhiĐh fits iŶ ǁith the 
ĐoŶteǆt of the site aŶd stƌeetsĐape. It has ďeeŶ desigŶed so to ďe aďle to Đo-haďitate ǁith the eǆistiŶg 
dǁelliŶgs iŶ the aƌea ŵaŶǇ of ǁhiĐh aƌe also tǁo stoƌeǇs iŶ height.  
 
It is the ĐoŶĐlusioŶ of the ǁƌiteƌ that the ǁhile this pƌopeƌtǇ is listed oŶ the ƌegisteƌ uŶdeƌ the LoƌŶe 
Paƌk Estates Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐape, the eǆistiŶg house has Ŷot ďeeŶ desigŶated aŶd does Ŷot ŵeƌit 
ĐoŶseƌǀatioŶ ŵeasuƌes of aŶǇ kiŶd.  
 
The iŵpaĐt of the pƌoposed Ŷeǁ hoŵe has takeŶ iŶto ĐoŶsideƌatioŶ the suƌƌouŶdiŶg Ŷeighďouƌhood, 
aŶd the pƌeseƌǀatioŶ of stƌeetsĐape ĐhaƌaĐteƌ. The Ŷeǁ hoŵe ŵatĐhes the eǆistiŶg fƌoŶt Ǉaƌd setďaĐk 
of the oƌigiŶal house aŶd thus is appƌopƌiate iŶ teƌŵs of iŵpaĐt oŶ the stƌeetsĐape.  
 
Thus, it is the ĐoŶĐlusioŶ that the pƌoposed deŵolitioŶ aŶd Ŷeǁ ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ, do Ŷot ĐoŶtƌaǀeŶe the 
iŶteŶtioŶs of the LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐape ListiŶg.  
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SECTION 6   MITIGATION MEASURES 
 
The oǁŶeƌs ĐoŶsideƌed if otheƌ optioŶs eǆisted foƌ the deǀelopŵeŶt of the site.  GiǀeŶ the 
ƌestƌiĐtioŶs plaĐed oŶ the site ďǇ CVC, Peel GƌeeŶ Coƌe LaŶds “tudǇ aŶd the )oŶiŶg ƌestƌiĐtioŶs 
as ǁell as RegioŶal ƌeƋuiƌeŵeŶts foƌ septiĐ faĐilities, the house Đould liteƌallǇ ďe ďuilt iŶ oŶlǇ oŶe 
spot oŶ the site ǁhiĐh also happeŶs to ŵatĐh to soŵe eǆteŶt, the eǆistiŶg loĐatioŶ of the house 
aŶd gaƌages oŶ the site. 
 
Thus, as the pƌojeĐt desigŶ ǁas iŶitiated afteƌ disĐussioŶs ǁith the CitǇ PlaŶŶiŶg DepaƌtŵeŶt aŶd 
ǁith CVC, theƌe ǁeƌe Ŷo alteƌŶatiǀe deǀelopŵeŶt optioŶs possiďle foƌ the site. IŶ faĐt, the oƌigiŶal 
desigŶ ǁas ŵuĐh laƌgeƌ aŶd iŶtƌuded oŶ the ƌeƋuiƌed setďaĐk fƌoŵ the top of ďaŶk ŵoƌe 
eǆteŶsiǀelǇ, thaŶ the fiŶal solutioŶ aŶd it ǁas ƌeduĐed suďstaŶtiallǇ, thus leadiŶg to a suppoƌtaďle 
deǀelopŵeŶt optioŶ oŶ the site. 
 
The septiĐ had to ďe ŵoǀed to the fƌoŶt of the site thus ƌeƋuiƌiŶg soŵe tƌee ƌeŵoǀal as CVC ǁill 
Ŷot peƌŵit Đlose to the top of ďaŶk Ŷoƌ oǀeƌ the top of ďaŶk. 
 
The house itself ƌeƋuiƌed the ƌeŵoǀal of soŵe eǆistiŶg tƌees due to gƌadiŶg ĐhaŶges ƌeƋuiƌed aŶd 
to aĐĐoŵŵodate the aĐtual footpƌiŶt of the house.  The CoŶseƌǀatioŶ AuthoƌitǇ afteƌ ŵaŶǇ 
ŵoŶths of disĐussioŶs, is satisfied ǁith the pƌoposed house aŶd its loĐatioŶ as ǁell as that of the 
gaƌage as theǇ feel, it has Ŷo iŵpaĐt oŶ the ǀalleǇ featuƌes of stƌeaŵ to the south. 
 
The house aŶd gaƌage ƌeƋuiƌed a Ŷuŵďeƌ of ǀaƌiaŶĐes to the )oŶiŶg BǇlaǁ all of ǁhiĐh ǁeƌe 
suppoƌted ďǇ plaŶŶiŶg aŶd the loĐal Ŷeighďouƌhood Boaƌd of DiƌeĐtoƌs as ǁell as the adjaĐeŶt 
Ŷeighďouƌs aŶd the Coŵŵittee of AdjustŵeŶt appƌoǀed all of the ǀaƌiaŶĐes ƌeƋuiƌed foƌ the site.  
 
The loĐal Waƌd CouŶĐilloƌ also suppoƌted the pƌoposed deǀelopŵeŶt ďased oŶ the suppoƌt ďeiŶg 
giǀeŶ ďǇ the loĐal ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ. 
 
All tƌee ƌeŵoǀal peƌŵits ǁill foƌŵ paƌt of the site plaŶ appƌoǀal pƌoĐess aŶd PlaŶŶiŶg is Ŷoǁ 
satisfied that the plaŶ is appƌopƌiate. 
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SECTION 7 QUALIFICATIONS 
 
HiĐks DesigŶ “tudio IŶĐ. / foƌŵeƌlǇ The HiĐks PaƌtŶeƌship IŶĐ. is aŶ aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal desigŶ fiƌŵ that has 
ďeeŶ iŶ pƌaĐtiĐe siŶĐe ϭϵϴϬ uŶdeƌ diffeƌeŶt paƌtŶeƌship foƌŵs. The fiƌŵ’s aƌea of speĐialtǇ is iŶfill 
housiŶg iŶ ǀeƌǇ seŶsitiǀe aƌeas ǁithiŶ Mississauga aŶd Oakǀille aƌea foƌ the ŵost paƌt. IŶ additioŶ, 
the fiƌŵ is ƌeŶoǁŶed foƌ its ǁoƌk ǁith desigŶiŶg golf Đluď Đluďhouses thƌoughout Noƌth AŵeƌiĐa.  
 
Williaŵ HiĐks has ďeeŶ pƌaĐtiĐiŶg as aŶ aƌĐhiteĐt foƌ oǀeƌ ϯϯ Ǉeaƌs aŶd has desigŶed oǀeƌ ϭϮϬϬ Ŷeǁ 
iŶfill hoŵes aĐƌoss the geŶeƌal GTA aƌea. The fiƌŵ is kŶoǁŶ foƌ its desigŶ eǆĐelleŶĐe aŶd it has ǁoŶ 
aǁaƌds foƌ oǀeƌ ϭϱ diffeƌeŶt pƌojeĐts iŶĐludiŶg a Ŷuŵďeƌ of heƌitage seŶsitiǀe pƌojeĐts.  
 
The fiƌŵ pƌides itself iŶ its aďilitǇ to desigŶ houses ǁhiĐh fit the sĐale aŶd ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the 
Ŷeighďouƌhood aŶd the fiƌŵ has desigŶed ŵoƌe thaŶ ϯϬϬ to ϰϬϬ houses ǁithiŶ Mississauga iŶĐludiŶg 
otheƌs aƌeas of Đultuƌal heƌitage iŶteƌest suĐh as MiŶeola, LoƌŶe Paƌk, LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates aŶd Poƌt 
Cƌedit.  
 
The fiƌŵ has Đoŵpleted heƌitage iŵpaĐt studies foƌ a Ŷuŵďeƌ of hoŵes aŶd ĐoŵŵeƌĐial pƌopeƌties 
ǁithiŶ the Oakǀille aƌea aŶd ǁe haǀe ǁoƌked ǁith the Heƌitage AdǀisoƌǇ Coŵŵittee aŶd the CitǇ of 
Mississauga oŶ soŵe pƌojeĐts iŶ HistoƌiĐ Meadoǁǀale Village aŶd Poƌt Cƌedit. Williaŵ HiĐks ǁas oŶe 
of the oƌigiŶal oǁŶeƌs of the WilĐoǆ Hotel oŶ FƌoŶt “tƌeet iŶ Poƌt Cƌedit ǁhiĐh ǁas ƌestoƌed ďǇ a 
pƌedeĐessoƌ fiƌŵ iŶ the ϴϬ’s.  
 
Coŵpleted Heƌitage IŵpaĐt “tateŵeŶts haǀe ďeeŶ pƌepaƌed aŶd appƌoǀed foƌ the folloǁiŶg 
pƌojeĐts ǁithiŶ the CitǇ of Mississauga aŶd otheƌ ŵuŶiĐipalities.  
 

 

Mississauga 
 

 

Otheƌ MuŶiĐipalities 
 

Moƌƌa ResideŶĐe  ϵϮϱ LoŶgfelloǁ Aǀe ThoƌŶhill Golf Cluď ϳϵϵϰ YoŶge “t. ThoƌŶhill 
AdǀeŶtuƌe CaŶada ϭϰ FƌoŶt “t. “outh MadoŶ ResideŶĐe Ϯϰ Fiƌst “t, Oakǀille 
Ahŵed ResideŶĐe ϰϮϬϴ Mississauga Rd Hughes ResideŶĐe ϳϯ Williaŵs “t. Oakǀille 
Khosla ResideŶĐe Ϯϭϲ DoŶŶellǇ Dƌ. Oakǀille Cluď ϱϲ Wateƌ “t. Oakǀille 
“aplǇs ResideŶĐe ϭϰϰϮ “taǀeďaŶk Dƌ Ross ResideŶĐe ϰϳ AlleŶ “t. Oakǀille 
“teǀeŶs ResideŶĐe ϮϬϲ Bƌiaƌ Hill Dƌ  
MĐLaughliŶ ResideŶĐe ϮϬϵϴ Mississauga Rd  
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SECTION 7A –  CV 
 
WILLIAM R. HICK“, B.E.“., B. ARCH., MRAIC, OAA 
 
EDUCATION:  ϭϵϳϲ BaĐheloƌ EŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶtal “tudies 
   UŶiǀeƌsitǇ of Wateƌloo 
 

   ϭϵϳϵ BaĐheloƌ of AƌĐhiteĐtuƌe 
   UŶiǀeƌsitǇ of Wateƌloo 
 
MEMBER“HIP“: OŶtaƌio AssoĐiatioŶ of AƌĐhiteĐts 
   RoǇal AƌĐhiteĐtuƌal IŶstitute of CaŶada 
   NCARB - NatioŶal CouŶĐil of AƌĐhiteĐtuƌal RegistƌatioŶ Boaƌds  
   Neǁ Yoƌk AssoĐiatioŶ of AƌĐhiteĐts 
   AƌizoŶa AssoĐiatioŶ of AƌĐhiteĐts 
 
OFFICE“:    ChaiƌŵaŶ of the Boaƌd 
   BƌadleǇ Museuŵ, Mississauga 
   ϭϵϴϲ - ϭϵϴϴ 
 
   Peel VoluŶteeƌ FouŶdatioŶ 
   Mississauga 
   ϭϵϴϰ - ϭϵϴϲ 
 
   LoƌŶe Paƌk – White Oaks ResideŶts AssoĐiatioŶ 
   Mississauga 
   ϭϵϳϵ - ϭϵϴϬ 
 
   PƌesideŶt 
   LoƌŶe Paƌk Estates AssoĐiatioŶ 
   ϭϵϴϱ - ϭϵϴϳ 
 
   Mississauga Hospital Boaƌd of DiƌeĐtoƌs 
   ϭϵϴϳ - ϭϵϵϲ 
 
   “outh West Hospital PlaŶŶiŶg Gƌoup 
   DiƌeĐtoƌ 
   ϭϵϵϰ - ϭϵϵϱ 
 
CURRENT FIRM: ϮϬϭϱ -   PaƌtŶeƌ, HiĐks DesigŶ “tudio 
   ϮϬϬϲ -   PaƌtŶeƌ, HiĐks PaƌtŶeƌship IŶĐ. 
   ϮϬϬϭ - ϮϬϭϱ TƌiŶitǇ PƌojeĐt MaŶageŵeŶt IŶĐ.   
   ϭϵϵϴ - ϮϬϬϲ PaƌtŶeƌ, HiĐks-Pettes AƌĐhiteĐts IŶĐ. 
   ϭϵϵϭ – ϭϵϵϴ PaƌtŶeƌ, Williaŵs R. HiĐks AƌĐhiteĐts IŶĐoƌpoƌated 
   ϭϵϵϲ - ϮϬϭϱ DiƌeĐtoƌ, Noƌth AŵeƌiĐaŶ Retail AƌĐhiteĐts IŶĐ. 
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SECTION 8    RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
UŶdeƌ OŶtaƌio ƌegulatioŶ ϵ/Ϭϲ ǁhiĐh is paƌt of the OŶtaƌio Heƌitage AĐt, oŶe ŵust ĐoŶsideƌ the 
Đƌiteƌia foƌ deteƌŵiŶiŶg if the speĐifiĐ pƌopeƌtǇ is of Đultuƌal ǀalue oƌ IŶteƌest. Theƌe aƌe ŶiŶe Đƌiteƌia 
foƌ this eǀaluatioŶ iŶĐludiŶg the folloǁiŶg:  

1. Does the property meet the criteria for heritage designation under the Ontario Regulation 
 9/06 Ontario Heritage Act? 

 
IͿ Is it a ƌaƌe eǆaŵple that is uŶiƋue oƌ ƌepƌeseŶtatiǀe of a stǇle oƌ eǆpƌessioŶ oƌ a uŶiƋue 

ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ ŵethod? CeƌtaiŶlǇ this house does Ŷot ƌepƌeseŶt a stƌuĐtuƌe that is uŶiƋue iŶ 
teƌŵs of its ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ ŵethod Ŷoƌ its stǇle.   

IŶ the opiŶioŶ of the Authoƌ, the oƌigiŶal Đottage does Ŷot ƌepƌeseŶt a uŶiƋue stǇle oƌ 
eǆpƌessioŶ of aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal ŵeƌit ǁheŶ eǀaluated ǁithiŶ the ĐoŶteǆt of LoƌŶe Paƌk 
Estates.  The oƌigiŶal houses ďuilt aŶd desigŶed ďǇ EdŵuŶd Buƌke did ƌepƌeseŶt a uŶiƋue 
stǇle that ǁas a doŵiŶaŶt ĐhaƌaĐteƌistiĐ of the Estates iŶ the late ϭϴϬϬ’s.  
 
As Ŷeǁ stƌuĐtuƌes ďegaŶ to ďe ďuilt as suŵŵeƌ Đottages afteƌ the fiƌst ǁoƌld ǁaƌ. TheǇ 
teŶded to ďe ǀeƌǇ siŵple stƌuĐtuƌes ǁith soŵe ĐƌaftsŵeŶ iŶflueŶĐe, ďut liŵited eǀeŶ iŶ 
those ĐhaƌaĐteƌistiĐs as theǇ ǁeƌe ďuilt to ďe ǀeƌǇ siŵple utilitaƌiaŶ stƌuĐtuƌes.  TheǇ ŵet 
the Ŷeeds of the oǁŶeƌs as suŵŵeƌ Đottages at fiƌst. aŶd lateƌ as peƌŵaŶeŶt hoŵes.  This 
has ďeeŶ illustƌated iŶ this Đase, as the house ǁas ŵoƌe thaŶ douďled iŶ size iŶ the eaƌlǇ 
ϭϵϲϬ’s. 
 
While the aƌea is listed ǁithiŶ the Cultuƌal laŶdsĐape desigŶatioŶ iŶ Mississauga, this 
paƌtiĐulaƌ house ǁas Ŷot desigŶated. 

 
 iiͿ The house does Ŷot ƌepƌeseŶt oƌ displaǇ a high degƌee of ĐƌaftsŵaŶship oƌ aƌtistiĐ ŵeƌit iŶ 

the opiŶioŶ of the Authoƌ.  Theƌe is ŶothiŶg uŶiƋue aďout the aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal eǆpƌessioŶ oƌ 
detailiŶg fouŶd iŶ this hoŵe. The house is Ŷot kŶoǁŶ to ƌepƌeseŶt aŶǇ sigŶifiĐaŶĐe ƌelated 
to theŵe, eǀeŶts, ďeliefs, peƌsoŶs, aĐtiǀities, oƌgaŶizatioŶs oƌ iŶstitutioŶs iŶ the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ.  
It ǁas siŵplǇ oŶe of ŵaŶǇ suŵŵeƌ Đottages ďuilt iŶ the aƌea ďetǁeeŶ the fiƌst aŶd seĐoŶd 
ǁoƌld ǁaƌs. 

 IiiͿ The house ĐeƌtaiŶlǇ does Ŷot displaǇ Ŷoƌ is it ƌepƌeseŶtatiǀe of a high degƌee of teĐhŶiĐal oƌ 
sĐieŶtifiĐ aĐhieǀeŵeŶt.  It is ďuilt folloǁiŶg tƌaditioŶal ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ ŵethodologies of that 
peƌiod ǁith a ďƌiĐk aŶd fƌaŵe ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ.  

2. If the subject property does not meet the criteria for heritage designation then it must be  
 clearly stated why it does not do so. 

 
 iͿ The speĐifiĐ house thƌough its histoƌǇ, has Ŷot ďeeŶ assoĐiated ǁith aŶǇ paƌtiĐulaƌ eǀeŶt, oƌ 

oǁŶeƌ oƌ iŶstitutioŶ that is sigŶifiĐaŶt to the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ.   
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  The oƌigiŶal oǁŶeƌ, the RaǇ’s ǁeƌe Ŷot sigŶifiĐaŶt laŶd oǁŶeƌs iŶ the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ aŶd his 
oŶlǇ kŶoǁŶ ƌole ǁas to sit oŶ the Boaƌd of DiƌeĐtoƌs foƌ the paƌk, a positioŶ the Authoƌ has 
also held oǀeƌ the peƌiod of oǁŶeƌship iŶ the Paƌk.  

  iiͿ The house does Ŷot hold aŶǇ Đlues to a ďetteƌ uŶdeƌstaŶdiŶg of the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ oƌ Đultuƌe 
ǁithiŶ ǁhiĐh it is loĐated.  The eaƌlǇ houses of EdŵuŶd Buƌke hold ŵost of the Đlues aŶd 
ƌepƌeseŶt the eaƌliest stages of deǀelopŵeŶt as a suŵŵeƌ ƌesoƌt outside of ToƌoŶto, ďut 
this paƌtiĐulaƌ house does Ŷot offeƌ aŶǇ additioŶal Đlues to that. The ŵost iŵpoƌtaŶt paƌt of 
this pƌopeƌtǇ ǁas that it seƌǀed as a gatheƌiŶg plaĐe foƌ soŵe of the Paƌk paƌties aŶd foƌ 
ǀieǁiŶg the ŵagŶifiĐeŶt displaǇ of tƌilliuŵs iŶ the “pƌiŶg, ǁhiĐh still eǆist to this daǇ aŶd ǁill 
Ŷot ďe affeĐted ďǇ the pƌoposed ǁoƌks. 

  IiiͿ The house is Ŷot kŶoǁŶ to ďe desigŶed ďǇ aŶ AƌĐhiteĐt aŶd ǁas a tǇpiĐal plaŶ tǇpe ďuilt iŶ 
that peƌiod that ǁas ƌepƌeseŶtatiǀe of aŶ eaƌlǇ ĐƌaftsŵeŶ iŶflueŶĐe.   It is Ŷot attƌiďuted to 
aŶ AƌĐhiteĐt, ďuildeƌ oƌ desigŶeƌ that is sigŶifiĐaŶt to the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ.  

3. Does the property warrant conservation as per the definition of the Provincial policy 
 Statement. 
 
 iͿ The aƌĐhiteĐtuƌe of the oƌigiŶal ǁhile ďeiŶg aŶ iŵpoƌtaŶt paƌt of the past ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the 

paƌk does Ŷot defiŶe the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the aƌea aŶd I ǁould suggest does Ŷot suppoƌt the 
ĐuƌƌeŶt ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the aƌea ǁhiĐh is iŶ a state of tƌaŶsitioŶ.  

 iiͿ The house is Ŷot phǇsiĐallǇ, fuŶĐtioŶallǇ oƌ ǀisuallǇ liŶked to its suƌƌouŶdiŶgs. The 
suƌƌouŶdiŶgs aŶd the ǀalleǇ laŶds iŶ the Ŷeǁ pƌoposal ƌeŵaiŶ uŶtouĐhed  

 iiiͿ The house ĐaŶ ĐeƌtaiŶlǇ Ŷot ďe ĐoŶsideƌed a laŶdŵaƌk iŶ the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ.  
 
Based oŶ the ϵ Đƌiteƌia Ŷoted aďoǀe, the house is ĐeƌtaiŶlǇ Ŷot of Đultuƌal oƌ heƌitage ǀalue oƌ iŶteƌest 
aŶd is appƌopƌiate foƌ deŵolitioŶ. The eǆistiŶg dǁelliŶg does Ŷot ǁaƌƌaŶt ĐoŶseƌǀatioŶ. 
 
The pƌoposed plaŶ has ŵet all of the Đƌiteƌia uŶdeƌ the “ite PlaŶ appƌoǀal pƌoĐess aŶd has also 
ŵeet the oďjeĐtiǀes aŶd ƌeƋuiƌeŵeŶts of the Cƌedit ValleǇ CoŶseƌǀatioŶ AuthoƌitǇ.  
 
The deǀelopŵeŶt as a ǁhole does Ŷot iŵpaĐt the Đultuƌal heƌitage desigŶatioŶ of the site aŶd 
the laŶdsĐape ǁill ďe pƌeseƌǀed aŶd eŶhaŶĐed thƌough Ŷeǁ plaŶtiŶgs that ǁill ƌestoƌe Ŷatiǀe 
speĐies to the site. 
 
Thus haǀiŶg ŵet all of these Đƌiteƌia, the eǆistiŶg dǁelliŶg does Ŷot ǁaƌƌaŶt ĐoŶseƌǀatioŶ as peƌ 
OŶtaƌio ƌegulatioŶ ϵ/Ϭϲ OŶtaƌio heƌitage AĐt oƌ the PƌoǀiŶĐial poliĐǇ stateŵeŶt. 
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APPENDIX A – SITE CONTEXT MAP FOR THE LOT LOCATION 
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APPENDIX C - EXISTING FLOOR PLANS
- BaseŵeŶt Floor PlaŶ
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APPENDIX C - EXISTING FLOOR PLANS - CoŶt'd
- MaiŶ Floor

 ϯϭ|Page

6.2 - 33



 

32 | P a g e  

 

 
 
APPENDIX D – EXISTING EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS 
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APPENDIX D – EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS – Cont’d 
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APPENDIX D – EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS – Cont’d 
 

ϭϲϭ 
 

ϭϲϮ

6.2 - 36



 

35 | P a g e  

 

APPENDIX D – EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS – Cont’d 
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APPENDIX D – EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS – Cont’d 
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APPENDIX E – EXIS
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APPENDIX G – NEIGHBOURING EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS 
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APPENDIX G – NEIGHBOURING EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS – Cont’d 
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APPENDIX G – NEIGHBOURING EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS – Cont’d 
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APPENDIX G – NEIGHBOURING EXTERIOR HOUSE PHOTOS – Cont’d 
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Date: 2016/05/19 
 
To: Chair and Members of Heritage Advisory Committee 
 
From: Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of 

Community Services  

Originator’s files: 
 

Meeting date: 
2016/06/14 
 

 

 

Subject 
Request to Demolish a Structure within a Heritage Listed Property: 3359 Mississauga 

Road (Ward 8) 

 

Recommendation 
That the North Building on the property at 3359 Mississauga Road, which is listed on the City’s 
Heritage Register, is not worthy of heritage designation, and consequently, that the owner’s 
request to demolish proceed through the applicable process.   

Background 
Section 27.3 of the Ontario Heritage Act states that structures or buildings on property listed on 

the City’s Heritage Register cannot be removed or demolished without at least 60 days’ notice 
to Council.  This legislation allows time for Council to review the property’s cultural heritage 
value to determine if the property merits designation.   

 

The owner of the subject property has submitted a heritage permit application to demolish and 

replace the existing detached dwelling.  The subject property is listed on the City’s Heritage 
Register as it forms part of the University of Toronto at Mississauga cultural landscape.  This 

cultural landscape is noted for its open space, unique architectural styles and relationship to the 

Credit River, striking a good balance between the built campus environment, manicured and 

natural areas.   The property is also designated under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, 

however the subject building is not an attribute identified in the designation, but only part of the 

listed Cultural Landscape. 

 

The landscaping, urban design and conservation authority related issues will be reviewed as 

part of the Site Plan review process to ensure the project respects the character of the 

surrounding community. 
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Heritage Advisory Committee 2016/05/19 2 

 

Comments 
The owner of the subject property has requested permission to demolish the existing structure. 

The applicant has provided a Heritage Impact Study compiled by Strickland Mateljan Design 

and Architecture.  It is attached as Appendix 1.  The consultant has concluded that the North 

Building at 3359 Mississauga Road, part of the University of Toronto, Mississauga campus, is 

not worthy of designation.  Staff concurs with this finding. 

Financial Impact 
There is no financial impact. 

Conclusion 
The owner of 3359 Mississauga Road has requested permission to demolish a structure on a 

property that is listed on the City’s Heritage Register.  The property is also designated under 
Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, however the North Building that is proposed to be 

demolished is not an attribute identified on said designation, but only part of the listed Cultural 

Landscape.  The applicant has submitted a documentation report which provides information 

which does not support the building’s merit for designation under the Ontario Heritage Act. 
 

Attachments 
Appendix: Heritage Impact Study 

 

 

 

Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of Community Services 

 

Prepared by:   Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator 
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Preface:  This Heritage Impact Statement was first prepared in 2012


to address the proposed demolition of the North Building at the


University of Toronto Mississauga campus.  Only a portion of the


building was demolished at that time.  This Statement was revised


in April, 2016 to address the proposed demolition of the remainder


of the building and to update the report to conform to new Terms


of Reference by the City of Mississauga.  During the course of that


research it also was discovered that elements of the historical


description of the building in the original report were incorrect.


These have been corrected here.


1.  Introduction


This Heritage Impact Statement focuses on the North Building, part


of the University of Toronto Mississauga campus at 3359


Mississauga Rd., Mississauga ON.  The North Building is not directly


accessible from Mississauga Rd., but faces to the north the Outer


Circle Rd., an internal road within the campus; and to the south a


partially developed sports field and pedestrian pathway known as


the Five Minute Walk.


This Heritage Impact Statement was requested by Planning Staff at


the City of Mississauga to support an application by the University


to allow a proposed development that would involve the demolition


of the North Building.  The entire University of Toronto Mississauga


campus is located in the Mississauga Road Scenic Route Cultural


Landscape and the University of Toronto at Mississauga (UTM)


Cultural Landscape recognized and regulated by the City of


Mississauga.


“Cultural landscapes are settings that enhance community


vibrancy, aesthetic quality, distinctiveness, sense of history and/or


sense of place.  The City of Mississauga adopted a Cultural


Landscape Inventory in 2005.  It is the first municipality in the


province to do so.  All cultural landscapes are listed on the City’s


Heritage Register.  Most landscapes include numerous properties.


There are approximately 60 landscapes or features, visually


distinctive objects and unique places within landscapes, on the


City’s Heritage Register.


.  .  .  Cultural Landscapes can be defined as a setting which has


enhanced a community’s vibrancy, aesthetic quality,


distinctiveness, sense of history or sense of place.”


(City of Mississauga website)
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The Cultural Landscape Inventory defines and describes the


fundamental characteristics of the Mississauga Road Cultural


Landscape and University of Toronto (UTM) Cultural landscape as


follows:


“Mississauga Road is one of the oldest roads in Mississauga.  Its


alignment varies from being part of the normal road grid in the


north to a curvilinear alignment in the south following the top of


bank of the Credit River.  The scenic quality of the road is notable


because it traverses a variety of topography and varying land use


from old established residential neighbourhoods to new industrial


and commercial areas.  From Streetsville south the boulevards and


adjacent landscapes are home to some of the oldest and most


spectacular trees in the City.  It is acknowledged as an important


cultural landscape because of its role as a pioneer road and its


scenic interest and quality.”
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 “Initiated as a satellite suburban campus of the University of


Toronto, the University of Toronto at Missisauga (UTM), has and


continues to evolve into a mature and well respected centre of


learning.  Nestled against the west bank of the Credit River, the


university takes advantage of its wonderful setting, locating


buildings on prominent landform and table lands to take best


advantage of views to the river valley with its forested table land


and mature treed slopes.  The campus grounds have struck a good


balance between preserving and enhancing natural areas and


developing manicured grounds for campus activities.  The campus


has an interesting portfolio of buildings ranging from modern to


newer international styled structures.  As the campus matures,


this range of styles will expand and form an impressive collection


of architecturally significant buildings.  If the campus plan


continues to acknowledge an environmentally friendly, sustainable


balance between natural and developed landscape areas, the


campus will be unique among Ontario universities in terms of its


visual quality and character.  This site is recognized as a unique


cultural landscape within the City of Mississauga and one which is


expected to demonstrate leadership balancing development


requirements with the protection and enhancement of the natural


environment.  Lislehurst, the President's residence, is a heritage


designated structure for architectural and historical significance.”


(The Landplan Collaborative Ltd., Goldsmith, Borgal & Company


Ltd., North South Environmental Inc., Geodata Resources Inc.,


2005)
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The ability of a municipality to identify Cultural Heritage Landscapes


and to require a Heritage Impact Statement is mandated by the


Provincial Policy Statement (2005):


2.6.1 Significant built heritage resources and significant

cultural heritage landscapes shall be conserved.


2.6.3 Development and site alteration may be permitted

on adjacent lands to protected heritage property where the

proposed development and site alteration has been

evaluated and it has been demonstrated that the heritage

attributes of the protected heritage property will
be conserved.

Mitigative measures and/or alternative development
approaches may be required in order to conserve the

heritage attributes of the protected heritage

property affected by the adjacent development or site

alteration.

Where “cultural heritage landscape” means “a defined


geographical area of heritage significance which has been


modified by human activities and is valued by a community. It


involves a grouping(s) of individual heritage features such as


structures, spaces, archaeological sites and natural elements,


which together form a significant type of heritage form,


distinctive from that of its constituent elements or parts.


Examples may include, but are not limited to, heritage


conservation districts designated under the Ontario Heritage Act;


and villages, parks, gardens, battlefields, mainstreets and


neighbourhoods, cemeteries, trailways and industrial complexes


of cultural heritage value” and where “significant” means “in


regard to cultural heritage and archaeology, resources that are


valued for the important contribution they make to our


understanding of the history of a place, an event, or a people” and


where “conserved” means “the identification, protection, use


and/or management of cultural heritage and archaeological
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resources in such a way that their heritage values, attributes and


integrity are retained. This may be addressed through a


conservation plan or heritage impact assessment”.


The “Mississauga Plan”, the City of Mississauga’s most recent


Official Plan (currently under appeal) also has broad requirements


for Heritage Conservation and the protection of existing, stable


neighborhoods, including 1.1.4 (e):


Where there is a conflict between the policies


relating to the natural and cultural heritage and


the rest of this Plan, the direction that provides


more protection to the natural and cultural


heritage will prevail.


6.3 - 8



6


1.1  Terms of Reference


The City requires that at a minimum a Cultural Landscape


Heritage Impact Statement must include the following:


1.  General requirements:


‐property owner contact information


‐location map


‐a site plan of existing conditions, to include buildings,


structures, roadways, driveways, drainage features, trees


and tree canopy, fencing and topographical features


‐a written and visual inventory (photographs) of all


elements of the property that contribute to its cultural


heritage value, including overall site views.  For buildings,


internal photographs and floor plans are also required.


‐a site plan and elevations of the proposed development


‐for cultural landscapes or features that transcend a


single property, a streetscape plan is required, in


additions to photographs of adjacent properties


‐qualifications of the author completing the report


‐three hard copies and a PDF


2.  Addressing the Cultural Landscape or Feature Criteria:


(only necessary to address those criteria listed in the


relevant cultural heritage landscape)

Landscape Environment:


‐scenic and visual quality


‐natural environment


‐horticultural interest


‐landscape design, type and technological interest


Built Environment:


‐aesthetic and visual quality


‐consistent with pre WW 2 environs


‐consistent scale of built features


‐unique architectural features/buildings


‐designated structures


Historical Associations:


‐illustrates a style, trend or pattern


‐direct association with important person or event


‐illustrates an important phase of social or physical


development


‐illustrates the work of an important designer


‐significant ecological interest


‐landmark value


3.  Property information:


‐chain of title, date of construction, builder,


architect/designer, landscape architect or personal


histories


4.  Impact of Development or Site Alteration:
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‐destruction of any, or part of any, significant heritage


attributes or features


‐alteration that is not sympathetic, or is incompatible,


with the historic fabric and appearance


‐shadows created that alter the appearance of a heritage


attribute or change the viability of an associated natural


feature, or plantings, such as a garden


‐isolation of a heritage attribute from its surrounding


environment, context or a significant relationship


‐direct or indirect obstruction of significant views or vistas


within, from, or of built and natural features


‐a change in land use where the change in use negates


the properties cultural heritage value


‐land disturbances such as change in grade that alter


soils and drainage patterns that adversely affect cultural


heritage resources


5.  Mitigation Measures:


‐alternative development approaches


‐isolating development and site alteration from the


significant built and natural heritage features and vistas


‐design guidelines that harmonize mass, setback, setting


and materials


‐limiting density and height
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‐allowing only compatible infill and additions


‐reversible alterations


6.  Qualifications:


‐The qualifications and background of the person


completing the Heritage Impact Statement will be


included in the report.  The author must demonstrate a


level of professional understanding and competence in


the heritage conservation field of study


7.  Recommendation:


‐the consultant should provide a recommendation as to


whether the subject property is worthy of heritage


designation in accordance with the heritage designation


criteria per Regulation 9/06, Ontario Heritage Act


1.2  Context


The University of Toronto Mississauga (hereafter “UTM”) campus is


a 250 acre site located at the north‐east corner of Dundas St. West


and Mississauga Rd.  The site is bordered to the west by Mississauga


Rd.; to the south and east by the Credit River and to the north by


single family residential development and parkland associated with


the Credit River.  The campus comprises 26 major buildings


including academic, athletic, library and student housing serving


12,000 students in science and liberal arts disciplines.  The


topography of the site is rolling and the site is partially treed and


heavily influenced by its location adjacent to the Credit River.
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1.2.1 The Site


For the purposes of this Heritage Impact Statement the site is the


area occupied by the present North Building and the immediate


environs.


1.2.2  Heritage properties impacted


For the purposes of this Heritage Impact Statement the extent of


heritage properties impacted is limited to the present North


Building.


1.3  Site Analysis


The North Building is bounded to the north by the Outer Ring Rd., a


private road accessed from Mississauga Road that curves around


the perimeter of the campus and connects its major buildings and


functions.  To the east is a parking lot that serves the building.  To


the south is a grassed playing field known as the “North Field” a


tennis court and some undeveloped grassed and treed space.  To


the south‐west is Erindale Hall, a recently completed 4‐storey


student residence.  To the west is the Erindale Studio Theater, a


one‐storey brick building and further west is student housing in low‐


rise, townhouse type configuration.


1.3.1  Ecological Interest


The existing topography of the land is generally maintained in this


area, but the site was obviously stripped of all native vegetation at


the time of construction in the 1960’s.  There is some reasonably


dense but random re‐planting surrounding the building that will be
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lost as the building is removed.  This is not a significant ecological


concern.


1.4  Description of Heritage Building


The North Building is a 2‐storey, flat roofed building of


approximately 9459 gross square meters.  The building is situated


on a sloping site such that fully two stories of the building are


exposed on the southerly and easterly sides but only the upper


story is exposed on the northerly and westerly sides.  The main


entrance is on the north side and on the upper level, however the


pedestrian and vehicular circulation patterns are such that


secondary entrances at the west and south are more frequently


used.  The building was built in two phases, with the westerly and


central portions completed in 1967 and the easterly portion


completed in 1969.  The original and addition are seamless,


however, with no outward indication that an addition has taken


place.


The building is clad on the exterior with a mix of brown brick and


pre‐cast concrete “double‐T” sections hung from the exterior walls


to form an array of vertical fins.  The pre‐cast sections clad all of the


second floor of the building and some of the main floor.  It is not


clear if this distinction was made for architectural reasons or in the


anticipation of future additions to the building.  At the top, these


fins are cut with a slight chamfer just below a metal parapet capping


detail.  Where the pre‐cast is used on both upper and lower levels


there is also a wide chamfered joint running horizontally around the


building corresponding to the second floor level.
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Glazing in the areas of pre‐cast are tall, thin units cut into the pre‐


cast between the individual fins.  There is also some typical glazed


curtain‐wall along the southern elevation of the building.


At the front (north) entrance a projecting concrete portico is a


significant feature, as is a simple but well detailed angular brick


chimney.


The interior of the building consists generally of exposed concrete


block exterior walls, concrete block interior walls, limited areas of


drywall walls (most appear to be newer construction), slab doors in


metal frames, vinyl composition tile floors, typical metal pan type


interior stairs with terrazzo infill, T‐bar acoustic ceilings with drop in


lighting, etc. Corridors are narrow and generally without exterior


glazing except for areas of glazed curtain wall at the main stairwells.


There is one larger space near the front door which serves as a kind


of lobby, but this has not really been developed for this purpose.


The overall look of the interior of the building is one of an


institutional building where practicality and construction economy


were paramount considerations.  There is no obvious design intent


here.


 There have been numerous major and minor renovations over


time.
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2.1  Site History


The lands upon which the UTM campus sits are known as Lot 4,


Range 2 North of Dundas Street, Racey Tract, and were part of the


second purchase of lands by the British Crown from the Mississauga


First Nation.  The Crown had first purchased lands in this area from


the Mississaugas in 1805.  This was for lands south of the present


Eglinton Avenue but excluding a strip of land one mile either side of


the Credit River.  In 1818 there was a further purchase of lands


north of Eglinton Avenue and in 1820 two further treaties that


ceded the Credit Valley lands and that left the Mississaugas with


just one 200 acre parcel near the present Mississaugua (sic) Golf


Club.  (Part of this became known as the “Racey Tract” because a


Major Thomas Racey had been given property here for the purpose


of establishing a town and mill).1

The original lot organization in these second purchase lands is


unusual in that what would typically be called “Concessions” are


called “Ranges”.  The Racey Tract is also unusual in that the lots are


50 acres in size as opposed to the 100 acre lots typical elsewhere.


Lot 4, Range 2 is one of these typical lots, located just east of what


is now Mississauga Rd.  Its northern boundary is the present Outer


Circle Road.  The southern boundary runs right through the present


South Building and can no longer be discerned on the ground, nor


can the east or west boundaries.


1
 Fitzgibbon, Meaghan, “Searching for the Mississauga of the Credit River:


Treaties”, Heritage Mississauga website.


1877 Peel Atlas showing 1820 Purchase outlined in red, Racey Tract in green, Lot 4,


Range 2 in black


Property records indicate that the Lot was first deeded to Thomas S.


McEwen in 1928, then to John McGill in 1829. It was transferred to


Elllitt Sproule (who also appears as Ellett Sprowl in the record) in


1871, then back to John McGill in 1886.  The McGills and Sproules


were both local farming families and the use of the property was


presumably agricultural.  In 1953 the children of John McGill sold


the property to the Erindale Sand & Gravel Company.  On December


29, 1967 we see the transfer of the property to the Governors of


the University of Toronto.  The date of this transfer is curious


because the University has by that time been operating for several


months at the site and the purchase from the Sand & Gravel


Company had been announced in the press some years before.  The


reason for this delayed transaction is unknown.
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2.2  University of Toronto interest


The University of Toronto began to consider as early as 1956 the


possibility of establishing new campus colleges remote from the


Downtown campus, and a 1962 Report of the Presidents of the


Universities of Ontario to the Advisory Committee on University


Affairs recommended the creation of two colleges in association


with the University of Toronto to be located at the eastern and


western parts of the City.  This led to a University of Toronto


Planning Committee report in 1963 called “A Provisional Plan for


Two Off‐Campus Colleges in the University of Toronto” which was


subsequently adopted.2  These would become Erindale and


Scarborough Colleges.


2
 Erindale Campus User’s Committee Report 1966, p. 2


Present UTM site.  Lot4, Range 2 is in red.  North Building is in gray.
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The plan was quickly amended, however, and instead of a plan for a


college only the planners recommended that “Erindale will begin as


a constituent college of the University of Toronto, but plans for


development will be flexible enough to permit it to become a


university in its own right if this becomes desirable”.3  “The essential


point is that Erindale cannot be regarded simply as an


undergraduate college offering a liberal arts degree where


equipment and amenities are minimal.  We are instead founding a


new part of a highly prestigious university community.  We are not


second class citizens of that community, hence our need of facilities


for research as well as for teaching.  As we develop we will play a


progressively important role in the graduate work of the


university.”4  This ambition would have significant impact on the


planning of the campus and on the amount of land required to


house it.


2.2.1  Property acquisition


The University acquired the 60 acre Reginald Watkins property in


July, 1963 for $300,000 with the intention of using this as a nucleus


for the new campus.  This was Lot 4, Range3, NDS and was


important in that it was the site of the “Lislehurst” mansion which is


now the Principal’s residence at UTM and an important part of


campus life.  The reasons behind the choice of this property and the


extent to which other properties were considered is unclear.  The


University’s advisor in purchasing the Watkins estate was the Don


Mills Development Corporation, and it was suggested at the time


that “it made no recommendation on alternatives, nor did the


3
 Ibid.


4
 Ibid., p. 7


University seek any”,5 although U of T Vice‐President F. R. Stone


commented that “the Watkins property was something so clearly


ideal that we didn’t go farther”6.  In 1964 the purchase of 88 acres


from the Erindale Sand & Gravel Company was announced. This was


part of Lots 3 and 4, Range 1 and part of Lot 3 and all of Lot 4, Range


2.  (This property comprises the majority of the now‐developed part


of the campus south of the Outer Circle Rd. including the North


Building.)  Negotiations were also underway for the purchase of


adjacent lands.


Early in 1965 the University short‐cut these negotiations, however,


and used its powers under the University of Toronto Act to serve


notice of expropriation on 31 private homeowners with properties


totaling 123 acres on both sides of Mississauga Rd. (then called


Streetsville Rd.) north and west of the proposed campus.  The


intended effect of these expropriations would increase the size of


the campus to almost 225 acres.


5
 U. of T. steamrollers into Erindale, Toronto Star, June 25, 1965.


6
 The people who pay for a Varsity “land grab”, Toronto Star, June 26,


1965.
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The affected residents were incredulous at the “brutal manner in


which the cudgel of expropriation” was being used and complained


about the “outrageous use of public funds for the acquisition and


ultimate destruction of new homes when vacant lands are available


in the same area”7
 and swiftly organized themselves to oppose it.


The university explained that they had taken this step to prevent


speculation on the affected lands.


The residents appealed to their Member of Provincial Parliament


but found him somewhat of a reluctant ally.  Their representative


was Bill Davis, Minister of Education in the Robarts Government


(and later Premier), and a staunch advocate of the Erindale campus.


Davis was presiding over a policy of tremendous growth in post‐


secondary education in Ontario in the 1960’s and this was a key


component of it.


The residents hired Brampton lawyer Jim Beatty to represent them


and continued a campaign of protest, and on June 30 the University


called a temporary halt to the expropriation proceedings.  Early in


August the University backed down, at Davis’ urging, and withdrew


the expropriations.8

The University would go on to acquire some of these properties but


the threat of expropriation was not used again.


7
 These People Are Angry Because These Houses Have To Go . . . , Toronto


Telegram, June 11, 1965

8
 Erindale Home‐Owners Win University Expropriation “War”, Mississauga


News, August  11, 1965
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2.3  Master Planning


The University commissioned architect John Andrews, who had


done the master planning at Scarborough College and was also the


Chair of the University’s Department of Architecture, to do the


Master Plan for Erindale.  The result was a progressive plan that


featured “respect for and response to topography, separation of


pedestrian and vehicular traffic, a climate‐controlled pedestrian


street system, integration of resident and commuter students,


avoidance of rigid departmental structures, a strong emphasis on


meeting and communal spaces, the use of television as a teaching


aid, experimentation with modular building systems and throughout


an elaborate orchestration of architectural spaces . . . . “9  The basis


of this plan was a monolithic building to be located at the southerly


end of the campus and sited to take advantage of the slope created


by the former gravel quarry.


For reasons unknown, the Andrews plan was not accepted and a


new team headed by architects Raymond Moriyama and A. D.


Margison & Associates was put in place in 1967.


Moriyama and Margison would create a plan similar in its key


aspects to Andrews, with the campus focused on a single, flexible,


expandable, monumental structure located at the southerly part of


the Campus.


The Moriyama and Margison report makes no mention of the North


Building with the exception of one site plan that refers to the


“existing building”.


9
 Richards, Larry Wayne, University of Toronto, Princeton Architectural


Press, New York, 2009, p. 212
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2.4  Early Facilities Planning


Scarborough College was projected to open in 1965 and Erindale


campus in 1966.  Scarborough did open on time, but Erindale was


delayed (Erindale students were also first enrolled in 1965 but


classes were held in rented premises at T. L. Kennedy Secondary


School)10.  The Erindale Campus User’s Committee report of 1966


noted that “it was not possible to open Erindale in 1966.  Thus an


opening in 1967 has become imperative . . . “11 and further “we


were directed to initiate planning for Erindale as soon as possible


and to open in 1967 . . . since time is now short the first operation


will have to be in temporary accommodation of some kind . . . in


discussions with the Director of Physical Plant and his staff the


practical possibility was conceived of starting in accommodation


which will form a permanent part of the campus.  Such


accommodation would have a temporary use for academic and


administrative purposes in 1967, being changed at a later stage to


other uses in the overall campus plan”.12   This “temporary


accommodation of some kind” is what we now know as the North


Building.


2.4.1  North Building Construction


Early in October, 1966, the Port Credit Weekly announced plans “To


Break Ground for New Erindale College Mid Oct.” and explained


that the new building would suit a projected initial enrollment of


200 students but that plans for the complete college were well


underway and that at that time it was anticipated that “the original


10
 Richards, P. 212


11
 Erindale Campus User’s Committee 1966, p. 3


12
 Ibid, p. 9‐10
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college building will house administrative offices and provide space


for special research work”13.


Architects for the building were Levine & Lawrence of Don Mills and


general contractors were Olympia & York Industrial Developments


Limited, also of Don Mills.


The building provided lecture rooms, offices and science rooms on


the upper floor and library, common room, cafeteria and smaller


classrooms on the lower floor.  Mechanical and storage uses were


gathered in the windowless northern part of the lower floor.


It was a simple, efficient building and ready for occupancy by the fall


of 1967.


2.4.2  North Building Addition


In 1969, due to continuing delays with the construction of the


planned major campus buildings, the North Building received an


addition to the east.  The effect of this addition was to


approximately double the size of the building.  Architect for this


work for G. Edward Lutman of Toronto, but the addition merely


extended the appearance and detailing of the first building.


Despite this addition, the public and media emphasis continued to


be on the projected buildings at the southern part of the campus


and on the nature of the North Building as temporary.  A campus


guide called “Erindale College, University of Toronto”, undated but


apparently from about 1969 noted that “the immediate short‐term


building program was completed in 1969, and the College moved


13
 Port Credit Weekly, October, 1966
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into Phase 1 of its long term program.  Under this a series of


connected structures will, according to present plans, ultimately


provide the College with the most advanced facilities for learning


and research.  Some $7 million is being spent on the first group of


these buildings, which should be ready in the autumn of 1970.”14

2.4.3  Completion of the South Building


The South or Davis Building was completed in 1971 and with this the


focus of attention turned to the new facility and the North Building


became very much secondary in the activities of the Campus.  These


would be the only two significant buildings on the Campus until the


1974 construction of the small Crossroads Building, used for student


and faculty offices as well as retail space.15

3.1  Architectural Analysis


The North Building clearly has its roots in the Modernist and


Brutalist styles of Architecture.  Modernism is an over‐arching


movement in 20th
 century architecture that generally prised


simplicity and clarity of forms, elimination of applied detail, visible


expression of structure,  expression of materials in a way that did


not attempt to conceal their true character or mimic another, and


the use of industrially produced materials often in repetitive ways.


These often result in bold horizontal or vertical lines which are


important elements in the style.  “Form follows function” and “truth


14
 Erindale College University of Toronto, undated, Mississauga Library


Canadiana Room, p. 6

15
 The Medium Online, The Voice of the University of Toronto Mississauga,


blog September 26, 2011
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to materials” are maxims commonly associated with modernist


architecture.


Brutalism was a mid 20th
 century movement derived from the early


20th
 century modernism.  Brutalist buildings tended to be of raw


concrete construction and like modernist buildings featured


repetitive use of elements, repetitive glazing, and angular forms


with lack of ornamentation or detail.  Brutalist buildings tended to


be more sculptural in form, sometimes introduced curving or


angular elements and as the name implied did so in a way that


created a more formidable, intimidating appearance than did other


modernist buildings.  Modernism, especially International Style,


tended to feature larger windows in a curtain configuration allowing


more admission of natural light into the building and when


expressing  structure tended to do so in a way that minimized the


size of the elements.  Brutalist buildings generally had fewer


windows, often punched into the building fabric and when


expressing structure did so in a massive, sometimes grotesque way.


These buildings come heavily down to the ground and often feature


heavy, apparently unsupported projecting elements.  The style was


well suited to government buildings, schools and shopping centers


and was very popular into the 1970’s, when renewed interest in


ornamentation and historical detail gave way to Postmodern


influence.


Many university buildings built during this time are Brutalist,


including the John Robarts Library at the University of Toronto, the


Scott Library at York University and the original Scarborough College


building.  The South Building at UTM is also an example of Brutalist


architecture.


UTM South Building showing Brutalist architectural influences
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The North Building is clearly Modernist in its form and in its use of


exposed concrete materials and the repetitive elements.  The


narrow windows and lack of expression of the building structure


and Brutalist influences.  It is a weak and timid execution of either


style, however.  It lacks the fineness and attention to detail of a


good Modernist building and the bold expressiveness characteristic


of Brutalist buildings.  The appearance is bland and somewhat


generic but not unpleasant.  Larry Wayne Richards remarks that


“from certain angles, its walls of repetitive, vertical precast concrete


panels and fins transcend monotony, appearing windowless and


highly abstract”16.


One building which is highly similar to it is the present Petro‐Canada


(former British American Oil Company) research facility at the


Sheridan Park Research Community in south Mississauga.  This is an


interesting precedent, because Sheridan Park was at its inception in


1965 a highly regarded and cutting edge industrial research campus.


The similarities between these buildings are significant, with the


vertical concrete fins, mix of concrete and brick cladding and


vertical fenestration arranged between the fins.  The Sheridan Park


building is a much more refined expression however, with an


elevated base detail that appears to make the building float off the


ground and more pleasing glazing proportions.


3.2 Subsequent Master Planning and Changing Priorities


Larry Wayne Richards has noted that the “from 1965 to 2000, UTM


generated five different (master) plans, resulting in the campus


16
 Richards, p. 225
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collage of divergent impulses that now exists.  This history of


moving in one direction for several years and then shifting to


another has left behind superimposed, half‐filled visions.”17

The “divergent impulses” identified by Richards are largely as


regards the character of the built form of the campus from the


original Andrews/Moriyama model of a single monolithic building to


the more complex model that has developed with multiple buildings


and circulation routes, and largely undefined interstitial spaces


between these buildings.  Part of the cause of this divergence has


been the continued use of the North Building for academic


purposes, something not considered in the early master planning,


and the north‐south circulation route (known as the Five Minute


Walk) that has developed as a result.


The most recent Master Plan attempts to address these issues by


seeking to create:


‐two defined pedestrian links intersecting at the center of the


campus (one of these is the present Five Minute Walk)


‐a ring road which contains and serves the majority of academic


buildings on campus


‐a series of courtyards


‐a central prominent green space to be redefined as the Campus


Green


‐preservation of and connection to the natural environment


‐the potential for an academic quad
18
.


17
 Richards, p. 212 

18
 Campus Master Plan, University of Toronto Mississauga, June 2011
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The proposed creation of the Campus Green, to be located at the


northerly part of the campus in the present underdeveloped field


area south of the North Building, is a significant departure from the


earlier campus planning.  This identifies a significant use for this


area and promises to create an importance and vitality here that


does not presently exist.  To bring this plan to fruition will require


significant change to this part of the campus, including removal of


the North Building.


3.3  The proposal


The proposal by Perkins + Will Architects is to replace the North


Building with a new building that would extend from the present


westerly extremity of the North Building to very near the recently


completed Instructional Center at the north‐east of the campus.


This new building would be a very contemporary expression heavily


glazed and transparent at grade with walls of vertical terra cotta


panels hung from the building at the upper levels.  Varying heights


and fenestration patterns give it an undulating quality, as does a


gentle curve on plan that breaks the monotony of the materials.


Spatially, the building will complete and enclose the proposed


Campus Green and serve to delineate the northernmost extent of


the campus.


This building will become an exciting part of the UTM campus and,


although not directly visible from Mississauga Road, an integral part


of the Cultural Landscape.  The UTM campus has matured into a


dense grouping of architecturally significant and dynamic buildings


with its own network of significant identifiable places, landscapes


and views.  The proposal to replace the North Building with this


much larger and more complex building will build upon this, will


create an anchor and focus at the northerly part of the campus and


further develop and define local culturally significant features such


as the 5 Minute Walk and Campus Green.


3.4  Cultural Heritage Analysis


The present North Building does have some cultural heritage


importance and interest to the City of Mississauga.  Despite the fact


that it was clearly never intended to be a major part of the UTM


campus it does have some interest as the first building to be built


there and the location of all classes until the completion of the


South Building in 1971.  The decision to locate a satellite campus of


the University of Toronto in Erindale, and the forward thinking at


the time that laid the foundation for an institution that could


develop into what is effectively a university of its own, had


profound importance in the growth of Mississauga.


The building also has a cultural importance for the campus in that


created the circulation route now known as the Five Minute Walk, a


feature that was unintended but that has continued to shape the


campus and that now is being formalized by the new Master Plan


and development proposal.


These cultural implications are not necessarily related to the fabric


or the built form of the building, however.


3.4.1  Views


There are no significant views of the building from the North.  There


are significant views of the building from the South, from the area


of the Five Minute Walk.  These will be conserved, and indeed


enhanced, by the proposal to create the Campus Green.
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3.5  Mitigation Measures


Extensive drawings records exist for the North Building, but it


should be thoroughly photographed and recorded prior to removal.


There are no materials worthy of salvage on site.


3.6  2016 Update


As of April 2016 the western part of the North Building has been


completely demolished and the remainder of the building is vacant


awaiting demolition.  The new Deerfield Hall has been constructed


on the site of the demolished portion.

New Deerfield Hall in background with North Building in foreground. View taken


from Outer Circle Rd.


North Building awaiting demolition.  Deerfield Hall in background.
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Site Plan showing portion of North Building demolished 2012, remainder proposed to be demolished 2016 and proposed buildings on the site
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View from Campus Green. Deerfield Hall at left
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View from Outer Circle Rd.
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View of Meeting Place
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4.1 Designation Criteria


The property must be evaluated under the criteria for designation


under the Ontario Heritage Act.


1.  The property has design value or physical value because it,


i.  is a rare, unique, representative or early example of a


style, type, expression, material or construction method.


ii.  displays a high degree of craftsmanship or artistic merit,


or


iii.  demonstrates a high degree of technical or scientific


achievement.


Analysis:  The exterior of the North Building is a weak and


generic example of Modernist architecture with some


Brutalist influence.  There is no significant attention given to


detailing and no obvious strong design intent.  The interior


of the building is very much lacking in design intent.  The


building’s overall character is very similar to high school and


college buildings commonly built during this era.


2.  The property has historical value or associative value because it,


i.  has direct associations with a theme, event, belief,


person, activity, organization or institution that is significant


to the community,


ii.  yields, or has the potential to yield, information that


contributes to an understanding of a community or culture,


or


iii.  demonstrates or reflects the work or ideas of an


architect, artist, builder, designer or theorist who is


significant to a community.


Analysis:  The North Building does have direct connections


with the founding of Erindale College, later UTM.  This was


an event of significance to the community.  This significance


is tempered, however, by the fact that at the time and


continuously afterward the building was always described


as temporary and far more significant attention directed


toward the South Building.  The chosen architects, Levine &


Levenson, were not of significance and left behind no legacy


of buildings.  By comparison, John Andrews and Raymond


Moriyama, architects who are associated with the campus


master planning and the design of the South Building, are


both highly significant.  The North Building does have


associations with Olympia & York, a company that went on


to become the largest property developer in the world until


its bankruptcy in the 1990’s, but this relationship is not


significant.  Olympia & York were prolific builders and this


was not a signature project for them.


3.  The property has contextual value because it,


i.  is important in defining, maintaining or supporting the


character of an area,
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ii.  is physically, functionally, visually or historically linked to


its surroundings, or


iii.  is a landmark.


Analysis:  The North Building is not visible from Mississauga


Road.  As regards vehicular circulation, it is visible only from


the Outer Ring Rd., where it presents a not unpleasant but


low and generic appearance.  The aspect from the South is


more interesting and also more culturally important as the


terminus of the Five Minute Walk.  As such, the building is


somewhat linked to its surroundings but in a minimal way.


The new building proposed for the site will serve the same


role but do so in a much more obvious and expressive way.


The North Building is not a landmark.


Conclusion:

The North Building at UTM is of some minimal contextual


value and historical value.  It is not of significant


architectural value.  The contextual and historical value


does not rise to the level that it meets the requirements for


designation under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act.

8.  Provincial Policy Statement:


Under the Provincial Policy Statement,


“Conserved:  means the identification, protection, use


and/or management of cultural heritage and archaeological


resources in such a way that their heritage values,


attributes and integrity are retained.”


Analysis:


Under this definition, the North Building does not warrant


conservation.
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Date: 2016/05/19 
 
To: Chair and Members of Heritage Advisory Committee 
 
From: Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of 

Community Services  

Originator’s files: 
 

Meeting date: 
2016/06/14 
 

 

 

Subject 
Request to Demolish Heritage Listed Properties 

6, 10 and 12 Queen Street South 

(Ward 11) 

 

Recommendation 
That the properties at 6, 10 and 12 Queen Street South, which are listed on the City’s Heritage 
Register, are not worthy of heritage designation, and consequently, that the owner’s request to 
demolish proceed through the applicable process. 

Background 
Section 27.3 of the Ontario Heritage Act states that structures or buildings on property listed on 

the City’s Heritage Register cannot be removed or demolished without at least 60 days notice to 
Council. This legislation allows time for Council to review the property’s cultural heritage value 
to determine if the property merits designation. 

The owner of the subject properties has filed a site plan application (SP 11 147) to replace the 

existing built form with a two storey building across the three properties. The properties are 

listed on the City’s Heritage Register as they form part of the Streetsville Village Core Cultural 
Landscape. This landscape is notable because it retains the distinct scale and character of a 

rural farming town. 

Comments 
The property owner requests permission to demolish the existing buildings. The Heritage Impact 

Study, by Strickland Mateljan Design and Architecture, is attached as Appendix 1. It is the 

consultant’s conclusion that the built form at 6, 10 and 12 Queen Street South is not worthy of 

heritage designation. Staff concurs with this opinion. 

The landscaping and urban design related issues will be reviewed as part of the Site Plan 

review process to ensure the project respects the character of the surrounding community. 
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Financial Impact 
There is no financial impact. 

Conclusion 
The owner of 6, 10 and 12 Queen Street South has requested permission to demolish the 

structures on these properties, which are listed on the City’s Heritage Register. The applicant 
has submitted a documentation report which provides information which does not support the 

properties’ merit for designation under the Ontario Heritage Act. 

Attachments 
Appendix 1: Heritage Impact Study 

 

 
 

 

Paul Mitcham, P. Eng, MBA, Commissioner of Community Services 

 

Prepared by:   P. Wubbenhorst, Senior Heritage Coordinator 
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Oǀeƌǀieǁ: 

This ƌepoƌt is pƌepaƌed to addƌess the pƌoposed deŵolitioŶ aŶd ƌe‐deǀelopŵeŶt of the 
pƌopeƌties at ϲ, ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh, Mississauga, ON.  The legal desĐƌiptioŶ of 
these pƌopeƌties is Paƌt Lots ϮϮ & Ϯϯ, PlaŶ “TRϮ, CitǇ of Mississauga ;ϲ QueeŶ “t. “outhͿ; 
Paƌt Lots Ϯϭ & ϮϮ, PlaŶ “TRϮ, Paƌt Ϯ, CitǇ of Mississauga ;ϭϬ QueeŶ “t. “outhͿ; aŶd Paƌt 
Lot Ϯϭ, PlaŶ “TRϮ, CitǇ of Mississauga ;ϭϮ QueeŶ “t. “outhͿ. 

RiĐk MateljaŶ of “tƌiĐklaŶd MateljaŶ DesigŶ AssoĐiates Ltd. ǁas eŶgaged ďǇ CaŶTaŵ 
Gƌoup ;ageŶts foƌ the oǁŶeƌs   ;ϲ QueeŶ “t. “outhͿ 
aŶd Baƌjo “tƌeetsǀille IŶĐ. ;ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ “t. “outhͿͿ to Đoŵplete a Heƌitage IŵpaĐt 
“tudǇ aŶd to ĐoŵŵeŶt oŶ aŶ oƌigiŶal desigŶ ďǇ Battaglia AƌĐhiteĐt IŶĐ.  The site aŶd 
eǆistiŶg dǁelliŶg ǁeƌe photogƌaphed aŶd ŵeasuƌed iŶ August, ϮϬϭϯ aŶd Apƌil, ϮϬϭϰ.  A 
ChaiŶ of Title seaƌĐh ǁas peƌfoƌŵed ďǇ “tepheŶ Nott CoŶǀeǇaŶĐiŶg “eƌǀiĐes of 
BƌaŵptoŶ, ON.  The iŶfoƌŵatioŶ fƌoŵ this seaƌĐh ǁas used to estaďlish the tiŵeliŶes 
aŶd oǁŶeƌship of the pƌopeƌtǇ, as set out iŶ “eĐtioŶ ϯ aŶd the appeŶdiǆ to this 
doĐuŵeŶt.  

This pƌopeƌtǇ is loĐated ǁithiŶ tǁo Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐapes ;“tƌeetsǀille Village Coƌe aŶd 
Mississauga Road “ĐeŶiĐ RouteͿ ƌeĐogŶized aŶd ƌegulated ďǇ the CitǇ of Mississauga. 

͞Cultuƌal laŶdsĐapes aƌe settiŶgs that eŶhaŶĐe ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ ǀiďƌaŶĐǇ, aesthetiĐ ƋualitǇ, 
distiŶĐtiǀeŶess, seŶse of histoƌǇ aŶd/oƌ seŶse of plaĐe.  The CitǇ of Mississauga adopted a Cultuƌal 
LaŶdsĐape IŶǀeŶtoƌǇ iŶ ϮϬϬϱ.  It is the fiƌst ŵuŶiĐipalitǇ iŶ the pƌoǀiŶĐe to do so.  All Đultuƌal 
laŶdsĐapes aƌe listed oŶ the CitǇ’s Heƌitage Registeƌ.  Most laŶdsĐapes iŶĐlude Ŷuŵeƌous 
pƌopeƌties.  Theƌe aƌe appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϲϬ laŶdsĐapes oƌ featuƌes, ǀisuallǇ distiŶĐtiǀe oďjeĐts aŶd 
uŶiƋue plaĐes ǁithiŶ laŶdsĐapes, oŶ the CitǇ’s Heƌitage Registeƌ. 

.  .  .  Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐapes ĐaŶ ďe defiŶed as a settiŶg ǁhiĐh has eŶhaŶĐed a ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ’s 
ǀiďƌaŶĐǇ, aesthetiĐ ƋualitǇ, distiŶĐtiǀeŶess, seŶse of histoƌǇ oƌ seŶse of plaĐe.͟ 

;CitǇ of Mississauga ǁeďsiteͿ 

The Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐape IŶǀeŶtoƌǇ defiŶes aŶd desĐƌiďes the fuŶdaŵeŶtal ĐhaƌaĐteƌistiĐs 
of these LaŶdsĐapes as folloǁs: 

“tƌeetsǀille: 

͞Despite the eŶĐiƌĐleŵeŶt of “tƌeetsǀille ďǇ eŶĐƌoaĐhiŶg uƌďaŶizatioŶ oǀeƌ the past tǁeŶtǇ  Ǉeaƌs, 
the ŵaiŶ Đoƌe of the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ ƌetaiŶs the distiŶĐt sĐale aŶd ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of a ƌuƌal faƌŵiŶg toǁŶ.  
Neǁ deǀelopŵeŶts ĐoŶtiŶue to ƌespeĐt the sĐale of shop fƌoŶts aloŶg the ŵaiŶ poƌtioŶ of the 
stƌeet aŶd loĐal featuƌes haǀe Đƌept iŶto the ŵaŶǇ foƌeĐouƌt ǁalls fƌoŶtiŶg ďuildiŶgs to the Ŷoƌth 
eŶd of the Đoƌe aƌea.  BeĐause of its iŶtegƌatioŶ ǁith the suƌƌouŶdiŶg deǀelopŵeŶt, the Đoƌe aƌea 
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ƌeŵaiŶs a loĐal seƌǀiĐe ĐeŶtƌe to its suƌƌouŶdiŶg ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ ‐ alďeit to a ŵuĐh laƌgeƌ populatioŶ 
ďase.  Caƌe should ďe takeŶ to eŶsuƌe that the appeaƌaŶĐe of “tƌeetsǀille, iŶĐludiŶg eǆtaŶt 
ĐhuƌĐhes, Đeŵeteƌies aŶd puďliĐ ďuildiŶgs, is ƌetaiŶed iŶ the faĐe of futuƌe deǀelopŵeŶt pƌessuƌes 
to eŶsuƌe that the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of this paƌt of Mississauga ƌeŵaiŶs iŶtaĐt.  Theƌe aƌe oǀeƌ ŶiŶetǇ 
heƌitage pƌopeƌties listed, ŵaŶǇ of ǁhiĐh aƌe desigŶated.  “tƌeetsǀille is ƌeĐogŶized as a 
sigŶifiĐaŶt Đultuƌal laŶdsĐape ďeĐause it ƌetaiŶs a poƌtfolio of heƌitage ďuildiŶgs of a ĐoŶsisteŶt 
sĐale aŶd poƌtƌaǇs a peƌiod laŶdsĐape of a sŵall ǀillage.͟ 

Mississauga Road “ĐeŶiĐ Route: 

͞Mississauga Road is oŶe of the oldest ƌoads iŶ Mississauga.  Its aligŶŵeŶt ǀaƌies fƌoŵ ďeiŶg paƌt 
of the Ŷoƌŵal ƌoad gƌid iŶ the Ŷoƌth to a ĐuƌǀiliŶeaƌ aligŶŵeŶt iŶ the south folloǁiŶg the top of 
ďaŶk of the Cƌedit Riǀeƌ.  The sĐeŶiĐ ƋualitǇ of the ƌoad is Ŷotaďle ďeĐause it tƌaǀeƌses a ǀaƌietǇ of 
topogƌaphǇ aŶd ǀaƌǇiŶg laŶd use fƌoŵ old estaďlished ƌesideŶtial Ŷeighďouƌhoods to Ŷeǁ 
iŶdustƌial aŶd ĐoŵŵeƌĐial aƌeas.  Fƌoŵ “tƌeetsǀille south the ďouleǀaƌds aŶd adjaĐeŶt laŶdsĐapes 
aƌe hoŵe to soŵe of the oldest aŶd ŵost speĐtaĐulaƌ tƌees iŶ the CitǇ.  It is aĐkŶoǁledged as aŶ 
iŵpoƌtaŶt Đultuƌal laŶdsĐape ďeĐause of its ƌole as a pioŶeeƌ ƌoad aŶd its sĐeŶiĐ iŶteƌest aŶd 
ƋualitǇ.͟ 

;The LaŶdplaŶ Collaďoƌatiǀe Ltd., Goldsŵith, Boƌgal & CoŵpaŶǇ Ltd., Noƌth “outh EŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶtal 
IŶĐ., Geodata ResouƌĐes IŶĐ., ϮϬϬϱͿ 

Teƌŵs of RefeƌeŶĐe: 

The CitǇ ƌeƋuiƌes that at a ŵiŶiŵuŵ a Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐape Heƌitage IŵpaĐt “tateŵeŶt 
ŵust iŶĐlude the folloǁiŶg: 

ϭ. GeŶeƌal ƌeƋuiƌeŵeŶts:

‐pƌopeƌtǇ oǁŶeƌ ĐoŶtaĐt iŶfoƌŵatioŶ 
‐loĐatioŶ ŵap 
‐a site plaŶ of eǆistiŶg ĐoŶditioŶs, to iŶĐlude ďuildiŶgs, stƌuĐtuƌes, ƌoadǁaǇs, dƌiǀeǁaǇs, dƌaiŶage 
featuƌes, tƌees aŶd tƌee ĐaŶopǇ, feŶĐiŶg aŶd topogƌaphiĐal featuƌes 
‐a ǁƌitteŶ aŶd ǀisual iŶǀeŶtoƌǇ ;photogƌaphsͿ of all eleŵeŶts of the pƌopeƌtǇ that ĐoŶtƌiďute to its 
Đultuƌal heƌitage ǀalue, iŶĐludiŶg oǀeƌall site ǀieǁs.  Foƌ ďuildiŶgs, iŶteƌŶal photogƌaphs aŶd flooƌ 
plaŶs aƌe also ƌeƋuiƌed. 
‐a site plaŶ aŶd eleǀatioŶs of the pƌoposed deǀelopŵeŶt 
‐foƌ Đultuƌal laŶdsĐapes oƌ featuƌes that tƌaŶsĐeŶd a siŶgle pƌopeƌtǇ, a stƌeetsĐape plaŶ is 
ƌeƋuiƌed, iŶ additioŶs to photogƌaphs of adjaĐeŶt pƌopeƌties 
‐ƋualifiĐatioŶs of the authoƌ ĐoŵpletiŶg the ƌepoƌt 

Ϯ. AddƌessiŶg the Cultuƌal LaŶdsĐape oƌ Featuƌe Cƌiteƌia:

‐sĐeŶiĐ aŶd ǀisual ƋualitǇ 
‐Ŷatuƌal eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt 
‐laŶdsĐape desigŶ 
‐aesthetiĐ aŶd ǀisual ƋualitǇ 
‐ĐoŶsisteŶt sĐale of ďuilt featuƌes 
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‐illustƌates a stǇle, tƌeŶd oƌ patteƌŶ 
‐illustƌates aŶ iŵpoƌtaŶt phase of soĐial oƌ phǇsiĐal deǀelopŵeŶt 
‐sigŶifiĐaŶt eĐologiĐal iŶteƌest 

ϯ. PƌopeƌtǇ iŶfoƌŵatioŶ:

‐ĐhaiŶ of title, date of ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ 

ϰ. IŵpaĐt of DeǀelopŵeŶt oƌ “ite AlteƌatioŶ:

‐destƌuĐtioŶ of aŶǇ, oƌ paƌt of aŶǇ, sigŶifiĐaŶt heƌitage attƌiďutes oƌ featuƌes 
‐alteƌatioŶ that is Ŷot sǇŵpathetiĐ, oƌ is iŶĐoŵpatiďle, ǁith the histoƌiĐ faďƌiĐ aŶd appeaƌaŶĐe 
‐shadoǁs Đƌeated that alteƌ the appeaƌaŶĐe of a heƌitage attƌiďute oƌ ĐhaŶge the ǀiaďilitǇ of aŶ 
assoĐiated Ŷatuƌal featuƌe, oƌ plaŶtiŶgs, suĐh as a gaƌdeŶ 
‐isolatioŶ of a heƌitage attƌiďute fƌoŵ its suƌƌouŶdiŶg eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶt, ĐoŶteǆt oƌ a sigŶifiĐaŶt 
ƌelatioŶship 
‐diƌeĐt oƌ iŶdiƌeĐt oďstƌuĐtioŶ of sigŶifiĐaŶt ǀieǁs oƌ ǀistas ǁithiŶ, fƌoŵ, oƌ of ďuilt aŶd Ŷatuƌal 
featuƌes 
‐a ĐhaŶge iŶ laŶd use ǁheƌe the ĐhaŶge iŶ use Ŷegates the pƌopeƌties Đultuƌal heƌitage ǀalue 
‐laŶd distuƌďaŶĐes suĐh as ĐhaŶge iŶ gƌade that alteƌ soils aŶd dƌaiŶage patteƌŶs that adǀeƌselǇ 
affeĐt Đultuƌal heƌitage ƌesouƌĐes 

ϱ. MitigatioŶ Measuƌes:

‐alteƌŶatiǀe deǀelopŵeŶt appƌoaĐhes 
‐isolatiŶg deǀelopŵeŶt aŶd site alteƌatioŶ fƌoŵ the sigŶifiĐaŶt ďuilt aŶd Ŷatuƌal heƌitage featuƌes 
aŶd ǀistas 
‐desigŶ guideliŶes that haƌŵoŶize ŵass, setďaĐk, settiŶg aŶd ŵateƌials 
‐liŵitiŶg deŶsitǇ aŶd height 
‐alloǁiŶg oŶlǇ Đoŵpatiďle iŶfill aŶd additioŶs 
‐ƌeǀeƌsiďle alteƌatioŶs 

ϲ. QualifiĐatioŶs:

‐The ƋualifiĐatioŶs aŶd ďaĐkgƌouŶd of the peƌsoŶ ĐoŵpletiŶg the Heƌitage IŵpaĐt “tateŵeŶt ǁill 
ďe iŶĐluded iŶ the ƌepoƌt.  The authoƌ ŵust deŵoŶstƌate a leǀel of pƌofessioŶal uŶdeƌstaŶdiŶg 
aŶd ĐoŵpeteŶĐe iŶ the heƌitage ĐoŶseƌǀatioŶ field of studǇ 

ϳ. ReĐoŵŵeŶdatioŶ:

‐the ĐoŶsultaŶt should pƌoǀide a ƌeĐoŵŵeŶdatioŶ as to ǁhetheƌ the suďjeĐt pƌopeƌtǇ is ǁoƌthǇ of 
heƌitage desigŶatioŶ iŶ aĐĐoƌdaŶĐe ǁith the heƌitage desigŶatioŶ Đƌiteƌia peƌ RegulatioŶ 9/Ϭϲ, 
OŶtaƌio Heƌitage AĐt 
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ϭ. GeŶeƌal ReƋuiƌeŵeŶts

PƌopeƌtǇ oǁŶeƌs: 

ϲ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh ǁas aĐƋuiƌed ďǇ its pƌeseŶt oǁŶeƌs iŶ DeĐ, ϮϬϬϱ.  ϭϬ QueeŶ “tƌeet 
“outh ǁas aĐƋuiƌed ďǇ its pƌeseŶt oǁŶeƌ iŶ OĐtoďeƌ, ϮϬϭϬ aŶd ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh iŶ 
OĐtoďeƌ, ϮϬϭϭ.  All of the oǁŶeƌs ŵaǇ ďe ĐoŶtaĐted thƌough theiƌ pƌojeĐt ŵaŶageƌ The 
CaŶTaŵ Gƌoup Ltd., PlaŶŶiŶg & BuildiŶg CoŶsultaŶts, ϴϱϬ TapsĐott Rd., UŶit ϱϭ, ToƌoŶto 
ON, ϰϭϲ ϯϯϱ ϯϯϱϯ. 

Site ŵap: 

CoŶteǆt: 

The pƌopeƌtǇ is loĐated oŶ the ǁest side of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh, south of BƌitaŶŶia Rd. 
aŶd Ŷoƌth of the histoƌiĐ Đoƌe of the Village of “tƌeetsǀille.  This is a tƌaŶsitioŶal 
ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ ĐhaƌaĐteƌized ďǇ sŵalleƌ, siŶgle faŵilǇ hoŵes that aƌe Ŷoǁ ďeiŶg ĐoŶǀeƌted 
to pƌofessioŶal, peƌsoŶal seƌǀiĐe aŶd ŵediĐal offiĐe uses.  Theƌe has also ďeeŶ 
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sigŶifiĐaŶt ƌe‐deǀelopŵeŶt aŶd iŶteŶsifiĐatioŶ iŶ this aƌea ǁith soŵe of the oldeƌ hoŵes 
ƌeplaĐed ďǇ laƌgeƌ, siŶgle faŵilǇ hoŵes aŶd also soŵe iŶfill toǁŶhouse deǀelopŵeŶt. 

To the Ŷoƌth aƌe puƌpose‐ďuilt iŶdustƌial aŶd ĐoŵŵeƌĐial ďuildiŶgs aŶd to the ǁest is 
the ƌailƌoad tƌaĐk. 

The east side of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh is geŶeƌallǇ ŵoƌe ƌegulaƌ as ƌegaƌds ďuilt foƌŵ aŶd 
lottiŶg patteƌŶ ;ƌefleĐtiŶg its lateƌ deǀelopŵeŶt – see ďeloǁͿ despite ŵuĐh ĐoŶǀeƌsioŶ 
of these oƌigiŶal ďuildiŶgs to ĐoŵŵeƌĐial use.  The ǁest side of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh is 
highlǇ iƌƌegulaƌ, hoǁeǀeƌ, ǁith ŵuĐh ƌedeǀelopŵeŶt aŶd iŶĐoŶsisteŶĐǇ iŶ laŶd use aŶd 
ďuilt foƌŵ.  This is eǆaĐeƌďated ďǇ the pƌeseŶĐe of pƌeseŶĐe of the ƌailƌoad tƌaĐk to the 
ǁest aŶd the deǀelopŵeŶt of iŶdustƌial aŶd stoƌage uses adjaĐeŶt to the ƌailƌoad tƌaĐk. 

DiƌeĐtlǇ to the south of the suďjeĐt site aƌe tǁo siŶgle faŵilǇ detaĐhed dǁelliŶgs aŶd 
south of theŵ aƌe iŶfill toǁŶhouse deǀelopŵeŶts aloŶg the Ŷoƌth aŶd south sides of 
Jaŵes “t.  These aƌe a deǀelopŵeŶt ĐoŶstƌuĐted iŶ ϮϬϬϭ.ϭ 

To the Ŷoƌth of the site is BƌitaŶŶia Road, a ďusǇ aƌteƌial ƌoad, aŶd Ŷoƌth of that 
ĐoŵŵeƌĐial aŶd iŶdustƌial deǀelopŵeŶt 

The aƌea is desigŶated as a ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ Ŷode iŶ the Mississauga OffiĐial PlaŶ ;ϮϬϭϭͿ 
;pƌeseŶtlǇ uŶdeƌ appealͿ.  Theƌe aƌe a Ŷuŵďeƌ of speĐifiĐ pƌoǀisioŶs iŶ the PlaŶ to that 
eŶĐouƌage: 

‐the eŶhaŶĐeŵeŶt of the ǀillage ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of “tƌeetsǀille 
‐high leǀel of uƌďaŶ desigŶ, laŶdsĐapiŶg aŶd ĐoŵpaĐt ďuilt foƌŵ 
‐ƌeteŶtioŶ of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh as a ĐoŵŵeƌĐial Đoƌe 
‐ĐoŶseƌǀatioŶ of ďuilt heƌitage featuƌes 
‐desigŶs foƌ Ŷeǁ ďuildiŶgs to ͞eŶhaŶĐe the histoƌiĐ ĐhaƌaĐteƌ aŶd heƌitage ĐoŶteǆt of the 
“tƌeetsǀille Node thƌough appƌopƌiate height, ŵassiŶg, aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal patteƌŶ, pƌopoƌtioŶs, 
setďaĐk aŶd geŶeƌal appeaƌaŶĐe 
‐deǀelopŵeŶt of ŵiǆ of ƌesideŶtial aŶd offiĐe uses oŶ seĐoŶd flooƌs aŶd stƌeet ĐoŵŵeƌĐial uses 
oŶ ŵaiŶ flooƌs 
‐at least tǁo stoƌies aŶd Ŷot ŵoƌe thaŶ ϯ stoƌies of ďuildiŶg height 
‐appaƌeŶt height of ďuildiŶgs to ďe ƌeduĐed thƌough ŵassiŶg aŶd desigŶ 
‐deǀelopŵeŶt to ƌefleĐt eǆistiŶg lottiŶg patteƌŶs, setďaĐks of Ŷeǁ ďuildiŶgs should ŵatĐh 
adjaĐeŶt ďuildiŶgs 
‐plaĐeŵeŶt of paƌkiŶg aƌeas to the ƌeaƌ 

ϭ CitǇ of Mississauga ďuildiŶg depaƌtŵeŶt ƌeĐoƌds – ǁǁǁ.ŵississauga.Đa 
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The pƌopeƌtǇ is zoŶed Cϰ‐ϯϴ uŶdeƌ the CitǇ of Mississauga )oŶiŶg BǇ‐laǁ ϮϮϱ‐ϮϬϬϳ.  This is 
͞MaiŶstƌeet CoŵŵeƌĐial͟ zoŶiŶg that alloǁs ƌetail stoƌes, ƌestauƌaŶts, ďusiŶess aŶd peƌsoŶal 
seƌǀiĐe uses ďut Ŷot autoŵotiǀe uses.  The ďǇ‐laǁ also ƌestƌiĐts ďuildiŶg height to tǁo stoƌies iŶ 
this loĐal aƌea. 

EǆistiŶg PƌopeƌtǇ “uƌǀeǇ 
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CoŶteǆt PlaŶ 
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SuďjeĐt Site 
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ϭϮ QueeŶ Stƌeet South 

ϲ & ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South 
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Neǁ SiŶgle FaŵilǇ ResideŶtial DeǀelopŵeŶt south of suďjeĐt site 

Neǁ ToǁŶhouse deǀelopŵeŶt south of suďjeĐt site 
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EǆistiŶg hoŵes ;soŵe ĐoŶǀeƌted to ĐoŵŵeƌĐialͿ oŶ east side of QueeŶ St. S. 

QueeŶ St. S. lookiŶg Ŷoƌth fƌoŵ suďjeĐt site 

QueeŶ St. S. lookiŶg south fƌoŵ suďjeĐt site 
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EǆistiŶg ĐoŶditioŶs oŶ site: 

The site Đoŵpƌises thƌee pƌopeƌties kŶoǁŶ as ϲ, ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet West.  Togetheƌ theǇ 
foƌŵ a paƌĐel appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϳϬŵ ǁide ǆ ϰϳŵ deep.  To the Ŷoƌth the pƌopeƌtǇ is ďouŶded ďǇ a 
Ŷaƌƌoǁ paƌĐel that seƌǀes as aŶ aĐĐess laŶe to the pƌopeƌtǇ to the ǁest.  To the ǁest aƌe 
iŶdustƌial aŶd stoƌage uses aŶd to the south a siŶgle faŵilǇ hoŵe at ϭϴ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh.  The 
pƌopeƌtǇ is leǀel aŶd ŵodeƌatelǇ tƌeed. 

ϲ QueeŶ Stƌeet South: 

This is a oŶe‐stoƌeǇ ďuildiŶg appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϯϰ’ ǆ Ϯϴ’ ǁith a oŶe‐stoƌeǇ additioŶ to the Ŷoƌth 
appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϴ’ ǆ ϮϬ’.  The ďuildiŶg is of fƌaŵe ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ ǁith ĐoŶĐƌete ďloĐk ďaseŵeŶt.  
Theƌe is a Đƌaǁl‐spaĐe oŶlǇ ďeŶeath the Ŷoƌth additioŶ.  Theƌe is aŶ oil taŶk iŶ the ďaseŵeŶt.  
Although pƌesuŵaďlǇ ďuilt as a siŶgle‐faŵilǇ ƌesideŶĐe the ďuildiŶg is pƌeseŶtlǇ used as a 
ŵediĐal offiĐe.  CitǇ of Mississauga ƌeĐoƌds iŶdiĐate pluŵďiŶg peƌŵits issued iŶ the ŵid ϭϵϱϬ’s, 
aŶ eŶĐlosed uŶheated poƌĐh peƌŵit iŶ ϭϵϴϰ ;this ŵaǇ ďe the Ŷoƌth additioŶͿ, uŶspeĐified 
alteƌatioŶs iŶ ϭϵϴϵ aŶd theŶ a peƌŵit foƌ a pǇloŶ sigŶ ;͞The CoĐk & PheasaŶt͟Ϳ iŶ ϭϵϵϲ aŶd 
alteƌatioŶs to peƌŵit a ŵediĐal offiĐe iŶ ϭϵϵϵ.Ϯ 

The ďuildiŶg is eŶtiƌelǇ Đoǀeƌed iŶ ǀiŶǇl sidiŶg aŶd the ǁiŶdoǁs aƌe Ŷeǁ, ǀiŶǇl theƌŵal uŶits.  All 
of the foƌŵeƌ ƌesideŶtial detailiŶg, tƌiŵǁoƌk aŶd ĐhaƌaĐteƌ oŶ the iŶside of the ďuildiŶg has 
ďeeŶ ƌeŵoǀed.  Theƌe appeaƌs to ďe a ǀestige of the ƌesideŶtial flooƌ plaŶ still eǆistiŶg ďut giǀeŶ 
the foƌŵeƌ use of the ďuildiŶg as a ƌestauƌaŶt this is ƋuestioŶaďle. 

The ƌoof is a siŵple gaďle ǁith ŵediuŵ slope.  The south‐east ĐoƌŶeƌ of the ďuildiŶg is iŶdeŶted 
ďeŶeath the ƌoof to Đƌeate a Đoǀeƌed poƌĐh.  Theƌe is a ĐoƌŶeƌ ǁiŶdoǁ at this loĐatioŶ.  These 
details, the poƌĐh foƌŵed ďǇ the Ŷegatiǀe spaĐe of the ƌeĐessed ĐoƌŶeƌ aŶd the ĐoƌŶeƌ ǁiŶdoǁ 
aƌe ŵodeƌŶist aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal details aŶd tǇpiĐal of eaƌlǇ post‐ǁaƌ ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ.  The ďuildiŶg’s 
foƌŵ aŶd ƌeŵŶaŶt ŵateƌials ĐoƌƌespoŶd to this.  The ďuildiŶg’s foƌŵ aŶd eǆtaŶt oƌigiŶal 
ŵateƌials ǁould ďe iŶdiĐatiǀe of ϭϵϰϬ’s oƌ eaƌlǇ ϭϵϱϬ’s ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ. 

Theƌe aƌe Ŷo outďuildiŶgs oŶ the pƌopeƌtǇ ;CitǇ ƌeĐoƌds iŶdiĐate oŶe ǁas ƌeŵoǀed iŶ ϭϵϵϵͿ.  The 
foƌŵeƌ ďaĐk Ǉaƌd is pƌeseŶtlǇ used as a paƌkiŶg lot foƌ the ŵediĐal offiĐe. 

The ďuildiŶg’s oǀeƌall ĐoŶditioŶ is good. 

Ϯ CitǇ of Mississauga ďuildiŶg depaƌtŵeŶt ƌeĐoƌds – ǁǁǁ.ŵississauga.Đa 
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ϭϯ 

ϲ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ Ŷoƌth‐east oďliƋue ǀieǁ 

ϲ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ south‐east oďliƋue ǀieǁ 
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ϭϰ 

ϲ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ ƌeaƌ eleǀatioŶ 

ϲ QueeŶ Stƌeet South – iŶteƌioƌ 
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ϭϱ 

ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South: 

This is a tǁo‐stoƌeǇ ďuildiŶg appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϮϮ’ ǆ ϰϲ’ ǁith a oŶe‐stoƌeǇ ƌeaƌ eleŵeŶt 
appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϭϮ’ ǆ ϰϲ’. The tǁo‐stoƌeǇ paƌt of the ďuildiŶg has a gaŵďƌel ƌoof ǁith fiǀe 
doƌŵeƌs faĐiŶg the stƌeet aŶd oŶe laƌge shed doƌŵeƌ faĐiŶg the ƌeaƌ.  Theƌe is aŶ attaĐhed 
gaƌage iŶ the tǁo‐stoƌeǇ paƌt of the ďuildiŶg.  The oŶe‐stoƌeǇ eleŵeŶt has a flat ƌoof. 

EǆaŵiŶatioŶ of the ďuildiŶg ƌeǀeals that it has oďǀiouslǇ ďeeŶ ŵuĐh ŵodified siŶĐe its oƌigiŶal 
ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ.  OŶ the ŵaiŶ flooƌ the gaƌage is ŵost likelǇ a lateƌ additioŶ as is the flat ƌoofed 
poƌtioŶ aloŶg the ƌeaƌ.  OŶ the seĐoŶd flooƌ the ŵasteƌ ďedƌooŵ ;loĐated aďoǀe the gaƌageͿ is 
also ŵost ĐeƌtaiŶlǇ lateƌ thaŶ the ƌest of the seĐoŶd flooƌ.  This ĐoŶĐlusioŶ is ďased oŶ diffeƌiŶg 
tƌiŵs iŶ these ƌooŵs aŶd oŶ the faĐt that ǁhat is likelǇ the oƌigiŶal house is heated ďǇ foƌĐed aiƌ 
heatiŶg fed thƌough oldeƌ, ǁall tǇpe diffuseƌs ǁhile the ƌooŵs that appeaƌ to ďe Ŷeǁeƌ aƌe 
heated ǁith eleĐtƌiĐ ďaseďoaƌd heateƌs.   

EǆaŵiŶatioŶ of the ďaseŵeŶt also ďeaƌs out this hǇpothesis.  Theƌe is a paƌtial ďaseŵeŶt oŶlǇ, 
loĐated oŶ the south‐east ĐoƌŶeƌ of the hoŵe.  This ďaseŵeŶt ŵeasuƌes appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϮϮ’ ǆ Ϯϳ’ 
;outside diŵeŶsioŶsͿ aŶd is loĐated uŶdeƌ the paƌt of the hoŵe pƌesuŵed to ďe oldeƌ.  
;IŶteƌestiŶglǇ, this ďaseŵeŶt is ǀeƌǇ siŵilaƌ to the diŵeŶsioŶs of the house at ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet 
“outh – this ŵaǇ giǀe a Đlue as to the foƌŵeƌ appeaƌaŶĐe of this hoŵe.Ϳ 

The fƌoŶt eleǀatioŶ of the hoŵe is aŶgel‐stoŶe oŶ the ŵaiŶ flooƌ ǁith aluŵiŶuŵ sidiŶg oŶ the 
doƌŵeƌs aŶd gaďle eŶds.  The sides aŶd ƌeaƌ of the ŵaiŶ flooƌ aƌe otheƌǁise ƌough‐Đast stuĐĐo.  
The aŶgel‐stoŶe fiŶish aŶd aluŵiŶuŵ sidiŶg ŵost ĐeƌtaiŶlǇ dates fƌoŵ the lateƌ ƌeŶoǀatioŶ.  The 
stuĐĐo ŵaǇ ďe oƌigiŶal. 

Theƌe is ǀeƌǇ oƌigiŶal tƌiŵǁoƌk oƌ detail ƌeŵaiŶiŶg iŶ the pƌesuŵed oƌigiŶal house ďut ǁhat is 
theƌe ǁould ďe suggestiǀe of pƌe WWϮ ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ.  The ŵajoƌitǇ of the tƌiŵǁoƌk aŶd 
detailiŶg, espeĐiallǇ iŶ the pƌesuŵed additioŶs, is suggestiǀe of ϭϵϲϬ’s ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ.  The 
eǆteƌioƌ ŵateƌial seleĐtioŶs aƌe also suggestiǀe of ϭϵϲϬ’s ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ. 

The hoŵe is iŶ ǀeƌǇ pooƌ ĐoŶditioŶ, ǁith Ŷuŵeƌous iŶstaŶĐes of ǁateƌ peŶetƌatioŶ thƌough the 
ƌoof, falliŶg ĐeiliŶgs aŶd sigŶifiĐaŶt ŵould ĐoŶtaŵiŶatioŶ iŶ the ďaseŵeŶt. 

Theƌe is a laƌge ŵetal‐Đlad shed stƌuĐtuƌe iŶ the ƌeaƌ Ǉaƌd. 
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ϭϲ 

ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ fƌoŶt eleǀatioŶ 

ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ Ŷoƌth‐ǁest oďliƋue ǀieǁ 

6.4 -19



ϭϳ 

ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ south‐ǁest oďliƋue ǀieǁ 

ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ ŵaiŶ flooƌ iŶteƌioƌ ;Ŷote ǁateƌ daŵage aďoǀe ĐaďiŶetsͿ 
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ϭϴ 

ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ seĐoŶd flooƌ iŶteƌioƌ ;Ŷote falliŶg ĐeiliŶgͿ 

ϭϬ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ ďaseŵeŶt iŶteƌioƌ ;Ŷote eǆteŶsiǀe ŵould ĐoŶtaŵiŶatioŶͿ 
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ϭϵ 

ϭϮ QueeŶ Stƌeet South: 

This is a ϭ ½ stoƌeǇ ďuildiŶg appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϮϮ’ ǆ Ϯϳ’ ǁith siŵple gaďle ƌoof.  Theƌe is oŶe shed 
doƌŵeƌ faĐiŶg the stƌeet aŶd tǁo gaďle doƌŵeƌs faĐiŶg the ƌeaƌ. The gƌouŶd flooƌ is a kitĐheŶ 
aŶd liǀiŶg aŶd diŶiŶg ƌooŵ ĐoŵďiŶatioŶ aŶd the seĐoŶd flooƌ is tǁo ďedƌooŵs aŶd oŶe 
ďathƌooŵ. 

The eǆteƌioƌ is paiŶted ǁood sidiŶg aŶd tƌiŵs.  The eǆteƌioƌ aŶd iŶteƌioƌ appeaƌ to ďe ǀiƌtuallǇ as 
ďuilt aŶd is geŶeƌallǇ iŶ ǀeƌǇ good ĐoŶditioŶ.  EǀeŶ the kitĐheŶ is oƌigiŶal to the hoŵe – this is 
ǀeƌǇ uŶusual iŶ hoŵes of this ǀiŶtage.  The eǆteƌioƌ featuƌes soŵe iŶteƌestiŶg Aƌts & Cƌafts 
tƌiŵǁoƌk iŶĐludiŶg ďƌaĐkets at the fƌoŶt poƌtiĐo, eǆposed ƌafteƌ tail detail at the fƌoŶt poƌtiĐo 
aŶd oĐtagoŶal ǁiŶdoǁ oŶ the ƌeaƌ eleǀatioŶ.  These details ǁould suggest a pƌe‐WWϮ 
ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ date. 

This hoŵe is iŶteƌestiŶg iŶ that it eǆists laƌgelǇ as ďuilt aŶd iŶĐludes ŵoƌe aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal detail 
aŶd iŶteƌest thaŶ ǁould tǇpiĐallǇ ďe fouŶd oŶ a ďuildiŶg of this size.  It is a sŵall ďut haŶdsoŵe 
aŶd ǁell‐Đƌafted hoŵe aŶd has oďǀiouslǇ ďeeŶ ǁell ŵaiŶtaiŶed. 

Theƌe is also a detaĐhed gaƌage oŶ the pƌopeƌtǇ. 

ϭϮ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ south‐ǁest oďliƋue ǀieǁ 
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ϮϬ 

ϭϮ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ Ŷoƌth‐east oďliƋue ǀieǁ 

ϭϮ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ ƌeaƌ eleǀatioŶ 
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Ϯϭ 

ϭϮ QueeŶ Stƌeet South ‐ iŶteƌioƌ ;Ŷote oƌigiŶal kitĐheŶͿ 

ϭϮ QueeŶ Stƌeet West ‐ iŶteƌioƌ ;Ŷote oƌigiŶal tƌiŵǁoƌkͿ 
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ϮϮ 

AŶalǇsis: 

ϲ, ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh aƌe tǇpiĐal of hoŵes that ǁeƌe ďuilt ďefoƌe, duƌiŶg aŶd 
iŵŵediatelǇ afteƌ WWϮ.  GeŶeƌallǇ these ǁeƌe siŵple, aƌĐhiteĐtuƌallǇ geŶeƌiĐ hoŵes 
ĐoŶstƌuĐted ďǇ sŵall ďuildeƌs oŶ iŶdiǀidual lots.  As a gƌoup theǇ aƌe of soŵe Đultuƌal iŶteƌest iŶ 
desĐƌiďiŶg the ŵid‐ĐeŶtuƌǇ tƌeŶd toǁaƌd suď‐uƌďaŶizatioŶ, the uƌgeŶt Ŷeed foƌ housiŶg foƌ 
ƌetuƌŶed ǀeteƌaŶs aŶd foƌ post‐ǁaƌ iŵŵigƌaŶts aŶd the ĐoŶseƋueŶt housiŶg ďooŵ that 
oĐĐuƌƌed duƌiŶg these Ǉeaƌs.  IŶdiǀiduallǇ, hoǁeǀeƌ, theiƌ geŶeƌiĐ Ŷatuƌe aŶd laĐk of detail oƌ 
oďǀious aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal eǆpƌessioŶ geŶeƌallǇ ŵeaŶs that theƌe is Ŷo aƌguŵeŶt foƌ pƌeseƌǀatioŶ.  IŶ 
the Đase of these paƌtiĐulaƌ ďuildiŶgs, ϲ & ϭϬ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh haǀe had aŶǇ iŶteƌest that ŵaǇ 
haǀe oŶĐe possessed stƌipped aǁaǇ ďǇ suĐĐessiǀe ƌeŶoǀatioŶs aŶd ĐhaŶges of use.  With the 
possiďle eǆĐeptioŶ of the additioŶ to ϭϬ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh that added aŶ attaĐhed gaƌage, 
ŵoƌe liǀiŶg spaĐe aŶd a thiƌd ďedƌooŵ theƌe is little aďilitǇ heƌe to use these hoŵes as a ǁaǇ to 
tƌaĐk ĐhaŶgiŶg Đultuƌal eǆpeĐtatioŶs. 

ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh is of soŵe iŶteƌest iŶ that it eǆhiďits ŵoƌe aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal iŶteŶt aŶd 
ĐƌaftsŵaŶship thaŶ is tǇpiĐal iŶ these hoŵes aŶd ďeĐause it ƌetaiŶs ŵuĐh ŵoƌe of its oƌigiŶal 
faďƌiĐ thaŶ do ŵost hoŵes of this eƌa.  It is also ƌeŵiŶisĐeŶt iŶ foƌŵ of WWϮ ViĐtoƌǇ HousiŶg, 
although theƌe is Ŷo eǀideŶĐe that this house ǁas iŶ aŶǇ ǁaǇ assoĐiated ǁith ǁaƌtiŵe housiŶg 
deǀelopŵeŶt. 

Pƌoposal: 

Pƌoposed ďuildiŶg ;Battaglia AƌĐhiteĐt IŶĐ.Ϳ 
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Ϯϯ 

The pƌoposal iŶǀolǀes the deŵolitioŶ of the eǆistiŶg ďuildiŶgs oŶ this site aŶd the ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ 
of a Ŷeǁ Ϯ‐stoƌeǇ ďuildiŶg of appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϮϬϬϬ ŵϮ desigŶed ďǇ Battaglia AƌĐhiteĐt IŶĐ.  It ǁill 
featuƌe ƌetail uses oŶ the gƌouŶd flooƌ aŶd ŵediĐal aŶd geŶeƌal offiĐe uses oŶ the seĐoŶd flooƌ, 
ǁith paƌkiŶg pƌoǀided iŶ the ƌeaƌ Ǉaƌd aŶd uŶdeƌgƌouŶd. 

The pƌoposed ďuildiŶg is a ƌeĐtaŶgulaƌ, tǁo‐stoƌeǇ ǀoluŵe ǁith polǇĐhƌoŵatiĐ ďƌiĐk fiŶish, 
stuĐĐo aĐĐeŶts aŶd a flat ƌoof.  The ďuildiŶg has ďeeŶ desigŶed to pƌeseŶt itself as thƌee 
ĐoŵpoŶeŶt eleŵeŶts sepaƌated ďǇ ƌeĐessed, glass faĐades.  The iŶdiǀidual ĐoŵpoŶeŶt 
͞ďuildiŶgs͟ ƌeĐall iŶ foƌŵ, ŵassiŶg aŶd ŵateƌialitǇ tǇpiĐal ŵaiŶ stƌeet ĐoŵŵeƌĐial ďuildiŶgs suĐh 
as ǁould ďe fouŶd iŶ ŵost ViĐtoƌiaŶ OŶtaƌio toǁŶs, iŶĐludiŶg “tƌeetsǀille.  The idea heƌe is 
seǀeƌal – to aĐkŶoǁledge that these pƌopeƌties aƌe ďeiŶg ĐoŶǀeƌted to ĐoŵŵeƌĐial use, to 
Đƌeate a ǀisual ƌelatioŶship ǁith the heƌitage ĐoŵŵeƌĐial Đoƌe of doǁŶtoǁŶ “tƌeetsǀille aŶd to 
ƌeĐall that these aƌe thƌee ĐoŶstitueŶt pƌopeƌties ĐoŵďiŶed to oŶe use ďut to aƌƌaŶge the 
ďuildiŶg iŶ a ǁaǇ that ƌespeĐts that.  The idea that these aƌe thƌee is iŵplied ďǇ the ďuildiŶg 
foƌŵ itself ďut also ďǇ the faĐt that eaĐh of the fƌoŶt eleǀatioŶs plaŶes aƌe at a diffeƌeŶt setďaĐk 
to the stƌeet aŶd eaĐh of the ĐoŵpoŶeŶt ͞ďuildiŶgs͟ is aĐĐessed ďǇ its oǁŶ ǁalkǁaǇ aŶd staiƌs 
fƌoŵ the ŵuŶiĐipal sideǁalk.  The faĐt that the sideǁalk gƌade falls fƌoŵ south to Ŷoƌth, giǀiŶg a 
diffeƌeŶt Ŷuŵďeƌ of steps at the eŶtƌaŶĐe to eaĐh ͞ďuildiŶg͟, also helps to Đƌeate this defiŶitioŶ. 
AĐƌoss the fƌoŶt the ďuildiŶg sits oŶ a loǁ stoŶe pediŵeŶt, siŵilaƌlǇ diǀided ďǇ ƌeĐesses iŶto 
thƌee ĐoŶstitueŶt eleŵeŶts aŶd aĐĐeŶted ďǇ laŶdsĐape featuƌes.   

The ďuildiŶg is laƌgeƌ thaŶ its iŵŵediate Ŷeighďouƌs ďut ďeĐause of the ĐoŵpleǆitǇ of its desigŶ 
aŶd ĐhoiĐe of Ŷatuƌal, loĐal ŵateƌials it ǁill iŶtegƌate ǁell iŶto the stƌeetsĐape.  It ŵeets the 
iŶteŶt of the OffiĐial PlaŶ poliĐies desĐƌiďed aďoǀe. 

Ϯ. Cƌiteƌia

“tƌeetsǀille Village Coƌe Đultuƌal laŶdsĐape Đƌiteƌia: 

‐illustƌates stǇle, tƌeŶd oƌ patteƌŶ 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐ the eǆistiŶg oŶe‐stoƌeǇ, siŶgle faŵilǇ hoŵes Ŷoƌth of the ǀillage Đoƌe ĐaŶ ďe ƌegaƌded 
as illustƌatiŶg theiƌ oǁŶ stǇle oƌ tƌeŶd as aŶ eǆaŵple of post‐ǁaƌ suďuƌďaŶ ƌesideŶtial 
deǀelopŵeŶt, ďut ĐleaƌlǇ the iŶteŶt of the OffiĐial PlaŶ aŶd zoŶiŶg ďǇ‐laǁ is to eŶĐouƌage 
the ƌe‐deǀelopŵeŶt of this aƌea ǁith ďuilt foƌŵ aŶd use ŵoƌe siŵilaƌ to the histoƌiĐ 
doǁŶtoǁŶ.  IŶ this ƌespeĐt ďoth the pƌoposed ďuilt foƌŵ aŶd use aƌe appƌopƌiate aŶd 
suppoƌt the histoƌiĐ doǁŶtoǁŶ Đoƌe. 
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‐illustƌates aŶ iŵpoƌtaŶt phase iŶ Mississauga’s “oĐial oƌ PhǇsiĐal DeǀelopŵeŶt 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐the ĐoŶteǆt of this ͞iŵpoƌtaŶt phase͟ is ĐleaƌlǇ the deǀelopŵeŶt of the Village of 
“tƌeetsǀille, aŶd ďǇ suppoƌtiŶg the doǁŶtoǁŶ Đoƌe the pƌoposal ŵeets this ƌeƋuiƌeŵeŶt.  

‐aesthetiĐ aŶd ǀisual ƋualitǇ ;ďuilt eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶtͿ 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐this is a paƌt of the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ ǀeƌǇ ŵuĐh iŶ aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal tƌaŶsitioŶ aŶd ǁe ĐaŶ 
aŶtiĐipate ŵoƌe pƌessuƌe to deŵolish aŶd ƌe‐deǀelop adjaĐeŶt pƌopeƌties.  The pƌoposed 
ďuildiŶg dƌaǁs its desigŶ Đues fƌoŵ ďoth the histoƌiĐ doǁŶtoǁŶ Đoƌe as ǁell as the 
iŵŵediate loĐal aƌea.  BǇ ĐoŶsĐiouslǇ diǀidiŶg itself iŶto thƌee ĐoŶstitueŶt eleŵeŶts it 
ƌespeĐts the oƌigiŶal lottiŶg patteƌŶ of the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ aŶd atteŵpts to iŶtegƌate itself 
iŶto the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ. The pƌoposed ďuildiŶg is a Đoŵpleǆ Ǉet sǇŵpathetiĐ foƌŵ that 
displaǇs ƌestƌaiŶt as ƌegaƌds its size, pƌopoƌtioŶ aŶd detailiŶg.  It ǁill ďe aŶ attƌaĐtiǀe 
additioŶ to the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ, ďoth Ŷoǁ aŶd as ŶeighďouƌiŶg pƌopeƌties aƌe ƌedeǀeloped. 

‐histoƌiĐal oƌ aƌĐheologiĐal iŶteƌest 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐Ŷot appliĐaďle.  This pƌopeƌtǇ ǁas fiƌst deǀeloped iŶ the ϭ9ϰϬ’s aŶd ŶothiŶg ǁould 
suggest paƌtiĐulaƌ histoƌiĐal oƌ aƌĐheologiĐal iŶteƌest heƌe. 

AdditioŶal Mississauga Road “ĐeŶiĐ Route Đƌiteƌia: 

‐sĐeŶiĐ aŶd ǀisual ƋualitǇ ;laŶdsĐape eŶǀiƌoŶŵeŶtͿ 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐ this iŵŵediate aƌea is ĐhaƌaĐteƌized ďǇ ƌelatiǀelǇ deŶse deǀelopŵeŶt that has 
geŶeƌallǇ seeŶ fƌoŶt Ǉaƌds giǀeŶ oǀeƌ to paƌkiŶg aŶd a loss of ǀisual ƋualitǇ.  BǇ loĐatiŶg 
the paƌkiŶg at the ƌeaƌ of the site aŶd ĐƌeatiŶg laŶdsĐapiŶg oppoƌtuŶities at the stƌeet 
liŶe the pƌoposal does ŵeet this ƌeƋuiƌeŵeŶt 

‐hoƌtiĐultuƌal iŶteƌest 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐Ŷot appliĐaďle 
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‐laŶdsĐape desigŶ, tǇpe aŶd teĐhŶologiĐal iŶteƌest 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐Ŷot appliĐaďle 

‐ĐoŶsisteŶt sĐale of ďuilt featuƌes 

AŶalǇsis: 

‐the pƌoposal is ĐoŶsisteŶt ǁith the sĐale of the histoƌiĐ doǁŶtoǁŶ Đoƌe.  The iŶteŶt of 
the OffiĐial PlaŶ aŶd zoŶiŶg ďǇ‐laǁ is to ƌeƋuiƌe deǀelopŵeŶt of the tǇpe pƌoposed heƌe 
aŶd Ŷot to ƌespeĐt the eǆistiŶg oŶe‐stoƌeǇ deǀelopŵeŶt pƌeseŶtlǇ loĐated oŶ the site aŶd 
eǆistiŶg aloŶg the east side of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh.  As ŵoƌe of these pƌopeƌties aƌe ƌe‐
deǀeloped, this ĐoŶsisteŶĐǇ ǁill ƌe‐eŵeƌge.  This aƌea is eǆtƌeŵelǇ ǀaƌied, ǁith eǆistiŶg 
oŶe aŶd tǁo‐stoƌeǇ ƌesideŶtial deǀelopŵeŶt, ĐoŵŵeƌĐial deǀelopŵeŶt aŶd iŶdustƌial 
deǀelopŵeŶt all iŶ Đlose pƌoǆiŵitǇ. IŶ the shoƌt teƌŵ, the sĐale, ŵassiŶg aŶd detailiŶg of 
this pƌoposal is suĐh that it ǁill ĐoŵpliŵeŶt the stƌeetsĐape.  MaŶǇ of the eǆistiŶg 
ďuildiŶgs aloŶg ďoth sides of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh aƌe tƌaŶsitioŶiŶg to ĐoŵŵeƌĐial uses 
aŶd ĐleaƌlǇ this tǇpe of deǀelopŵeŶt, suppoƌted as it is ďǇ the OffiĐial PlaŶ aŶd zoŶiŶg 
ďǇ‐laǁ, ǁill ďeĐoŵe ŵoƌe pƌeǀaleŶt iŶ the Ŷeaƌ futuƌe. 
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ϯ. PƌopeƌtǇ IŶfoƌŵatioŶ

AŶalǇsis of laŶd titles iŶfoƌŵatioŶ ƌeǀeals as folloǁs: 

This pƌopeƌtǇ ǁas paƌt of aŶ appƌoǆiŵatelǇ ϭϬϬ aĐƌe paƌĐel kŶoǁŶ as Lot ϱ CoŶĐessioŶ ϱ West of 
HuƌoŶtaƌio “tƌeet.  This is paƌt of the ͞“eĐoŶd PuƌĐhase͟ of laŶds fƌoŵ the Mississauga Fiƌst 
NatioŶ iŶ ϭϴϭϴ aŶd suƌǀeǇed ďǇ TiŵothǇ “tƌeet aŶd RiĐhaƌd Bƌistol aďout ϭϴϭϵ. 

CoŶĐessioŶ ϱ ‐ Lot ϱ ;Paƌt of SeĐoŶd PuƌĐhase Map of ϭϴϭϴͿϯ 

ReĐoƌds of oǁŶeƌship of this pƌopeƌtǇ ďegiŶ iŶ the ϭϴϮϬ ǁith the oƌigiŶal CƌoǁŶ pateŶt to 
TiŵothǇ “tƌeet aŶd theŶĐe to the Rutledge faŵilǇ iŶ ϭϴϱϵ ;Ŷote that the tƌaŶsfeƌ ŵust haǀe 
happeŶed pƌioƌ to this – a plaŶ of suďdiǀisioŶ dated ϭϴϱϲ iŶdiĐates these laŶds aƌe the pƌopeƌtǇ 
of ͞Mess. HǇde & Rutledge͟Ϳ.  The Rutledge faŵilǇ ǁeƌe oŶe of the eaƌlǇ settleƌs iŶ this aƌea aŶd 
ǁeƌe sigŶifiĐaŶt laŶd oǁŶeƌs, also oǁŶiŶg pƌopeƌtǇ to the Ŷoƌth aŶd east of this site.  

ϯ Illustƌated HistoƌiĐal Atlas of the CouŶtǇ of Peel ϭϴϳϳ 
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ϭϴϱϲ PlaŶ of SuďdiǀisioŶ 

IŶdiǀidual ĐhaiŶs‐of‐title aƌe pƌoǀided as appeŶdiĐes to this ƌepoƌt.  AŶalǇsis of theŵ ƌeǀeals as 
folloǁs: 

‐ FolloǁiŶg theiƌ suďdiǀisioŶ iŶ ϭϴϱϲ the thƌee pƌopeƌties ƌeŵaiŶed iŶ ĐoŵŵoŶ 
oǁŶeƌship aŶd ǁeƌe tƌaŶsfeƌƌed togetheƌ ďetǁeeŶ ŵeŵďeƌs of the Rutledge faŵilǇ 
uŶtil ϭϵϮϮ.  ;TheǇ ǁeƌe pƌesuŵaďlǇ teŶaŶted aŶd used foƌ agƌiĐultuƌal puƌposes 
duƌiŶg this tiŵe.  The ϭϴϱϲ plaŶ shoǁs a ǀeƌǇ sŵall ďuildiŶg oŶ the ϲ QueeŶ “tƌeet 
“outh site aŶd aŶ iŶdiĐatioŶ of ͞Widoǁ AƌŵstƌoŶg͟.  ϭϬ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh shoǁs 
Ŷo ďuildiŶg ďut is ŵaƌked ͞Widoǁ JustiŶe͟.  ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh also shoǁs Ŷo 
ďuildiŶg aŶd is ŵaƌked ͞HeŶƌǇ Rutledge͟.Ϳ 

‐ The pƌopeƌties ǁeƌe last tƌaŶsfeƌƌed togetheƌ iŶ ϭϵϮϮ ǁheŶ H.N. Rutledge sold theŵ 
to Geoƌge GiďďoŶs. 

‐ GiďďoŶs sold ϲ & ϭϬ QueeŶ togetheƌ to A. RothsteiŶ ϭϵϮϯ.   ϲ & ϭϬ QueeŶ ǁeƌe Ŷeǆt 
tƌaŶsfeƌƌed ;agaiŶ togetheƌͿ, this tiŵe uŶdeƌ poǁeƌ‐of‐sale to JeŶŶie “ŵith iŶ ϭϵϮϴ.  
“ŵith sold the pƌopeƌties togetheƌ to F. & M. JaĐksoŶ iŶ ϭϵϯϭ ǁho iŶ tuƌŶ sold theŵ 
togetheƌ to Elsie & FƌaŶĐis W. DoǁliŶg iŶ ϭϵϰϭ. 

6.4 -30



Ϯϴ 

‐ It ǁas at the eŶd of the DoǁliŶg oǁŶeƌship that ϲ & ϭϬ QueeŶ ǁeƌe fiƌst sold 
iŶdepeŶdeŶtlǇ.  DoǁliŶg sold ϭϬ QueeŶ to KathleeŶ & Chaƌles W. AƌĐh iŶ ϭϵϰϰ aŶd ϲ 
QueeŶ to DoŶald MaĐMillaŶ iŶ ϭϵϱϬ 

‐ ϲ & ϭϬ QueeŶ ĐoŶtiŶued uŶdeƌ iŶdepeŶdeŶt oǁŶeƌship fƌoŵ that tiŵe; ϲ QueeŶ 
ǁeŶt thƌough a Ŷuŵďeƌ of oǁŶeƌs duƌiŶg the latteƌ half of the tǁeŶtieth ĐeŶtuƌǇ 
ďut ϭϬ QueeŶ ǁas held ďǇ the AƌĐh faŵilǇ uŶtil its puƌĐhase ďǇ the pƌeseŶt oǁŶeƌs 
iŶ ϮϬϭϬ 

‐ Geoƌge GiďďoŶs held ϭϮ QueeŶ uŶdeƌ ϭϵϯϳ ǁheŶ he lost it due to taǆ aƌƌeaƌs aŶd 
oǁŶeƌship ƌetuƌŶed to the Village of “tƌeetsǀille. 

‐ ϭϮ QueeŶ ǁas puƌĐhased ďǇ Chaƌles Caǀes fƌoŵ the Village of “tƌeetsǀille iŶ ϭϵϰϬ.  It 
ĐoŶtiŶued uŶdeƌ iŶdepeŶdeŶt oǁŶeƌship fƌoŵ that tiŵe; eǀeŶtuallǇ ďeiŶg 
puƌĐhased iŶ ϭϵϳϬ ďǇ Wŵ. AƌĐh & “oŶs BuildiŶg & CoŶstƌuĐtioŶ Liŵited iŶ ϭϵϳϬ, 
ǁho held it uŶtil its puƌĐhase ďǇ the pƌeseŶt oǁŶeƌs iŶ ϮϬϭϭ 

Thus, ϭϮ QueeŶ has ďeeŶ uŶdeƌ iŶdepeŶdeŶt oǁŶeƌship siŶĐe ϭϵϰϬ, ϭϬ QueeŶ siŶĐe ϭϵϰϰ aŶd ϲ 
QueeŶ siŶĐe ϭϵϱϬ. 

It is ǀeƌǇ likelǇ that ϭϮ QueeŶ ǁas ďuilt aďout ϭϵϰϬ foƌ Chaƌles Caǀes, ϭϬ QueeŶ ǁas ďuilt aďout 
ϭϵϰϰ foƌ Chaƌles W. AƌĐh aŶd ϲ QueeŶ aďout ϭϵϱϬ foƌ DoŶald MaĐMillaŶ .  This ĐhƌoŶologǇ aŶd 
these dates also ĐoŶfiƌŵ the ĐoŶĐlusioŶs ƌegaƌdiŶg the aƌĐhiteĐtuƌal ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the ďuildiŶgs 
ƌeaĐhed aďoǀe.   

ReseaƌĐh ǁas uŶaďle to disĐoǀeƌ ǁho the iŶdiǀidual ďuildeƌs of these hoŵes ǁeƌe, although 
giǀeŶ that Chaƌles W. AƌĐh ǁas a pƌoŵiŶeŶt ďuildeƌ ;see ďeloǁͿ it is ƌeasoŶaďle to assuŵe that 
he ďuilt his oǁŶ hoŵe.   

The eaƌliest aǀailaďle aiƌ photogƌaph dates fƌoŵ ϭϵϱϰ.  This shoǁs eǆistiŶg deǀelopŵeŶt oŶ 
eaĐh of these pƌopeƌties aŶd aloŶg the ǁest side of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh.  ;The deǀelopŵeŶt oŶ 
the east side of QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh appeaƌs to ďe uŶdeƌǁaǇ at the tiŵe of the photogƌaph – 
Ŷote that this aƌea ǁas Ŷot suďdiǀided uŶtil the ϭϵϰϬ’s.Ϳ 
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ϭϵϱϰ Aiƌ Photogƌaphϰ 

AŶalǇsis: 

These pƌopeƌties shaƌe ǁith theiƌ Ŷeighďouƌs that theǇ aƌe assoĐiated ǁith the ŵid‐ĐeŶtuƌǇ 
deǀelopŵeŶt of the aƌea aŶd ǁith the suď‐uƌďaŶizatioŶ aŶd iŶteŶsifiĐatioŶ that oĐĐuƌƌed duƌiŶg 
this peƌiod.   

The pƌopeƌties aƌe Ŷotaďle iŶ that theǇ aƌe assoĐiated ǁith thƌee faŵilies of loĐal iŵpoƌtaŶĐe to 
the “tƌeetsǀille ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ – Rutledge, DoǁliŶg aŶd AƌĐh.  

Meŵďeƌs of the Rutledge faŵilǇ oǁŶed this pƌopeƌtǇ fƌoŵ ϭϴϱϵ to ϭϵϮϮ.  The Rutledges ǁeƌe 
oŶe of the fouŶdiŶg faŵilies of “tƌeetsǀille.  The fiƌst ŵeŵďeƌs aƌƌiǀed iŶ ϭϴϭϴ fƌoŵ EŶŶiskilleŶ, 
IƌelaŶd.  Meŵďeƌs of the faŵilǇ ǁeƌe iŶǀolǀed iŶ the ďƌiĐk ďusiŶess aŶd the faŵilǇ doŶated the 
laŶd foƌ TƌiŶitǇ AŶgliĐaŶ ĐhuƌĐh as ǁell as the ďƌiĐks used iŶ its ďuildiŶg.ϱ HeŶƌǇ Rutledge ;ϭϳϵϳ‐
ϭϴϳϱͿ ǁas a loĐal ĐouŶĐilloƌ aŶd is aŶ aŶĐestoƌ of the pƌeseŶt CitǇ ĐouŶĐilloƌ Geoƌge CaƌlsoŶ.  
The Rutledges ǁeƌe laƌge laŶd‐oǁŶeƌs iŶ the aƌea, hoǁeǀeƌ, aŶd theiƌ ĐoŶŶeĐtioŶ to these 

ϰ ǁǁǁ.ŵississauga.Đa ;ŵappiŶgͿ 

ϱ Tǁeedsŵuiƌ HistoƌǇ of “tƌeetsǀille, Voluŵe ϭ, p. ϵϬ. 
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ďuildiŶgs is ǀeƌǇ taŶgeŶtial ďeĐause deǀelopŵeŶt of the laŶds did Ŷot ďegiŶ uŶtil afteƌ theiƌ 
teŶuƌe.   

The DoǁliŶgs aƌe also a sigŶifiĐaŶt faŵilǇ iŶ “tƌeetsǀille.  Jaŵes DoǁliŶg ;ϭϴϮϳ‐ϭϵϬϵͿ aƌƌiǀed iŶ 
“tƌeetsǀille fƌoŵ Gaƌafƌaǆa, ON iŶ ϭϴϳϵ aŶd iŶ ϭϴϴϲ puƌĐhased a ϭϵϮ aĐƌe faƌŵ oŶ the Ŷoƌth side 
of BƌitaŶŶia Rd ;pƌeseŶt CaŶada BƌiĐk siteͿ.  The DoǁliŶgs ǁeƌe suĐĐessful faƌŵeƌs aŶd 
eǀeŶtuallǇ also ǁeŶt iŶto the iŵpleŵeŶt aŶd feŶĐe ďusiŶess.  TheǇ ǁeƌe stƌiĐt Methodists aŶd 
aĐtiǀe iŶ the ChuƌĐh ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ.ϲ  FƌaŶk DoǁliŶg ;ϭϵϭϰ‐ϭϵϵϴͿ ǁas a gƌaŶdsoŶ of Jaŵes aŶd is 
ƌeŵeŵďeƌed as Reeǀe of “tƌeetsǀille iŶ ϭϵϱϴ aŶd lateƌ ďeĐaŵe the fiƌst ŵaǇoƌ of the ToǁŶ iŶ 
ϭϵϲϮ.  The house ǁas sold ďǇ the DoǁliŶg faŵilǇ iŶ ϭϵϰϲ ďut it ƌeŵaiŶs aŶd is kŶoǁŶ as DoǁliŶg 
House.ϳ It is desigŶated uŶdeƌ Paƌt IV of the OŶtaƌio Heƌitage AĐt. 

FƌaŶk DoǁliŶg is ďelieǀed to ďe the FƌaŶĐis W. DoǁliŶg that appeaƌs iŶ the title ƌeĐoƌds of these 
pƌopeƌties.  His ƌelatioŶship is also taŶgeŶtial, hoǁeǀeƌ, as he sold theŵ pƌioƌ to the pƌesuŵed 
ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ date of the ďuildiŶgs.  The laŶd ǁas likelǇ iŶ agƌiĐultuƌal use at that tiŵe.  His 
oǁŶeƌship peƌiod also pƌe‐dates the tiŵe ǁheŶ he ďeĐaŵe sigŶifiĐaŶt to the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ. 

The thiƌd faŵilǇ of sigŶifiĐaŶĐe to appeaƌ iŶ the list of pƌeǀious pƌopeƌtǇ oǁŶeƌs is the AƌĐh 
faŵilǇ.  The AƌĐhs ǁeƌe loŶg teƌŵ oǁŶeƌs of ϭϬ aŶd ϭϮ QueeŶ “t. “.  

Chaƌles W. AƌĐh ;ϭϴϲϳ‐ϭϵϰϮͿ aƌƌiǀed iŶ “tƌeetsǀille ǁith his ǁife aŶd thƌee ĐhildƌeŶ fƌoŵ 
LoŶdoŶ, EŶglaŶd iŶ ϭϵϬϭ.  It is ƌeĐoƌded that he ǁoƌked as a tiŶsŵith.  The faŵilǇ had tǁo ŵoƌe 
ĐhildƌeŶ ďefoƌe Mƌs. AƌĐh died iŶ Đhildďiƌth iŶ ϭϵϭϬ.  Mƌ. AƌĐh died iŶ ϭϵϰϮ at the age of ϳϱ.ϴ 

Chaƌles W. AƌĐh eldest soŶ ǁas Williaŵ AƌĐh.  This is the iŶdiǀidual ǁho Wŵ. AƌĐh & “oŶs 
BuildiŶg & CoŶstƌuĐtioŶ ǁas Ŷaŵed foƌ aŶd that held ϭϮ QueeŶ “t. “ fƌoŵ ϭϵϳϬ to ϮϬϭϭ.  
Williaŵ had fiǀe soŶs aŶd tǁo daughteƌs.  OŶe of these soŶs ǁas Chaƌles W. AƌĐh ;ϭϵϮϮ‐ϭϵϴϬͿϵ 
ǁho ǁould hold ϭϬ QueeŶ “t. “. fƌoŵ ϭϵϰϰ uŶtil his death aŶd ǁhose ǇouŶgest soŶ, Williaŵ 
Philip AƌĐh, ǁould suĐĐeed hiŵ oŶ title uŶtil ϮϬϭϬ.  Thus, ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ aƌe sigŶifiĐaŶt iŶ that 
theǇ aƌe assoĐiated ǁith thƌee geŶeƌatioŶs of oǁŶeƌship ďǇ ŵeŵďeƌs of the AƌĐh faŵilǇ. 

The AƌĐh faŵilǇ ǁeƌe loĐallǇ suĐĐessful aŶd of soŵe Ŷote.  Williaŵ C. AƌĐh ǁas Reeǀe of 
“tƌeetsǀille ϭϵϱϯ‐ϭϵϱϳ.ϭϬ  Wŵ. AƌĐh & “oŶs  aƌe ƌeĐoƌded as ďuildeƌs of the Ŷeǁ Post OffiĐe at 
ϭϰϱ QueeŶ “t. “. ;ďuilt ϭϵϲϱ aŶd still ƌeŵaiŶiŶgͿ, of the WilĐoǆ EƋuipŵeŶt ReŶtals ďuildiŶg iŶ the 

ϲ The Tǁeedsŵuiƌ HistoƌǇ of “tƌeetsǀille, Voluŵe III, page ϲϰ ;ĐolleĐtioŶ of Heƌitage MississaugaͿ 

ϳ Mississauga Neǁs, DeĐ ϭϳ ϮϬϭϬ 

ϴ The Tǁeedsŵuiƌ HistoƌǇ of “tƌeetsǀille, Voluŵe II, page ϰϱ ;ĐolleĐtioŶ of Heƌitage MississaugaͿ 

ϵ ReĐoƌds of “tƌeetsǀille CeŵeteƌǇ ;Heƌitage Mississauga ĐolleĐtioŶͿ 

ϭϬ Heƌitage Mississauga ǁeďsite 

6.4 -33



ϯϭ 

eaƌlǇ ϭϵϲϬ’s, of the ƌeŶoǀatioŶs to ϮϮϴ QueeŶ “t. “. aŶd it is ƌeĐoƌded that iŶ ϭϵϮϴ Chaƌles AƌĐh 
did ŵajoƌ ƌeŶoǀatioŶs to the old liďƌaƌǇ ;Ŷoǁ the “tƌeetsǀille BIA BuildiŶgͿ.ϭϭ The faŵilǇ is 
Đoŵŵeŵoƌated iŶ AƌĐh Rd., a ƌesideŶtial stƌeet east of QueeŶ “t. ďetǁeeŶ BƌitaŶŶia aŶd ElleŶ 
“t.  The faŵilǇ is also of Ŷote iŶ that theǇ iŶteƌŵaƌƌied ǁith the “tƌeet faŵilǇ aŶd aƌe the oŶlǇ 
diƌeĐt desĐeŶdaŶts of “tƌeetsǀille fouŶdeƌ TiŵothǇ “tƌeet still liǀiŶg iŶ the ToǁŶ.ϭϮ  This is 
soŵethiŶg still appƌeĐiated ďǇ the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ.  Mƌs. Hilda AƌĐh ;ϭϵϭϰ‐ϮϬϬϴͿ ǁas 
Đoŵŵeŵoƌated at heƌ death as a gƌeat‐gƌeat‐gƌaŶd‐daughteƌ of TiŵothǇ.ϭϯ 

ϰ. IŵpaĐt of DeǀelopŵeŶt oƌ Site AlteƌatioŶ

The pƌoposed deǀelopŵeŶt ǁill haǀe ŵiŶiŵal iŵpaĐt oŶ the ideŶtified heƌitage attƌiďutes iŶ the 
Đultuƌal laŶdsĐape.  The Đultuƌal laŶdsĐape doĐuŵeŶt;sͿ ideŶtifǇ Ŷo paƌtiĐulaƌ featuƌes 
assoĐiated ǁith the eǆistiŶg ďuildiŶg at ϲ, ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ “t. “outh.  Theƌe ǁill ďe a ĐhaŶge iŶ 
ďuildiŶg foƌŵ ďut oŶlǇ as ŵaŶdated uŶdeƌ the OffiĐial PlaŶ aŶd zoŶiŶg ďǇ‐laǁ.  Theƌe ǁill ďe 
ŵiŶiŵal shadoǁ iŵpaĐts outside of the suďjeĐt site.  The deǀelopŵeŶt ǁill ƌesult iŶ 
iŶteŶsifiĐatioŶ of the site ďut this is ĐoŶsisteŶt ǁith siŵilaƌ pƌojeĐts iŶ the iŵŵediate aƌea aŶd 
ǁith the CitǇ’s ǀisioŶ foƌ futuƌe deǀelopŵeŶt of this aƌea. 

ϱ. MitigatioŶ Measuƌes

‐as theƌe aƌe Ŷo ideŶtifiaďle detƌiŵeŶtal iŵpaĐts, Ŷo ŵitigatioŶ ŵeasuƌes aƌe ŶeĐessaƌǇ oƌ 
pƌoposed. 

ϲ. QualifiĐatioŶs

‐a CV foƌ RiĐk MateljaŶ is attaĐhed. 

ϳ. ReĐoŵŵeŶdatioŶs

The pƌopeƌtǇ ŵust ďe eǀaluated uŶdeƌ the Đƌiteƌia foƌ desigŶatioŶ uŶdeƌ the OŶtaƌio Heƌitage 
AĐt. 

ϭ. The pƌopeƌtǇ has desigŶ ǀalue oƌ phǇsiĐal ǀalue ďeĐause it,

i. is a ƌaƌe, uŶiƋue, ƌepƌeseŶtatiǀe oƌ eaƌlǇ eǆaŵple of a stǇle, tǇpe, eǆpƌessioŶ, ŵateƌial
oƌ ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ ŵethod. 

ii. displaǇs a high degƌee of ĐƌaftsŵaŶship oƌ aƌtistiĐ ŵeƌit, oƌ

ϭϭ HiĐks, KathleeŶ; “tƌeetsǀille Fƌoŵ TiŵothǇ to Hazel 

ϭϮ IŶteƌǀieǁ ǁith Mattheǁ WilkiŶsoŶ, Heƌitage Mississauga 

ϭϯ ToƌoŶto “taƌ, Hilda AƌĐh oďituaƌǇ, JaŶ ϮϮ ϮϬϬϴ 
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iii. deŵoŶstƌates a high degƌee of teĐhŶiĐal oƌ sĐieŶtifiĐ aĐhieǀeŵeŶt.

AŶalǇsis:  ϲ & ϭϬ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh haǀe ďeeŶ eǆteŶsiǀelǇ ŵodified siŶĐe fiƌst ĐoŶstƌuĐted aŶd 
aŶǇ sigŶifiĐaŶt oƌigiŶal featuƌes haǀe ďeeŶ lost.  ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh is a haŶdsoŵe ďuildiŶg 
aŶd does displaǇ soŵe iŶteƌest ďut ŶothiŶg Đlose to ǁhat ǁould ďe ƌeƋuiƌed to ďe ĐoŶsideƌed 
ǁoƌthǇ of Paƌt IV desigŶatioŶ. NothiŶg aďout the ďuildiŶgs ǁould iŶdiĐate that theǇ ǁeƌe eǀeƌ 
ƌaƌe, uŶiƋue oƌ displaǇed a high degƌee of ĐƌaftsŵaŶship oƌ aĐhieǀeŵeŶt. 

Ϯ. The pƌopeƌtǇ has histoƌiĐal ǀalue oƌ assoĐiatiǀe ǀalue ďeĐause it,

i. has diƌeĐt assoĐiatioŶs ǁith a theŵe, eǀeŶt, ďelief, peƌsoŶ, aĐtiǀitǇ, oƌgaŶizatioŶ oƌ
iŶstitutioŶ that is sigŶifiĐaŶt to the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ, 

ii. Ǉields, oƌ has the poteŶtial to Ǉield, iŶfoƌŵatioŶ that ĐoŶtƌiďutes to aŶ uŶdeƌstaŶdiŶg
of a ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ oƌ Đultuƌe, oƌ 

iii. deŵoŶstƌates oƌ ƌefleĐts the ǁoƌk oƌ ideas of aŶ aƌĐhiteĐt, aƌtist, ďuildeƌ, desigŶeƌ oƌ
theoƌist ǁho is sigŶifiĐaŶt to a ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ. 

AŶalǇsis:  The ďuildiŶgs pƌoposed to ďe deŵolished haǀe assoĐiatioŶs ǁith the ŵid‐ĐeŶtuƌǇ 
deǀelopŵeŶt of this aƌea, although to Ŷo gƌeateƌ a degƌee thaŶ otheƌ ďuildiŶgs oŶ the stƌeet oƌ 
iŶ the iŵŵediate ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ.  Theƌe is Ŷo eǀideŶĐe that this ďuildiŶg has aŶǇ sigŶifiĐaŶĐe to aŶǇ 
ideŶtifiaďle ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ oƌ Đultuƌe.  Theƌe is eǀideŶĐe of assoĐiatioŶ ǁith the Rutledge faŵilǇ, 
ǁho ǁeƌe of Đultuƌal iŵpoƌtaŶĐe to the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ, ďut the ĐoŶŶeĐtioŶ is Ŷot sigŶifiĐaŶt. Theƌe is 
eǀideŶĐe of ĐoŶŶeĐtioŶ to the DoǁliŶg faŵilǇ aŶd FƌaŶk DoǁliŶg iŶ paƌtiĐulaƌ.  FƌaŶk DoǁliŶg is 
of loĐal iŵpoƌtaŶĐe ďut he is ideŶtified ǁith DoǁliŶg House, the plaĐe of his ďiƌth.  Theƌe is Ŷo 
eǀideŶĐe that the ĐoŵŵuŶitǇ assoĐiates hiŵ ǁith this ďuildiŶg.  Theƌe is stƌoŶg ĐoŶŶeĐtioŶ of 
these ďuildiŶgs to the AƌĐh faŵilǇ ďut this ǁas a laƌge faŵilǇ that ǁould ďe pƌesuŵed to haǀe 
assoĐiatioŶs to ŵaŶǇ pƌopeƌties iŶ the ToǁŶ.  Theƌe is Ŷo eǀideŶĐe that these pƌopeƌties ǁeƌe 
eǀeƌ of paƌtiĐulaƌ Đultuƌal iŵpoƌtaŶĐe ďeĐause of theiƌ oǁŶeƌship ďǇ the AƌĐh faŵilǇ.  The 
faŵilial assoĐiatioŶs ǁith these ďuildiŶgs aƌe iŶteƌestiŶg ďut do Ŷot ƌise to the leǀel that ǁould 
ƌeƋuiƌe Paƌt IV desigŶatioŶ. The possiďilitǇ that oŶe oƌ ŵoƌe of these ďuildiŶgs ǁas ďuilt ďǇ the 
AƌĐh faŵilǇ is also iŶteƌestiŶg ďut this ǁas a ŵajoƌ loĐal ďuildiŶg ĐoŵpaŶǇ that ǁould haǀe 
ĐoŶŶeĐtioŶs to ŵaŶǇ ďuildiŶgs.  Theƌe is Ŷo iŶdiĐatioŶ that these ǁeƌe of paƌtiĐulaƌ sigŶifiĐaŶĐe 
to theŵ. 

ϯ. The pƌopeƌtǇ has ĐoŶteǆtual ǀalue ďeĐause it,

i. is iŵpoƌtaŶt iŶ defiŶiŶg, ŵaiŶtaiŶiŶg oƌ suppoƌtiŶg the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of aŶ aƌea,

ii. is phǇsiĐallǇ, fuŶĐtioŶallǇ, ǀisuallǇ oƌ histoƌiĐallǇ liŶked to its suƌƌouŶdiŶgs, oƌ

iii. is a laŶdŵaƌk.
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ϯϯ 

AŶalǇsis:  The pƌopeƌties pƌoposed to ďe deŵolished do Ŷot ŵaiŶtaiŶ the ĐhaƌaĐteƌ of the 
stƌeetsĐape iŶ a sigŶifiĐaŶt ǁaǇ.    TheǇ aƌe liŶked to theiƌ phǇsiĐal loĐatioŶ oƌ suƌƌouŶdiŶgs ďǇ 
ǀiƌtue of the faĐt that theǇ shaƌe siŵilaƌ ŵassiŶg aŶd foƌŵ to theiƌ Ŷeighďouƌs, ďut this is a ǁeak 
ƌelatioŶship that gƌoǁs ǁeakeƌ as otheƌ ďuildiŶgs oŶ the stƌeet tƌaŶsitioŶ to ŶoŶ‐ƌesideŶtial uses 
aŶd foƌŵs.  TheǇ aƌe Ŷot a laŶdŵaƌk. 

CoŶĐlusioŶ:   

The houses at ϲ, ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh aƌe geŶeƌiĐ, tƌaĐt ďuilt houses.  ϲ & ϭϬ haǀe had 
theiƌ foƌŵ aŶd fiŶishes haǀe ďeeŶ Đoŵpƌoŵised ďǇ suĐĐessiǀe ƌeŶoǀatioŶs aŶd alteƌatioŶs.  ϭϮ 
QueeŶ “t. “. aloŶe ƌetaiŶs soŵe iŶteƌest aŶd ǀalue ďeĐause it has ďeeŶ ǁell ŵaiŶtaiŶed aŶd 
little alteƌed siŶĐe ĐoŶstƌuĐtioŶ.  TheǇ haǀe soŵe assoĐiatioŶs ǁith pƌoŵiŶeŶt loĐal faŵilies ďut 
Ŷot iŶ a ǁaǇ that is atǇpiĐal of sŵall, ƌuƌal ĐoŵŵuŶities. 

The ďuildiŶgs do Ŷot ŵeet the ƌeƋuiƌeŵeŶts foƌ desigŶatioŶ uŶdeƌ Paƌt IV of the OŶtaƌio 
Heƌitage AĐt.   

ϴ. PƌoǀiŶĐial PoliĐǇ StateŵeŶt:

UŶdeƌ the PƌoǀiŶĐial PoliĐǇ “tateŵeŶt, 

͞CoŶseƌǀed:  ŵeaŶs the ideŶtifiĐatioŶ, pƌoteĐtioŶ, use aŶd/oƌ ŵaŶageŵeŶt of Đultuƌal heƌitage 
aŶd aƌĐhaeologiĐal ƌesouƌĐes iŶ suĐh a ǁaǇ that theiƌ heƌitage ǀalues, attƌiďutes aŶd iŶtegƌitǇ 
aƌe ƌetaiŶed.͟ 

AŶalǇsis: 

UŶdeƌ this defiŶitioŶ, ϲ, ϭϬ & ϭϮ QueeŶ “tƌeet “outh do Ŷot ǁaƌƌaŶt ĐoŶseƌǀatioŶ. 
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ϯϰ 

BiďliogƌaphǇ: 

Puďlished ŵateƌials‐ 

HiĐks,  KathleeŶ A., “tƌeetsǀille: fƌoŵ TiŵothǇ to Hazel 

Illustƌated HistoƌiĐal Atlas of the CouŶtǇ of Peel 

NoŶ‐puďlished ŵateƌials aŶd ĐolleĐtioŶs‐ 

CaŶadiaŶa Rooŵ, CitǇ of Mississauga PuďliĐ LiďƌaƌǇ 

Heƌitage Mississauga, iŶĐludiŶg Wŵ. PeƌkiŶs Bull ĐolleĐtioŶ aŶd Tǁeedsŵuiƌ 
HistoƌǇ of “tƌeetsǀille 

Weďsites‐ 

HistoƌiĐ Iŵages dataďase, CitǇ of Mississauga  

PƌopeƌtǇ IŶfoƌŵatioŶ dataďase, CitǇ of Mississauga 

AppeŶdiĐes: 

 Flooƌ plaŶs of eǆistiŶg ďuildiŶgs

 EǆistiŶg stƌeetsĐape aŶd pƌoposed stƌeetsĐape

 ChaiŶ of title iŶfoƌŵatioŶ

 RiĐk MateljaŶ CV
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RICK MATELJAN Lic. Tech. OAA 

3566 Eglinton Ave. W., Mississauga, ON 
(t)  416 315 4567 (e) rick.mateljan@smda.ca 

 
 cirriculum vitae 
 
 
 
Education: 
 
 1978-1983  Trinity College, University of Toronto  

 B. A. (4 year) (Specialist English, Specialist History) 
 

 1994-1995  Ryerson Polytechnic University 
 detailing of residential and institutional buildings, OBC, technical and 

presentation drawing 
 

 1997-2006  Royal Architectural Institute of Canada Syllabus Program 

 program of study leading to a professional degree in architecture 
 

 

Employment: 

 2010 - Present  Strickland Mateljan Design Associates Ltd.(Partner) 

 architectural design practice specializing in custom residential and small 
commercial projects, land development consultation, adaptive re-use, 
heritage conservation  

 heritage and urban design consulting for complex infill projects 
 responsible for management, business development, marketing and 

project delivery 
 extensive experience in municipal approvals, heritage approvals 
 Ontario Licensed Designer 
 Ontario Association of Architects licence with terms, conditions and 

limitations  
 

2001 - 2010  Gren Weis Architect and Associates, Designer and Project Manager 
 design, design development, conceptual, working and presentation 

drawings, project co-ordination, site review,  liaison with authorities 
having jurisdiction 

 extensive client, consultant and building site involvement 
 extensive experience in multi-disciplinary team environments 
 specialist at Municipal Approvals, Site Plan and Re-zoning approvals, 

OMB appeals 
 specialist at renovation and conservation of Heritage buildings, infill 

developments in Heritage communities 
 corporate communication, advertising and photography 
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1993-2001  Diversified Design Corporation, Owner 

 conceptual design, design development, working drawings, approvals 
and construction for custom residential, institutional and commercial 
projects 

 
  

 
Recent professional development: 
 

2012   OAA – Admission  Course 
 
2010   Georgian College – “Small Buildings”  

 
2010 Successfully completed Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing    “Small 

Buildings” and “Designer Legal” examinations 
 
2010  Successfully completed OACETT professional practice exam 
 
2008  Qualified to give testimony before the Ontario Municipal Board 
 
2007  OAA – Heritage Conservation in Practice 

 
2006 RAIC – Standards and Guidelines for the Conservation of Historic Places in 

Canada 
 
 
 

Activities: 
 2014 -2015  Guest critic, University of Waterloo Architectural Practice Program 

2012-present Member,  Board of Directors, OAAAS and member of the OAAAS Student Award      
Jury 

 

2011-present  Member, Editorial Committee, OAA Perspectives magazine 

 2008-present  Member, Board of Directors of Oakville Galleries (President 2011-2013) 

2007-present                         Member,  Mississauga Heritage Advisory Committee (vice-chair from 2015), member  
of the Heritage Award jury and Heritage Property Grant Panel 

 
1995-2001 Member,  Oakville Local Architectural Conservation Advisory Committee and 

Oakville Heritage Review Committee (Chair from 1998) 
 
               2001-2004                          Alternate Member, Oakville Committee of Adjustment (appointed but 
      never called to serve) 
  
  
 
Memberships: 
  Ontario Association of Architects 
  Ontario Association of Applied Architectural Sciences 
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Date: 2016/05/20 

To: Chair and Members of Heritage Advisory Committee 

From: Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator 
Culture Division, Community Services 
 

Meeting Date: 2016/06/14 

Subject: Heritage Advisory Committee Report 
Adaptive Re-Use of Designated Property: 
271 Queen Street South Preliminary Proposal  
Meeting Date: June 14, 2016 

 
This memorandum and its attachment are presented for HAC’s information only. 
 
The subject property is designated under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act under by-law 122-
83 and it is also listed as part of the Streetsville Village Core and Mississauga Road Scenic 
Route Cultural Landscapes.  The building on the property is known as the Odd Fellows’ Hall. 
 
The building on the property is presently vacant.  The owner has been working with a heritage 
consultant, architect and planner to put together a proposal for the adaptive re-use of the Odd 
Fellows’ Hall building.  The proposal requires a heritage permit, site plan approval and a 
building permit, among other approvals.  The heritage permit application is not complete as 
there is additional information required that will be submitted as part of the site plan approval 
process and building permit process.  Attached is the Heritage Impact Assessment that 
describes the concept of the proposal.  The consultant team has requested to make a 
presentation at this preliminary stage to the Heritage Advisory Committee in order to have the 
opportunity to keep the community informed of their plans.  The proposal will be presented to 
the Heritage Advisory Committee at a future date once the formal applications have been 
submitted and reviewed by staff. 
 
 
 

 

Attachments  

Appendix 1: Heritage Impact Assessment 

 

Prepared by: Cecilia Nin Hernandez 

Heritage Coordinator 

Culture Division 

Community Services 

905-615-3200, ext. 5366 

cecilia.ninhernandez@mississauga.ca 
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BACKGROUND & METHODOLOGY 

 

This report was prepared by heritage consultant Megan Hobson for the property owner of 271 

Queen Street South as a requirement for obtaining a heritage permit for a proposed 

rehabilitation of the former Odd Fellows Hall to accommodate a pharmacy and medical offices. 

This Heritage Impact Assessment report has been prepared in accordance with the City of 

Mississauga’s Terms of Reference for Heritage Impact Assessments.1 

 

The proposed development will involve exterior and interior alterations to the former Odd 

Fellows’ Hall constructed in 1875. (See Appendix C for Architectural Drawings) This building has 

served a number of uses since the Odd Fellows Lodge closed in 1956. The building has 

undergone several unsympathetic alterations and is currently vacant and in a poor state or 

repair. It is Designated under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act for its contextual significance 

in the historic village of Streetsville and has been identified as a Landmark building. (See 

Appendix B for By-law 122-83). A number of un-authorized alterations have been made by 

previous owners since its Designation in 1983.  Many of the original exterior and interior 

features have been stripped from the building. It is currently vacant and unheated and has not 

been well maintained for some time. 

 

A site visit was undertaken by Megan Hobson on June 5th, 2014 as part of a previous 

application. Additional site visits were undertaken in January, 2016 to assess the current 

conditions. Alterations completed by the previous owner include further gutting of the interior 

such as removal of the original plaster walls and ceilings of the meeting hall on the upper floor 

but no exterior alterations have been done since 2014. (See Appendix A for Site Photos)  

 

Historical research has been carried out, including a review of relevant primary and secondary 

sources, and a title search to determine past ownership of the property for the previous 

application.2 Information was provided by heritage staff, archivist Matthew Wilkinson at 

Heritage Mississauga and Ann Byard at the Streetsville Archives.  

 

Consultation was undertaken with Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Co-ordinator at the City of 

Mississauga in the preparation of this application. 

 

HERITAGE PLANNING CONTEXT 

 

The subject property is a Designated Heritage Property protected under Part IV of the Ontario 

Heritage Act and City of Mississauga By-law no. 122-83. Mississauga’s official planning policies 

support the Provincial Policy on cultural heritage resources which states that municipalities ‘shall 

protect significant cultural heritage resources’. As a Designated Heritage property, a Heritage 

Impact Assessment is required for any significant alteration to the building on that property. 

This report must be prepared by a qualified heritage consultant and meet all requirements in 

Terms of Reference for Heritage Impact Statements prepared by the City of Mississauga. This 

report is reviewed by Heritage Planning Staff and the Municipal Heritage Committee and a 

recommendation is made to Council regarding the development proposal. 

																																																								
1	Culture Division, City of Mississauga Heritage Impact Assessment Terms of Reference, (October 2015). 
2 A title search back to the original Crown grant was carried out by Chris Aplin, MCA Paralegal Services, Brampton. 
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The subject property is located on the east side of Queen Street South in the historic core of 

Streetsville, a former village that is now part of the City of Mississauga. (Appendix A; Figure 1) 

 

This is a special policy area subject to the Historic Streetsville Design Guidelines developed to 

ensure that any alterations to existing buildings or new developments will enhance the historic 

character of the area. This area contains a significant concentration of Designated and Listed 

19th century buildings. Designated heritage properties located near the subject property 

include: Streetsville United Church (1875) which is directly opposite at 274 Queen Street, 

Franklin House (c. 1850) which is located one lot over to the north at 263-65, and St. Andrew’s 

Presbyterian Church (1868) located a short distance to the south at 295 Queen Street South. 

(See Appendix A; Figure 2) 

 

LOCATION AND SURROUNDINGS 
 

The subject property is located on the east side of Queen Street South just south of the main 

commercial hub Streetsville centered around the intersection of Main and Queen. The village is 

located between the Credit River and the former Credit Valley Railway line now operated by Go 

Transit. (Appendix A; Figure 1) 

 

Streetsville was named after Timothy Street (1777-1848) a prominent early citizen and 

landowner. The subject property is located on a village lot subdivided by Timothy Street (a 

relative) in 1856 and transferred to the Independent Order of Odd Fellows in 1875. 

 

Queen Street is a busy commercial strip lined with small-scale buildings containing a range of 

businesses and services. This area is subject to the Historic Streetsville Design Guidelines 

intended to preserve the scale and character of the streetscape. The 19th century streetscape is 

still clearly legible. The subject property has been identified as a Landmark Building in this 

streetscape. (Appendix A; Figure 4 and Figure 6) 

 

The subject property is located on a lot that is significantly larger than those associated with 

other commercial properties in the historic core. It is similar in scale to lots just south of core 

that contain buildings associated with religious or institutional uses. Like other commercial 

properties on Queen Street it is close to the street. (Appendix A; Figure 2) 

 
SITE DESCRIPTION (SEE APPENDIX A; ILLUSTRATIONS) 

 

The subject property contains a large red brick building originally constructed in 1875 by Lodge 

No. 122 of the Independent Order of Odd Fellows (IOOF). The main façade is oriented to 

Queen Street South and consists of a three-bay symmetrical façade with an arched main 

entrance flanked by very tall round arched windows. There is a large double window on the 2nd 

floor above the main entrance with tall round arched windows on either side. The main entrance 

is recessed slightly in a decorative brick arch. The upper floor windows are recessed slightly in 

brick piers and have decorative brick paneling below the sills. (Appendix A; Figure 12) 
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The foundation is rubble stone (Figure 6 below) and the exterior walls consist of 4 layers of brick 

laid in common bond. (Figure 1 below) The brick is coal or wood fired and probably produced 

locally c. 1875 when the building was originally constructed. Some older 4 over 4 wood sash 

windows survive (Figure 12 below) but many have been replaced with recent wood windows 

(Figure 13 below) or metal doors (Figure 15 below). Basement windows on the rear façade have 

been bricked in. The brick is generally sound but there are localized areas that are in poor 

condition and areas that have been rebuilt with inappropriate replacement brick, as well as 

areas that have been re-pointed with inappropriate mortar (Figures 3, 5, and 13 below). 

Corbelled brick details (x4) on the roofline appear unstable (Figure 9 below) and brick chimneys 

(x4) have been parged and/or partially rebuilt with a cementitious material (Figure 10 below). 

The original cornice has been removed and there is a simple capped brick parapet wall on the 

front with a shallow sloped gable roof behind. (For missing elements see Appendix A; Figure 8) 

 

There are no other structures on the property and the building fills most of the lot. The street 

frontage is very narrow. There is a one and a half brick commercial building to the north, an 

empty lot to the south. The lot backs onto the rear of lots fronting on Church Street. There is a 

loading dock at the rear of the south side elevation. (Appendix A; Figures 3 and 15) 

 

The building is currently vacant and no heating or cooling system was apparent. Several doors 

and windows on the ground floor are hoarded but the building is unsecured due to a large hole 

in the masonry at the rear of the north side elevation. (Appendix A; Figure 13) 

 

The interior contains two double-height floors and a small loft at the back. The interior has been 

gutted by a previous owner. Some of the original plaster has survived on the exterior walls on 

the ground floor but large areas are missing. The plaster is approximately ¾ inch thick and is 

applied directly to the brick with no lathe. There is no plaster on the lower portion of the wall 

suggesting there may have been wood paneling here that has been removed. (See Appendix A; 

Figures 31-46) 

 

The ground floor is one large space with no partition walls. (Appendix A; Figures 31-33) The 

floors are narrow pine boards 2 ins wide and ¾ in thick and are in very poor condition. An area 

at the back that may have contained a stage now has no floor. The basement in this area is 

exposed and a sump pump has been installed to drain several feet of standing water that had 

collected there due to holes in the building envelope. (Appendix A; Figure 36) 

 

The ground floor ceiling appear to be supported by 3 modern steel I-beams that go through 

the exterior masonry walls from side to side. In addition, there are 2 original cast iron columns 

supporting 2 original wood beams that run from the front to the back of the building and are 

supported on the exterior masonry walls. (Appendix A; Figure 31) 

 

The second floor is divided into 3 rooms; one large room across the front and a larger room in 

the back with a small room off to one side. All internal walls and ceilings have been stripped 

and the studs and roof timbers are now exposed. The wood floors have boards of varying 

widths from 5-8 inches and are in very poor condition. (Appendix A; Figure 37-45) 

 

There is some original millwork around windows in the large room in the back including window 

casings and sills. (Appendix A; Figures 44 and 45) This room contains a modern brick fireplace 
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and stove in the south wall and there is a modern wood stair to the loft on the north wall. 

(Appendix A; 39) 

 

The loft is a small dry-walled room with a modern sliding glass door to the roof. The original 

timber roof framing has been left exposed. (Appendix A; Figure 46) 

 
HISTORICAL CONTEXT 

 

Streetsville, located in the south-east corner of Peel County, was at one time considered the 

‘Queen of the County’. Streetsville reached its height of prosperity in the 1850s. This prosperity 

waned slightly when the town was by-passed by the Great Western Railway and Grand Trunk 

Railway lines in the late 1850s when Brampton rose to promise in the County. The opening of 

the Credit Valley Railway (CVR) line through Streetsville in 1879 brought renewed prosperity to 

the town. The Odd Fellows Hall was constructed in this period of renewed prosperity. (See 

Appendix A; Figure 7. The1877 County map shows the CVR Railway line passing through 

Streetsville) 

 

The Independent Order of Odd Fellows (IOOF) was a fraternal society that originated in Britain. 

The first lodge in Canada was founded in Montreal in 1843. The first Lodge in Canada West was 

in Belleville, founded in 1845. Following that, lodges were established in many towns in Ontario 

and in 1855 the Grand Lodge of Canada West was formed. Initially the Grand Lodge had 12 

local Lodges in its jurisdiction but by 1923 there were over four hundred.  

 

The Streetsville Lodge was founded in 1847 and was therefore one the earliest Odd Fellow 

lodges in Ontario and one of the earliest fraternal societies founded in Streetsville and perhaps 

Peel Township.  

 

Land records indicate that a large lot in the Village that belonged to Timothy Street was 

transferred to the Odd Fellows Society in 1875 for a small sum of $1.00. The Odd Fellows 

constructed a large brick building that contained a large public assembly hall on the main floor 

and a lavish meeting room for the Odd Fellows’ on the upper floor. Another large room on the 

upper floor was used by the Farmers’ and Mechanics’ Institute as a library and reading room. 

This collection formed the basis of the Streetsville Library and was housed here until 1902 when 

the Streetsville Public Library moved to its own premises. (Appendix A; Figure 8) 

 

The Odd Fellows Society was comprised of members of the professional, commercial and social 

elite and supported various charitable organizations that benefited poor and working class 

people in the community. One of the principal goals of the organization was to further public 

education. The public hall on the main floor served as a social, educational and cultural center 

for the community for many years. Various types of community events were held here including 

lectures, concerts, plays, dances and banquets. (Appendix A; Figure 9) 

 

The Odd Fellows sold the hall in in 1972. Subsequent owners converted it for commercial uses 

and removed many original features. 

 

 

 

6.5 - 7



	

MHobson_HIS_271 Queen Street South, Mississauga_Final Report_04 Mar 2016 

	
7 

The chart below provides a brief chronology of the subject property: 

DATE EVENT 

1822 Crown Grant of 200 acres (Lot 3, Concession 4, Township of Toronto) to William 

Lindsay. 

1822 William Lindsay sells 100 acres to Timothy Street 

1843 Independent Order of Odd Fellows (IOOF) is introduced into British North 

America 

1847 Streetsville establishes Lodge no. 122 of the IOOF 

1855 IOOF establishes the Grand Lodge of Canada West 

1856 Timothy Street Registers a Plan for Building Lots in Streetsville (STR-3) Annotation 

on the plan reads; “N.B. This property is composed of part of Lot No. 3 (West half 

of same) in the 4th Concession West of Hurontario Street Toronto Tp.” 271 Queen 

Street West is identified on this plan as Lot no. 21. There is a blacksmith shop on 

the adjacent lot to the south. The plan covers an area between Queen and Church 

Street from Pine Street east to the division line between Lots 2 and 3. There are 

49 building lots of various sizes on the plan. Lot no. 21 (271 Queen Street South) 

is one of the larger lots. 

1876 Lot 21 (271 Queen Street South) is sold by Bennet Franklin et ux to Charles 

Douglas et al. (There is no record of a transfer from Timothy Street to Bennet 

Franklin at the Registry Office). 

1877 Lot 21 (271 Queen Street South) is sold by Charles Douglas et al. to the Odd 

Fellows Society for $1.00. The Odd Fellows finance construction of a large two-

storey brick hall that contains a public assembly hall on the first floor and a lavish 

meeting room on the 2nd floor. The Streetsville lodge is identified as Lodge No. 

122 of the Independent Order of Odd Fellows. 

1877 The Farmers’ and Mechanics’ Institute (est. 1858) moves into the Odd Fellows’ 

Hall and occupies a large room on the 2nd floor that served as a library and 

reading room until 1902. This was Streetsville’s first public library. 

1877 The River Park Masonic Lodge holds its meetings in the Odd Fellow’s meeting 

room.  

1902 Streetsville Library (formerly the Farmers’ and Mechanic’s Institute) moves out of 

the Odd Fellows’ Hall into its own premises on land purchased from the 

Cunningham family. 

1972 The Odd Fellows’ Hall is sold by the IOOF to Susan C. Campbell. 

1972 River Park Masonic Lodge that had met in the Odd Fellows’ Hall since 1877 moves 

to new premises. 

? The Odd Fellows’ Hall is converted for commercial uses. Subsequent owners 

make various changes to the building including; removal of architectural features 

from the facade such as the cornice and roofline ornaments and other stone 

elements, removal of the gabled architrave over the double windows on the 2nd 

floor, application of commercial cladding and glazing on the ground floor, 

painting of the masonry on the front façade, removal of original wood sash and 

wood panel doors including the front door, inappropriate masonry repairs 

1983 Designation under Part Iv of the Ontario Heritage Act by Corporation of the City 

of Mississauga By-Law 122-83 for its architectural and historical value. 

• Title Search undertaken by Chris Aplin, MCA Paralegal Services, Brampton. 
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HERITAGE VALUE 

 

Heritage values associated with 271 Queen Street South identified by the City of Mississauga in 

By-law 122-83 are contextual. (See Appendix B) Schedule A of the B-lay contains a ‘Short 

Statement of the Reasons for Designation’; 

 
Contextually, the building built in 1875, is a landmark building 
in the historic streetscape of Streetsville’s main commercial 
thoroughfare. The height and prominent façade further enhance the 
structure’s placement in the historic core. 

 

This property does warrant Designation under Part IV of the Heritage Act. This analysis is based 

on provincially mandated criteria outlined in Regulation 9/06. The rationale is outlined below: 

 

Compliance with Ontario Heritage Act, Ontario Regulation 9/06: Criteria 
for Determining Cultural Heritage Value or Interest 
 
According to Subsection 1 (2) of Ontario Regulation 9/06, Criteria for Determining Cultural 
Heritage Value or Interest, a property may be designated under section 29 of the Act if it meets 
one or more of the following criteria: 
 
1. The property has design value or physical value because it, 

i. is a rare, unique, representative or early example of a style, type, expression, material or  
  construction method, 
ii. displays a high degree of craftsmanship or artistic merit, or 
iii. demonstrates a high degree of technical or scientific achievement. 

 
271 Queen Street South is a representative example of the type of building built by fraternal 
societies in Ontario in the last quarter of the 19

th
 century when these societies were at the height 

of their influence. Due to the fact that many of its original exterior and interior features have been 
removed, it can not be considered a good example. It displays a moderately high degree of 
craftsmanship in terms of its exterior brick work and interior plaster work. It demonstrates a 
moderately high degree of technical achievement in terms of the large open-span interior spaces 
achieved through thick masonry walls and timber framing in order to accommodate large public 
assemblies. 

 
2. The property has historical value or associative value because it, 

i. has direct associations with a theme, event, belief, person, activity, organization or institution 
that is significant to a community, 

ii. yields, or has the potential to yield, information that contributes to an understanding of a 
  community or culture, or 
iii. demonstrates or reflects the work or ideas of an architect, artist, builder, designer or theorist  
  who is significant to a community. 

 
271 Queen Street South is associated with the Independent Order of Odd Fellows (IOOF), 
specifically Streetsville Lodge No. 122 founded in 1847 and is one of the earliest lodges in 
Ontario. The Streetsville Lodge is significant to the history of Mississauga because it is an 
example of a private fraternal societies established by local elites to provide charitable services 
and free public education to working class people before public institutions were well established. 
The physical fabric of this structure yields information that contributes to an understanding of the 
community and its culture because it is a large and well constructed assembly hall built and 
financed by private citizens for public use to benefit the community. In its original state it had an 
exotic and eclectic architectural style that is associated with the IOOF. Its architectural character 
is now somewhat diminished due to the removal of many original features including the cornice 
and other embellishments on the main facade. It was likely designed by a local builder or a 
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member of the lodge but this person has not been identified as of yet. It may be associated with a 
particular architect, artist, builder, designer or theorist who is significant to the community. It is 
similar to halls built in the 1870s by fraternal orders in small towns across Ontario. 
 
3. The property has contextual value because it, 

i. is important in defining, maintaining or supporting the character of an area, 
ii. is physically, functionally, visually or historically linked to its surroundings, or 
iii. is a landmark. 

 
271 Queen Street South has significant contextual value as a component of the historic core of 
Streetsville . Individually it has considerable importance in defining the character of the area 
because of its scale, its eclectic High Victorian style and its use of locally produced red brick. This 
has been somewhat diminished by the removal of original exterior features, specifically the 
elaborate cornice and finials on the roofline and stone decorative details on the main façade. It is 
a landmark building that occupies a prominent position on Queen Street South in the historic core 
of Streetsville. It is part of a significant concentration of built heritage resources dating from the 
mid to late 19

th
 century when Streetsville was a prosperous village in Peel County. 

 

In conclusion, the subject property does meet provincial criteria for individual Designation 

under Part IV of the Heritage Act. 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL (SEE APPENDIX C: ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS) 

 

The proposed development will retain the existing building envelope, restore the exterior, and 

rehabilitate the interior. There will be no change to the footprint or height of the existing 

building. Interior finishes will be removed and replaced with modern finishes. 

 

	
Figure 1: Proposed restoration of the main facade. 
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The interior will be reconfigured to accommodate a pharmacy on the ground floor and medical 

offices on the upper floors.  The basement will be renovated for x-ray and laboratory services. 

 

Currently the building interior contains two double-height floors with a small loft on the third 

floor. The applicant proposes inserting an additional floor to divide the interior into three floors 

of leasable space.  

 

The new floor plates will be supported by a free-standing structural system that will be inserted 

inside the existing exterior masonry walls. No window openings will be changed and interior 

window wells will be constructed around the windows so that the floor plates do not intersect 

the windows. There will be glazing in the window wells to allow natural light into the interior 

and to preserve views through the original windows. 

 

	
Figure 2: Section showing the proposed self-supporting floor structure within the existing building 

envelope. 

 

There is currently no operational heating or cooling system. New systems will be introduced 

and the mechanical room will be constructed in the existing loft area at the rear.  

All original wood windows appear to salvageable and will be retained. The five windows on the 

main elevation are replacement windows that are in poor condition and will require 

replacement. Replacement windows will replicate the historic windows on the side elevations. 

 

The main façade will be restored based on historic photos. Restoration work to be undertaken 

include paint removal, masonry repairs and reinstatement of missing features such as the front 

door, the windows and the roof cornice. 
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An enclosed fire exit stair will be constructed at the rear and metal fire doors will be installed on 

the side elevations. The exit door on the south elevation will be in the same location as an 

existing metal door. The exit door on the north elevation will be in the location of an existing 

window opening. 

 

	
Figure	3:	Proposed	rear	addition	to	house	an	enclosed	fire	exit	stair. 
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Table 1.0 PROPOSED CONSERVATION WORK & RECOMMENDATIONS 

(SEE APPENDIX C; ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS) 

 

PROPOSED UNDERTAKING IMAGE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Repair historic masonry & mortar; 

 

• selective repairs and re-

pointing throughout, as 

required, 

• original fabric will be 

preserved, 

• new work will match old. 

 

 
 

 

APPROVAL 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Work to be carried out 

by an experienced 

heritage mason. 

• Samples of replacement 

brick and new mortar to 

be provided to staff for 

final approval. 

 

 

Remove inappropriate repairs & 

restore to match original; 

 

• remove new brick around 

window opening on the 

main façade that was 

repaired by a previous 

owner 

• replace with salvaged 

brick to match original 

• replace deteriorated 

stone sills with stone and 

tooling to match original 

 

 
 

 
 

 

APPROVAL 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Work to be carried out 

by an experienced 

heritage mason 

• Samples of replacement 

brick and new mortar 

and replacement brick 

to be provided to staff 

for final approval. 

 

Remove paint from main facade 

  

APPROVAL 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Work to be carried out 

by an experienced 
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heritage brick cleaning 

expert. 

• Test patches to be 

carried with various 

cleaning methods to 

determine most 

appropriate cleaning 

method using either 

Vortex (non-abrasive) 

cleaning system, 

poultice or combination 

of both.  

• Samples and details to 

be provided to heritage 

staff for final approval. 

 

 

Reinstate original roof cornice 

molding based on historic 

photos. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

APPROVAL 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• New materials will be 

compatible with 

existing and will be 

masonry or stucco. 

• Final details on 

materials and 

application to be 

provided to heritage 

staff for approval. 
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Repair existing wood windows 

on the north and south 

elevations where feasible 

 

 

 
 

 

APPROVAL 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Work to be carried out 

by an experience 

heritage window 

expert. 

• There are 6 historic 

windows on the south 

elevation that appear to 

be salvageable.  

• There are 5 historic 

windows on the north 

elevation that will 

require further 

assessment to 

determine if they are 

salvageable. 

• A detailed condition 

assessment and 

recommendation from a 

heritage window expert 

should be provided to 

staff if any window 

replacements are 

required. 

 

Re-instate original window 

opening and install new window 

to match other windows on north 

elevation 

 

 
 

 

APPROVAL 

 

This door is not original and 

there was originally a window in 

this location. 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Replacement window 

will match existing 

historic windows. 

• Detailed window 

specification to be 

provided to staff for 

final approval. 
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Retain historic roof timbers and 

leave exposed in the interior. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

APPROVAL 
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Table 2.0 HERITAGE MPACTS & MITIGATION    

(SEE APPENDIX D; HERITAGE IMPACTS) 

 

PROPOSED 

UNDERTAKING 

IMPACTS RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Replacement of non-historic 

windows on the main 

elevation. 

 

Replacement windows to 

match historic windows on 

side elevations and as shown 

in historic photos; 

• wood construction 

• segmental arch 

• 4/4 configuration with 

true divided lights or 

simulated divided 

lights 

 

 

NO DIRECT IMPACTS; 

 

• These are not 

historic windows. 

• They are poorly 

constructed 

replacement 

windows that are 

not performing 

well. 

• Existing window 

openings will not 

be altered. 

 

 

APPROVAL 

 

This will enhance the façade and 

there is sufficient evidence to 

support the restoration based on 

surviving historic windows on other 

elevations and historic photos of 

the façade. 

 

MITIGATION: Design measures 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Window specifications to 

be provided to staff for 

final approval. 

 

 

Replacement of non-historic 

metal and glass door on the 

main elevation. 

 

Replacement door will be a 

replica of the original door 

documented in historic 

photos and will include a solid 

wood door with paneling and 

glazing in the ached transom. 

 

NO DIRECT IMPACTS; 

 

• This is not a 

historic door. 

• The existing door 

opening will not be 

altered. 

 

APPROVAL 

 

This will enhance the façade and 

there is sufficient evidence to 

support the restoration historic 

photos of the façade. 

 

MITIGATION: Design measures 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Door specifications to be 

provided to staff for final 

approval. 

 

 

Replacement of non-historic 

metal door on the south 

elevation. 

 

NO DIRECT IMPACTS 

 

• There is an existing 

metal door here. 

• The existing door 

opening will not be 

altered 

 

APPROVAL 

 

This will have no impact on 

heritage values. 
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Installation of a new metal fire 

door on the north elevation to 

accommodate fire safety 

requirements. 

 

The door will be installed 

where there is an existing 

window opening. 

 

The upper sash will be 

retained. 

 

The lower sash will be 

removed and the opening 

enlarged to accommodate a 

doorway. 

 

 

MINOR IMPACTS 

 

• The re-location of 

this door is 

required to 

accommodate the 

new interior 

requirements. 

• A metal fire door is 

required to meet 

fire safety 

requirements. 

 

APPROVAL 

 

This elevation is located in the alley 

and is not visible from the street.  

 

This is a minor alteration to 

accommodate fire safety 

requirements and will not have a 

significant impact on heritage 

values. 

 

MITIGATION: Salvage 

 

The lower sash to be removed 

should be salvaged and use to 

repair other historic windows. 

 

 

Construction of an enclosed 

fire escape stairwell at the 

rear to satisfy fire safety 

requirements. 

 

Four level brick enclosure 

housing an external fire 

escape. 

 

Brick to match historic brick in 

colour and detailing, including 

herringbone panels between 

windows. 

 

Windows will be single pane 

fixed windows with square 

tops. 

 

Flat roof with roof height to 

match height of rooflines. 

 

MINOR IMPACTS; 

 

• Removal of a small 

number of brick 

units from the rear 

façade to allow for 

an exit door on 

each level to the 

fire escape. 

• Rear addition that 

will be visible from 

the street. 

 

APPROVAL 

 

This is a fire safety requirement for 

the type of occupancy being 

proposed. 

 

The fire escape enclosure will be 

located at the middle of the rear 

elevation and will be set back from 

the south elevation by 3.72 m. 

 

The scale, materials and design 

details are compatible with the 

historic building. 

 

MITIGATION: Salvage 

 

The brick units to be removed 

should be salvaged and used for 

restoration of the façade. 

 

 

Excavation of the basement 

level to accommodate x-ray 

and laboratory space. 

 

The existing foundation will 

 

POTENTIAL IMPACTS; 

 

• Potential impacts 

to the structural 

stability of the 

 

APPROVAL 

 

CONDITIONS; 

 

• Applicant to provide staff 
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be underpinned to allow 

excavation. 

exterior masonry 

walls. 

with an engineer’s report 

to demonstrate that the 

proposed basement level 

will not have any adverse 

affects on the structural 

stability of the exterior 

walls. 

 

 

Gutting of existing interior 

and installation of new 

interior walls and finishes to 

accommodate pharmacy on 

ground floor and medical 

office on the upper floors. 

 

Ceiling between the existing 

1st and 2nd floors will be 

removed. 

 

Plaster on the inside of the 

exterior walls will be 

removed. 

 

A wood staircase in the 

northwest corner will be 

removed. 

 

Wood flooring on the existing 

1st and 2nd floors will be 

removed. 

 

A heritage permit was issued 

to the previous owner that 

allowed gutting of the interior 

subject to documentation 

before removal. Interior 

elements that have already 

been removed include: 

• all interior walls. 

• 2nd floor ceiling  

• original plaster from 

the 2nd floor meeting 

room 

 

 

MINOR IMPACTS; 

 

• Removal of an 

historic wood 

staircase. 

• Removal of 2 

historic plaster 

medallions on the 

1st floor 

 

APPROVAL 

 

MITIGATION: Salvage 

 

Retain and repair historic wood 

window trim on the 2nd floor. 

 

 
 

Salvage the wooden newel post on 

the 2nd floor. 

 

 
 

Salvage the 2 plaster medallions 

on the 1st floor. 

 

6.5 - 19



	

MHobson_HIS_271 Queen Street South, Mississauga_Final Report_04 Mar 2016 

	
19 

 
 

 

Installation of two new floor 

plates to covert existing two-

level interior into three floors. 

 

The new floors will be 

supported by a new framing 

system that will be free-

standing. 

 

Interior window wells will be 

created around existing 

windows. 

 

Window wells will have 

glazing to allow natural light 

into the interior 

 

 

MODERATE IMPACTS 

 

• The proposed floor 

system will be self-

supporting and will 

not impose any 

additional loading 

on the exterior 

masonry walls. 

• The glazed window 

wells will mitigate 

the impact of the 

new floor plates 

intersecting the 

existing 1st and 1nd 

floor windows. 

 

 

 

APPROVAL 

 

CONDITIONS: 

 

• Applicant to provide staff 

with an engineer’s report 

to demonstrate that the 

proposed floor system will 

not have any adverse 

affects on the structural 

stability of the exterior 

walls. 

 

Installation of new mechanical 

systems throughout and 

housing of mechanical units in 

an existing loft area at the 

rear. 

 

There is currently no 

operational heating or air 

conditioning in the interior. 

 

 

NO IMPACTS 

 

The existing loft area is a 

later addition. 

 

APPROVAL 
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ALTERNATIVE DEVELOPMENT OPTION 

 

The current interior configuration does not meet the needs of the applicant. Due to the 

considerable expense of rehabilitating this vacant building, the applicant requires four floors of 

useable space.  

 

In consultation with heritage staff, the applicant has worked with an architect, engineer and 

heritage consultant to explore various options for minimizing negative and non-reversible 

impacts.  

 

The applicant initially submitted a proposal to add an additional storey. The additional floor 

would be glazed with a flat roof and would be concealed behind the front parapet. The new 

addition would require removal of the existing roof and would be highly visible on the south 

elevation. Missing features on the main façade would be restored and the whole exterior would 

be painted. 

 

	
Figure 4: Preliminary proposal for an additional storey added to the existing building. 

Impacts and proposed mitigation measures were presented to heritage staff for their input. 

 

Preliminary development proposal:  

  

• Construction of an additional storey. 

• Restoration of the façade. 

• Painting of exterior masonry. 

• Replacement windows to match existing. 

 

Heritage impacts:  

  

• Removal of the existing roof structure. 

• Removal of historic windows. 

• Painting of unpainted exterior masonry. 
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Mitigation Measures:   

 

• Documentation and salvage of historic roof timbers. 

• Roofline not to the exceed height of the facade parapet. 

• New work to be compatible with existing. 

• New windows to replicate historic windows. 

• Breathable masonry paint. 

 

Heritage staff identified the following concerns with this option: 

 

• the existing roofline and roof timbers have heritage value and are character-defining 

elements. 

• painting of masonry that is already painted is appropriate but unpainted brick should 

not be painted. 

• the historic windows should be retained and repaired if feasible. 

• the new building height would exceed the current zoning and would require site plan 

approval. 

 

In response to these concerns, the owner has revised the preliminary proposal so that the space 

requirements could be accommodated within the existing building envelope. The revised 

proposal is the preferred option. 

 

 

CONCLUSIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

This property has sat vacant for several years and is unheated and continues to deteriorate. 

There are holes in the foundation and the interior has been gutted. In order to ensure the 

conservation of this building it is imperative that a new use be found before further and non-

reversible deterioration occurs.  

 

The proposed development represents an opportunity to restore the historic façade and 

rehabilitate the interior space to modern standards. The combination of commercial space on 

the ground floor and professional medical offices on the upper floors is appropriate given its 

location. 

 

It is therefore recommended that the city approve the proposed development for 271 Queen 

Street South since it will allow conservation of this landmark heritage building, contribute to the 

economic vitality of the Historic Streetsville area, and visually enhance the streetscape. 
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Figure 9: Odd Fellows Play, n.d. The stage pictured here was located at the back of the 

ground floor. It has been removed and no traces remain. The cast iron columns in the 

foreground are extant. [Streetsville Archives] 
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Figure 10: Streetsville Glass. The former Odd Fellows' Hall has been adapted for commercial 

use. Original features have been removed, the brick facade has been painted, and the ground 

floor has been altered. [Heritage Mississauga] 
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Figure 11: Red Hill Art Glass. The former Odd Fellows’ Hall adapted for commercial use. 

Original features have been removed, the brick has been painted, and the ground floor has 

been altered. [Heritage Mississauga] 
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Figure 12: 471 Queen Street South, current condition. A previous owner removed the modern 

cladding from the ground floor and re-instated the arched windows. This work was poorly done 

and is not sympathetic to the original in materials or workmanship. The paint on the upper floor 

has not been removed. [M. Hobson June 2014] 
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Figure 13: Side elevation in a narrow alley between the subject property and the commercial 

building next door. There is a large hole in the masonry below the back door sill pictured 

above. Brick spalling on the pier. 
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Figure 14: Rear elevation (right) is very close to the rear property line and obscured by 

vegetation in summer. There are no windows on the rear façade with the exception of two 

basement windows that have been bricked in. [Photo courtesy of the owner]. 
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Figure 15: Side elevation adjacent to an empty lot. A door has been added at the rear for a 

loading dock. The chimneys have been parged with a cementitious material. 
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Figure 16: Rubble stone foundation with a brick apron above with a bevelled edge. 

 

	
Figure 17: Cut and tooled limestone corner block. 
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Figure 18: Cut and hammered stone window sill. 

	

.	

	

	

	
Figure 19: Decorative herring bone brickwork between the 1st and 2nd storey windows. Brick 

arches above the windows. 
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Figure 20: Odd Fellows' name plaque above the 2nd floor windows. Historic photos indicate 

that this is a stone (or artificial stone) plaque that contrasted in colour and texture with the dark 

red brick and yellow mortar joints of the wall. Decorative brick panels and piers are truncated 

due to the removal of capitals and a triangular pediment above the plaque and a heavy 

decorative cornice at the roofline. 
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Figure 21: The original wood panelled door and arched transom have been removed and 

replaced by modern metal and plate glass doors. The recessed brick arch remains but the stone 

molding above has been removed. 
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Figure 22: Detail of the brick arch around the front entrance. 

	

	

Figure 23: Large 4 over 4 wood sash window on the side elevation. Similar windows appear in 

the c. 1920 photo (Fig. 7) and may be original. These windows are currently not operable. 
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Figure 24: Brick corbells at the corners of the roof. 

 

 

	
Figure 25: Metal doors or shutters on a window on the side elevation. 
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Figure 26: A loading dock added to the side elevation at the rear. 

	

	
Figure 27: A wood paneled door on the side elevation at the rear. The sill has rotted and there 

is a large hole in the masonry below. 
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Figure 28: Poorly done restoration of the ground floor window on the main facade. 
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Figure 29: Three modern steel I-beams have been inserted through the exterior masonry walls 

	

	

	

Figure 30; Detail showing painted and un-painted areas on the front facade. 
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Figure 31: The ground floor interior is one large open space. Two cast iron columns support 

wooden timbers that extend from the front to the back. The walls have lime plaster with the 

exception of the area below the window sills which is bare an may have had wood panellling. 

 

Figure 32: Ground floor interior. Front wall showing concrete block that was used to fill in an 

opening made for a display window. 
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Figure 33: Ground Floor interior showing the staircase to the upper floor. Modern steel I-beams 

that span the interior are embedded in the exterior masonry walls. 

	

Figure 34: One of two gilded plaster medallions on the ground floor ceiling. This is similar to a 

medallion on the 2nd floor and may be original. 
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Figure 35: Lime plaster (3/4 inch thick) is applied directly to the exterior brick walls. 

	

	
Figure 36: A large portion of the floor at the back of the ground floor is missing in an area that 

may have been a stage. At the time of the site visit the basement contained several feet of 

water. 
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Figure 37: Newell post at the top of the stairs. 

	

Figure 38: Front room on the 2nd floor that originally served as the Farmers' and Mechanics' 

Institute reading room. Floors are pine boards of varying widths (5-8 ins). Exterior walls are 

coated in lime plaster. The ceilling has been removed and the framing is exposed above. 

Interior walls have been stripped down to the studs. 
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Figure 39: Large room at the rear of the 2nd floor with a coved plaster ceilling that originally 

served as the Odd Fellows meeting room. A modern wooden stair leads to a small loft area 

through an opening cut in the plaster ceiling. There is a modern brick fireplace and stove insert 

on the exterior wall. The plaster medallion on the ceilling matches the two plaster medallions on 

the first floor. 
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Figure 40; Much of the interior on the 2nd floor was gutted by a previous owner. The original 

joists and roof timbers are exposed. The original wood structure supporting the coved plaster 

ceilling in the Odd Fellows’ meeting room is exposed. 

	

	

	
Figure 41: Detail of the plaster cove and plaster cornices. 
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Figure 42: Detail of the lathe behind the original coved plaster ceiling in the Odd Fellows' 

meeting room. 

	

Figure 43: Detail showing an area of the plaster ceilling that has collapsed due to water 

damage. 
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Figure 44: Detail of the original wood window casing and plaster cornice in the meeting room 

	

	
Figure 45: Detail of the original wood window sill and casing in the meeting room. 

	

6.5 - 55



 

	
Figure 46: Detail of the original roof timbers in the loft. 
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Appendix B: Reasons for Designation (City of Mississauga By-

law no. 122-83)  
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   Appendix C: Development Proposal (Drawings by Zoran Paar Architect) 

	
Figure 1: Proposed Main Facade on Queen Street 
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Figure 2: Facade Restoration 
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Figure 3: Proposed South Elevation 
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Figure 4: Proposed North Elevation 
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Figure 5: Proposed Rear Elevation 
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Figure 6: Proposed Basement Floor Plan 

	
Figure 7: Proposed Ground Floor Plan 
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Figure 8: Proposed 2nd Floor plan 
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Figure 9: Proposed 3 rd Floor Plan 
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Figure 10: Proposed Loft Plan 

6.5 - 67



	

	

	

	

	
Figure 11: Proposed Section 
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Figure 12: Existing Ground Floor Plan 
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Figure 13: Existing 2nd Floor Plan 
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Figure 14: Existing loft and roof timbers. 
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Date: 2016/05/20 

To: Chair and Members of Heritage Advisory Committee 
 

From: Cecilia Nin Hernandez, Heritage Coordinator 
Culture Division, Community Services 
 

Meeting Date: 2016/06/14 

Subject: Heritage Advisory Committee Report 
Heritage Impact Assessment for property adjacent to designated Property: 701 
and 805 Winston Churchill Boulevard  
June 14, 2016 

 
This memorandum and its attachments are presented for HAC’s information only. 
 
The subject property is located adjacent to the property at 381 Winston Churchill Boulevard, 
which is designated under Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act.  Accordingly, a Heritage Impact 
Assessment was submitted with the draft plan and rezoning development applications.  See 
appendix 1.  
 
 
 
 
Attachments  

Appendix 1: Heritage Impact Assessment 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:   Cecilia Nin Hernandez 

Heritage Coordinator 

Culture Division 

905-615-3200, ext. 5366 

cecilia.ninhernandez@mississauga.ca 
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Present Owner Contact Information

Owner:  Lifetime Developments
   Attn: Robert Wells, MCIP, RPP
  49 Jackes Avenue, Suite 200
  Toronto, Ontario M4T 1E2
  (416) 987-3344 ext. 234
  rob@lifetimedevelopments.com

Planners: John. D. Rogers & Associates Inc.
  Attn: Mark Rogers
  34 Thomas Street
  Mississauga, ON, L5M 1Y5
  (905) 812-3900
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2. SITE HISTORY AND DOCUMENTATION OF 
HERITAGE RESOURCES

The subject properties are located in the City of Mississauga, Regional 
Municipality of Peel, Ontario, formerly known as the Township of Toronto, 
in the former Peel County.  

Peel County was one of many Counties that formed the extensive district 
referred to as the “Nassau District” - later “Home District.”  By the mid-
nineteenth century, there was a push for Peel to become a separate and 
distinct  county, and  in 1865, a provisional council for Peel  was 
assembled.   The first official council for Peel  County met in the court 
house in Brampton in 1867.

Peel  County was comprised  of five Townships – Toronto, Toronto Gore, 
Chinguacousy, Caledon and Albion.

Toronto Township contained 64,777 acres of assessed land and was divided 
into a grid system through the Old Survey (1806) and New Survey (1819).  
The Old Survey, undertaken in 1806 under Samuel Street Wilmot, Deputy 
Surveyor, included all lands from the Lake Ontario shoreline to Eglinton 
Avenue, from Winston Churchill Boulevard to Etobicoke Creek, excluding 
one mile on each side of the Credit River for exclusive use of the Aboriginal 
population.   

The Mississauga Nation first  colonized the area adjacent to Lake Ontario 
in the early eighteenth century.  By the late-eighteenth century to early 
nineteenth century, the Mississaugas had  been engaged with the British in 
a series of  treaty negotiations.  The First Purchase, Treaty 13A, dated 
August 2, 1805, marked the date of European settlement in this area.  The 
Mississauga Nation sold  the British Government the tract from the 
Etobicoke Creek to Burlington Bay, 26  miles of shoreline and  five miles 
inland, an estimated area of 84,000 acres.

The lands of the Old Survey were charted into 200-acre lots that were 
designated grants for the incoming  settlers.  Many of the early settlers were 
United Empire Loyalists, soldiers and the descendants of Loyalists who 
were eligible to petition the Government to receive land patents and grants.  
By the outbreak of the War of 1812 most lots had been granted, although 
the Crown and Clergy each retained one lot in seven. When first settled, 
the area was uncleared and heavily forested.  

Dundas Street was the dividing line, with two concessions North of Dundas 
Street (NDS) and four concessions South of Dundas Street (SDS).  Lots were 
numbered from east to west, with Lot 1 beginning  at the Etobicoke Creek 
and Lot 35 ending at the border of the Toronto Township and the 
neighbourhing  Township of Trafalgar. The Town Line would later be 
renamed Winston Churchill Boulevard (also known as the Sixth Line West).  

The first recorded settler in Toronto Township, Col. Thomas Ingersoll, came 
to the area in 1806.  

Clarkson Village and area

Within the Township of Toronto, several villages of varying sizes developed 
by the end of the nineteenth century, including Streetsville, Meadowvale, 
Churchville, and Malton, and a number of crossroad communities and 
settlements also began to grow.  The first of these settlements to emerge was 
known as Merigold’s Point, which evolved into the historic village of 
Clarkson.

Arriving in 1808, Warren Clarkson (from Albany, New York) began buying 
land in the area.  He built the community’s first store and a stagecoach trail 
– eventually the town council named this trail Clarkson Road.  A post office 
was opened in 1875 in the family store and William Clarkson, Warren’s 
son, became the postmaster of this modest settlement.

In 1853 the Great Western Railway purchased nearly six acres of Warren 
Clarkson’s property for the right-of-way for the railway tracks and a station.  
The station was built on the north side of the tracks and called “Clarkson’s.”  
In 1855 the first train travelled through Clarkson connecting  Hamilton to 
Toronto.

The hamlet of Clarkson located at Concession 2, Lots 28  and 29 served the 
surrounding  farming community including  the original farms once located 
on the subject properties.
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Clarkson

S u b j e c t 
Properties

Toronto Township, Old Survey (1806) and New Survey (1819)

The lands of the Old Survey were charted into 200-acre lots.  The 
subject properties at 701 and  805 Winston Churchill Boulevard 
constitute a portion of Lot 35, Concession 3 South of  Dundas Street 
(SDS).  Dundas Street  was laid out under John Graves Simcoe as a 
military road  from Toronto to Hamilton and beyond  and became one of 
the province’s leading  roads.  It was graveled  by 1836  to accommodate 
the increase in travel.

The hamlet of Clarkson located at Concession 2, Lots 28 and 29 served 
the surrounding  farming  community including  the original farms once 
located on Lot 35, Concession 3 SDS.

Dundas Street
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Peel County Atlas, Toronto Township, 1877

Lot  35, Concession 3 South of Dundas Street  (SDS) was on the far 
western boundary of Toronto Township.

In 1854-55 the Great Western Railway was completed  through Port 
Credit and  Clarkson, connecting  the cities of  Toronto and Hamilton.  
Traversing  the Township, the rail line was laid just north of the boundary 
between Concession 2 SDS and Concession 3 SDS.  

The proximity of the railway line helped  to spur economic development 
in the Clarkson area - initially serving  agricultural industries. The railway 
allowed farmers and  local industries to send their produce and goods to 
Toronto and  beyond.  The GWR was taken over by the Grand Trunk in 
1882 and then by the Canadian National Railway.  In the twentieth 
century, spur lines, extending  south through Concession 3  SDS, further 
encouraged industrial enterprises.

S u b j e c t 
Properties
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Concession 3 SDS, Lot 35

The subject property constitutes a portion of Lot 35, Concession 3 South of 
Dundas Street (SDS).  Ownership of the subject property can be traced 
back to the crown patents.

The Crown originally granted the entire 200 acres of Lot 35, Concession 3 
SDS to Henry Gable.  From that time forward, the lands of Lot 35 were 
almost exclusively used for farming – a use that only began to change after 
the mid-twentieth century.  Indeed most of the lands near the village of 
Clarkson were farms and orchards, farmed by the early families whose 
property ownership was passed down throughout many generations.  

Farming played an important role in the development of this area.  Among 
many other crops, Clarkson became known as the “Strawberry Capital of 
Ontario.”  Commercial fruit farming expanded in the area throughout the 
nineteenth and into the early twentieth century.  Even when industry began 
to move into the area, the commercial enterprise of market gardens 
(primarily along Southdown Road) continued to mark a connection to the 
farming past.

In 1856, Captain Edward Sutherland moved to Clarkson, purchasing 
“Bush’s Inn,” a former inn and coach house that was the halfway point 
between Hamilton and  Toronto.   Sutherland  introduced both strawberry 
and raspberry cultivation to the area.  

The Oughtred family came to settle in the small hamlet of  Hammondville 
(later known as Sheridan) in 1831.  The Oughtred  family owned over 400 
acres of farmland and  became prominent  in the Township.  They had one 
of Ontario’s successful strawberry farms.

Crown Patent of Concession 3 SDS, Lot 35

Henry Gable (1765-1825) arrived in Upper Canada in 1798, establishing 
himself as a notable land owner.  

In addition to the 200 acres in Concession 3, 30 acres south of Lakeshore 
Road (Concession 4 or the Broken Front)  was also part of the Gable 
landholdings.  Henry Gable was also granted Concession 3, Lot 34.

In order to attain the Crown Patent, or title, and property, settlers had to 
complete settlement duties, usually within three to five years of initial 
settlement.  Settlement duties included the clearing of a portion of the 
assigned lot (generally 5 acres to start), fencing the cleared portion of land, 
having  a crop under cultivation, clearing any road allowance abutting  the 
property, having a dwelling usually of frame or log construction erected to 
a minimum of 18  by 24 feet, and paying surveying and registration fees for 
the property.

By 1807, Henry Gable made an oath before William Allen, Esquire, 
Collector of Customs and Home District treasurer, that he had cleared 
enough land out of the oak and maple forest to build a cabin and roadway.  
Subsequently, he received a patent from the Crown on December 19, 1807 
and began to farm the land.

Henry Gable and his wife, Elizabeth (1765-1834) had seven children – 
John (b.1787); Henry Jr. (b.1789); Jacob (b.1796); Samuel (b.1797); 
Magdalen (b.1798); Elizabeth (b.1800) and Catherine (b.1802).

The 200-acre lands of Lot 35 began to be divided in 1817 when Gable 
began to convey portions of the farm to his heirs.
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Site History – 701-805 Winston Churchill Boulevard, part of the North 
Half of Lot 35, Concession 3 SDS

In 1817 the subject properties now known as 701-805 Winston Churchill 
Boulevard constituted a portion of the lands conveyed by Henry Gable Sr. 
to his second-oldest son Henry Gable Jr. (1789-1866).  Henry Gable Sr. 
transferred the entire north half of Lot 35, Concession 3 (100 acres) to 
Henry Gable Jr. who continued to farm the land.

Henry Gable Jr. and his wife Eve had six children including  a daughter 
Lucinda Gable (1812-1883).  Lucinda Gable married David Hammond Jr. 
(1817-1885) in 1838  and by the mid-nineteenth century Lucinda’s father, 
Henry Gable Jr., gave them some of the farm land and eventually, upon the 
death of Henry Gable Jr. in 1866, the entire 100-acre estate was 
bequeathed to David Hammond Jr. Besides being a farmer and fruit grower, 
David was active in the community – chairman of the school, trustee of the 
Carman Church, and a Justice of the Peace.

Many generations of the Hammond family were prominent landholders in 
the Township.  The hamlet later known as Sheridan at Lot 35 and the 
concession line between Concession 1 SDS and 2 SDS (currently now at 
the intersection of Winston Churchill Boulevard and the Queen Elizabeth 
Way), was originally called Hammondsville.

David Jr.’s father,  David  Hammond  Sr. had  originally been granted the 
south half of Concession 1 SDS, Lot 35 in 1816.

David Jr.’s brother, William Ranson Hammond, owned Concession 2 SDS, 
Lot 35 – at the small hamlet of Hammondsville (later Sheridan).

In the mid-1850s, the village of  about 200 people, requested a post office 
– the name of the hamlet changed to Sheridan since Hammondsville was 
too similar to Hammondville in Perth County, Ontario.  Stephen Oughtred, 
the local blacksmith, suggested  re-naming  the community after the Irish-
born British playwright Richard Brinsley Sheridan.  
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The 1877 County Map shows the 100-acre 
property comprised of  the north half of Lot 
35, Concession 3  SDS in the possession of 
David Hammond.  The original Gable/
Hammond  House is represented  on the map, 
located  north of the properties now known as 
701 and 805 Winston Churchill Boulevard.  

The south half  of Lot  35, Concession 3 SDS 
was sold to Andrew Robertson in 1851.  The 
Robertson property also included the Broken 
Front/Concession 4 SDS, down to the water’s 
edge.
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David Hammond Jr. and his wife, Lucinda (Gable) Hammond, had two 
children – Austin Hammond (1843-1912) and Alvin Hammond 
(1849-1904). 

In 1885, upon the death of David Hammond Jr., Alvin Hammond 
(1849-1904) was willed his father’s 100-acre property.

In 1899, just prior to his death, Alvin Hammond and his wife Catherine 
sold off 6 acres of their land to a farmer, William H. Leaver.  The Land 
Registry records do not map the exact location of Leaver’s 6 acres, but they 
were likely contained within the current parcel of 701 Winston Churchill 
Boulevard – the property was still owned by a Leaver family member in the 
second half of the twentieth century.  Nevertheless, by the turn of the 
twentieth century, the bulk of the farmlands that comprised the north half 
of Lot 35, Concession 3 SDS (94 acres) remained in the Hammond family 
and continued to be farmed.

Upon the death of Alvin Hammond in 1904, the 94 acres were willed to 
his wife Catherine Hammond (d.1924) and their son Melvin Ormond 
Hammond (b.1876).  Soon thereafter, in 1905, Catherine Hammond sold 
all of the property (all except for the 6 acres previously sold to William H. 
Leaver) to William George Pratt for $6500.00.  This sale to someone 
outside of the Hammond/Gable lineage was likely due to the fact that Alvin 
and Catherine Hammond had only one son, Melvin Ormond Hammond, 
and he chose a life of journalism and photography instead of continuing 
with the family farm.  He had a long distinguished career with the Toronto 
Globe newspaper.

William George Pratt made a good profit, when, less than ten years later, in 
1912, he sold the 94-acre property (including the lands of the subject 
properties now known as 701-805 Winston Churchill Boulevard) for 
$11,000.  The next owner of the property was William Henry Speck (d.
1966??).
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This 1919 Map shows the 100-acre property comprised of the north half of Lot 35, 
Concession 3  SDS in the possession of W. Speck.  The subject properties, now 
known as  701 and  805 Winston Churchill Boulevard, constitute the lands on the 
southern half of Speck’s property.  

The Speck family was well known in the Clarkson area.  William Henry Speck 
(1876-1952)  (the eldest son of George Robert Speck) owned a farm property in Lot 
1, Concession 2 SDS of Trafalgar Township, just west of the border of Toronto 
Township and south of the hamlet of Sheridan. William Henry Speck’s brother, 
Charles  George Speck (1885-1938) had  a 100-acre farm at Lots 31 and 32, 
Concession 2 SDS.  His son, Robert William Speck (1915-1972) inherited that farm 
in 1938.  During  the 1940s Robert became actively involved  in local politics and 
he promoted the idea of amalgamating  the villages of Toronto Township to obtain 
Town status.  The status was granted  in 1968  and Robert was acclaimed  first Mayor 
of the Town of Mississauga.
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The physical context of the subject lands began to change just prior to the 
mid-twentieth century.  While detailed ownership records for the period are 
difficult to ascertain, many of the original Lots within Concession 3 SDS 
began to be sub-divided and the land use on some of the lots, for the first 
time since European settlement, moved away from farming.  The strawberry 
fields, orchards and farmlands gave way to industry.  At first the industries 
were related to agriculture.

The transition from rural farming to an industrial area began in the early 
1900s when George Gooderham and his son introduced the idea of mass 
production to this area, including mass production for agricultural uses. In 
1893 George Gooderham purchased 360 acres of lands including Lots 31 
and 32, Concession 3 and 4 SDS.  Capitalizing  on the nearly railway line, 
the abundance of crops from the Gooderham farms and apple orchards 
were shipped in enormous quantities from the Clarkson Station. Grain 
grown on the farm was harvested and sent to the Gooderham and Worts 
Distillery in Toronto turning  the Toronto Township Lots into a great 
investment.

Several early-twentieth century commercial enterprises marked the 
prominence of market gardens and greenhouses to the area (primarily 
along Southdown Road).

Clargreen Gardens started in 1918 on four acres of Lot 31, Concession 3 
SDS – it was first called the Clarkson Greenhouse.  In 1957 a flower shop 
was opened, in 1969 a garden centre and in 1973  the wholesale operation 
became a retail business.

Sheridan Nurseries opened  a 10-acre site on Southdown Road  (Lot 31, 
Concession 3 SDS, in 1920.  They started the nurseries in 1913  on 100 
acres purchased from Daniel Greeniaus in the village of Sheridan, the area 
at  Winston Church Boulevard and the QEW.  The nursery got its name 
from the community.

Dennis Herridge purchased  seven acres of Lot 31,  Concession 3 SDS in 
1919 and his son Lloyd began a fruit market on the property in 1950.
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Above:  Railway station at Clarkson

Below:  Merigold Orchard
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In 1980, Donald E. Leaver, the owner of the property at 701 Winston 
Churchill Boulevard opened a golf driving range on the property, which 
was zoned residential at the time.  The property at 701 Winston Churchill 
Boulevard left private ownership in the late-1980s, being purchased by 
Trans Rampart Industries Limited, but continued in its temporary use as a 
golf driving range.  

It was in the 1980 that the owner of the property at 805 Winston Churchill 
Boulevard applied for rezoning of the former residential farmland into 
industrial uses.  By the first decade of the twenty-first century, Sithe Global 
Power Company owned both of the subject properties now known as 701 
and 805 Winston Churchill Boulevard.   

Sithe Global was one of four firms to register bids with the Ontario Power 
Authority to build a new natural gas-fired power plant in the southwestern 
GTA (Mississauga or Oakville). The property at 759/805 Winston Churchill 
Boulevard (then zoned E3-2, Employment) was proposed as the location for 
the power generating  facility and 701 Winston Churchill Boulevard (then 
zoned D, Development) was proposed to be used as parking, equipment 
and associated construction materials storage related to the construction of 
the natural gas fueled electric power generating facility.

The properties are currently owned by Lifetime Winston Churchill Inc.

The Southdown Industrial area has come to define the subject property’s 
context.   In recent times, population growth, provincial policies on 
intensification, and the recent Clarkson Airshed Study have all contributed 
to a move to rezone the occupied properties in the area from industrial to 
business/employment. 
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Aerial  View 1955 - The boundaries of the subject properties are superimposed  on 
the aerial view.  Both properties were still be cultivated  at this date, even with the 
industrial developments that had occurred to the east.
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Aerial  View 1980 - The boundaries of the subject properties are superimposed  on 
the aerial  view.  It  is evident that neither property was cultivated  as farmland at this 
date.
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Aerial  View 2005 - The evolution of the properties  for uses other than agriculture 
are apparent and all evidence of the former crop plantings are lost.
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Heritage Resources

There are currently no heritage resources located on the subject properties.  
Former resources are described below as part of the detailed site history.

The Gable/Hammond House
While in the possession of the Gable family, the 100-acre farm (constituting 
the north half of Lot 35, Concession 3 SDS) included a one-and-one-half 
storey frame home.   This 1820s building was formerly located on lands 
north of the railway spur line (north of the current boundaries of 805 
Winston Churchill Boulevard).  During the evolution of the lands into a 
more industrial use (during  its ownership by William Henry Speck), the 
house was moved from the site.  It was ultimately demolished in 1970. 

701 Winston Churchill Boulevard 
(Roll Number: 21-05-020-025-03300-0000)

The two-storey, wood frame farmhouse was constructed c1910.  While 
listed on the City of Mississauga’s Heritage Register, the building  was 
demolished in the 1980s.  Donald E. Leaver, the owner of the residential 
zoned property, set up a golf driving  range on his property in the 1980s.  
The property at 701 Winston Churchill Boulevard left private ownership in 
the late-1980s, being purchased by Trans Rampart Industries Limited, but 
continued in its temporary use as a golf driving range.  The farmhouse was 
demolished during these years.

805 Winston Churchill Boulevard 
(Roll Number: 21-05-020-025-03400-0000)

The property was formerly known at 759-797 Winston Churchill 
Boulevard.  A one-storey, wood frame bungalow was constructed in the 
first half of the twentieth century.  A fire in 1980 likely led to the 
demolition of the building in the late 1980s.  As early as the 1980s, the 
owner of the property at 805 Winston Churchill Boulevard applied for 
rezoning of the former residential farmland into industrial uses.
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The Gable/Hammond  House.  The c1820 Loyalist style one-and-one-half storey 
frame building  with centre hall plan, symmetrical façade and a side gable roof was 
built by the Gable’s and subsequently occupied  by Lucinda (Gable) and David 
Hammond.   When the Hammond  family finally sold the land, the historic house 
was moved  off of Lot 35,  Concession 3 SDS across the Town Line to Trafalgar 
Township, Halton County. The building  was moved  a second time a few hundred 
feet  north and in 1930 Sheridan Nurseries bought the old  Hammond house.  
During  WWII, the building  was used  as a bunk house for Japanese families  working 
at  the nursery.   In 1969, the house was offered  up  for sale in order to clear its site, 
but with no buyers, the building was torn down in 1970.

701 Winston Churchill Boulevard 

805 (759) Winston Churchill Boulevard 
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3. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

The proposal consists of a development which will be in accordance with 
the zoning requirements for an E3 zone, which is for Employment use, 
specifically industrial. 

The design consists of the following:

• 1 parcel of land dedicated for a light industrial facility of maximum 2 
storeys in building height, facing Winston Church Boulevard 

• 20 parcels of land dedicated for industrial usage of maximum 2 storeys in 
building height.

• A new Road A acting as a route to access the 17 parcels of land above 

• An extension to Orr Road, which will connect with Winston Churchill 
Boulevard

• An area dedicated for storm water management (SWM)
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4. IMPACT ON HERITAGE RESOURCES

4.1 Description of the Heritage Resource

As described above, there are no heritage resources located on the subject 
properties.  While there are no heritage resources on the subject properties, 
the property at 701 Winston Churchill Boulevard is adjacent to a property 
designated as a heritage resource.  The very northern boundary of the 
property known as 381 Winston Churchill Boulevard buts with a portion of 
the southern boundary of the property at 701 Winston Churchill Boulevard.

4.2 Impacts on the Heritage Resources

The purpose of this Heritage Impact Statement is to assess the impact, if 
any, of the proposed development at 701-805 Winston Churchill Boulevard 
on the identified heritage resource - in this case, the heritage resource that 
has been identified is the adjacent Robertson Gold Medal Farm to the 
south.

As per the designation By-Law (547-2001) the context of the property at 
381 Winston Churchill Boulevard is important:

In that it illustrates a fine example of the disappearing rural 
landscape within an urban and industrial development.  The 
heritage features remain on a large plot of land that has protected 
the conservation of the main house, outbuildings and barn, as well 
as other farm-related features, such as the large setback from the 
road, tree-lined drive, and tended fields.  The farm complex 
provides relief from the encroaching industrial and residential lands 
that surround it.  The relationship of the house to the barn, stone 
outbuildings and other farm structures is a model example of the 
nineteenth century farm.

The Robertson Farm is also listed on the City of Mississauga’s Cultural 
Landscape Inventory (L-AG-7), recognized for its historical and 
archaeological interest.  Cultural landscapes and features include historic 
settlements; agricultural, industrial, urban, residential, civic and natural 
areas; parks; scenic views; scenic roadways; bridges; and wall formations.  

701-805 Winston Churchill Boulevard - Heritage Impact Statement 5 February 2016
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The Robertson Farm is classified under the Agricultural Landscape Type 
(Inventory entry included as Appendix II).  The heritage values of the 
Robertson Farm, identified in the Cultural Landscape Inventory are:

• Its historical association - being that it illustrates important phase 
in Mississauga’s social or physical development (the history of 
farming and the  Robertson family)

• Its built environment - being the consistent scale of built features; 
the unique buildings and the designated structures (including the 
house, barn and outbuildings)

In a cultural landscape, the setting often corresponds to the visible 
boundaries (whether natural or human-made) that encompass the site.  In 
the case of 381 Winston Churchill Boulevard, the boundaries are defined 
by the irregular property boundaries - boundaries that have been altered 
from the original property with the severing of several lots along Winston 
Churchill Boulevard and several lots along  Lakeshore Road West.  
However, when dealing with cultural heritage landscapes, the setting often 
goes beyond the boundaries - including views to and from the identified 
landscape.  Therefore, interventions/developments within the broader 
setting can affect the heritage value.

Generally, the values of a cultural heritage landscape can lie in evidence of 
land use; evidence of traditional practices; land patterns; spatial 
organization; visual relationships; circulation; ecological features; 
vegetation; land-forms; water features; and built features.

In the case of 381 Winston Churchill Boulevard, evidence of Land Use has 
been identified as a character-defining element - specifically the features 
that express or support a past and/or continuing land use - in this case a 
typical nineteenth century farmstead.  Land use refers to the human use of 
the natural environment and includes activities that significantly modify 
aspects of the natural environment into a built environment, such as fields 
and pastures.  Land patterns are also part of the character-defining  elements 
of an historic farmstead.  Land pattern refers to the overall arrangement and 
interrelationship of the larger-scale aspects of a cultural landscape, whether 
natural or human-made.

According to the Standards and Guidelines for the Conservation of Historic 
Places in Canada one should not allow features of the land use and land 
patterns to be altered or lost by incompatible development - this would 
include development adjacent to the heritage resource.

According to the Standards and Guidelines, undertaking interventions that 
will have an impact on the evidence of past land uses, without first 
understanding and documenting  the values that contribute to their meaning 
is not recommended.  Thus historic documentation, aerial photography and 
maps have been used in this current HIA report/assessment as a means of 
understanding and documenting the land patterns and use, and their 
change over time.  

The research concludes that the once rural landscape of early Mississauga 
(specifically the lands adjacent to the hamlet of Clarkson) have evolved 
over time to become a landscape of industrial use - indeed the area has 
been re-defined as the “Southdown Industrial area.”

The proposed development will conform with the evolution of the area into 
a primarily industrial use.  According to the Standards and Guidelines land 
use can evolve over time.  When a required change in land use demands 
changes to the physical form of the landscape, it is important to carefully 
assess the viability of the proposed changes to avoid consecutive land use 
changes that might gradually erode the heritage value of the historic place.  
In this instance, the subject properties at 701-805 Winston Churchill 
Boulevard lost their original land use (farming) earlier in the twentieth-
century and therefore the impact precedes this current development.  
Neither the original farm use, nor the subsequent industrial use is reflected 
by any features contained within the subject properties.
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5. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The research concludes that the once rural landscape of early Mississauga 
(specifically the lands adjacent to the hamlet of Clarkson) have evolved 
over time to become a landscape of industrial use - indeed the area has 
been re-defined as the “Southdown Industrial area,” and the Reasons for 
Designation for 381 Winston Churchill Boulevard makes reference to the 
importance of the  farm complex to the City of Mississauga as it provides 
relief from the encroaching industrial and residential lands that surround it.

The proposed development will conform with the evolution of the area into 
a primarily industrial use and will not impact the heritage resource located 
adjacent to the subject properties. 
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7. CLOSURE

The information and data contained herein represents GBCA’s best 
professional judgment in light of the knowledge and information available 
to GBCA at the time of preparation. GBCA denies any liability whatsoever 
to other parties who may obtain access to this report for any injury, loss or 
damage suffered by such parties arising from their use of, or reliance upon, 
this report or any of its contents without the express written consent of the 
GBCA and the client.
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Date: 2016/05/20 

To: Chair and Members of Heritage Advisory Committee 
 

From: P. Wubbenhorst, Senior Heritage Coordinator 

Meeting Date: 2016/06/14 

Subject: Facility Naming and Dedications Policy (Information Item) 

 
For your information, please find attached the draft revised Facility Naming and Dedications 
Policy. The policy includes the following provisions for naming City property: 
 

 Name selection criteria will consider property’s heritage 

 Consultation with Heritage Planning staff 

 Consultation with the City’s Heritage Advisory Committee when property is listed or 
designated under the Ontario Heritage Act 

 That sponsorship naming acknowledge the property’s heritage 
 
 
 

Prepared by:   P. Wubbenhorst, Senior Heritage Coordinator 
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TAB: PROPERTY AND FACILITIES 

SECTION: FACILITY PLANNING 

SUBJECT: FACILITY NAMING AND DEDICATIONS 

 

POLICY STATEMENT City Facilities are named or dedicated by Council, based on 

specific criteria and in consideration of any public comment. 

 

PURPOSE This policy establishes the process and criteria for Facility 

Naming, Renaming or Dedication. 

 

SCOPE This policy applies to all City Facilities, as defined for the 

purposes of this policy.  

 

For information on ceremonies and the installation of plaques 

related to a Facility Naming, Renaming or Dedication, refer to 

Corporate Policy and Procedure – City Plaques.  

 

DEFINITIONS For the purposes of this policy: 

City “City” means the Corporation of the City of Mississauga. 
 

Dedication 

 

“Dedication” of a Facility means an honour reserved for those 

individuals whose actions or achievements meet the policy 

criteria.  Dedicated Facilities are not named in honour of an 

individual. 

 

Facility 

 

“Facility” means all City property and facilities that are owned, 

leased or occupied/operated by the City, including 

 any public buildings or building portion (e.g. rooms/indoor 

venues, indoor recreation fields) 

 parkland and open space, including 

 multi-use trails 

 outdoor recreation fields 
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 gardens 

 other significant parks features, and 

 structures within a park (e.g. bridges and pavilions) 

 

Where Facility boundaries are not easily identified, such as at a 

garden or overlook within a property, applicable City staff will 

determine the most appropriate boundary to encompass the name. 

 

Naming “Naming” means the process for assigning an official name to a 

new Facility, in accordance with the criteria in this policy.  

 

Renaming “Renaming” means changing the name of an existing Facility, in 

accordance with the criteria in this policy. 

 

SUBMITTING REQUESTS TO THE CITY 

 Proposals from the public for Naming, Renaming or Dedication 

of a Facility should be forwarded to the City’s Citizen Contact 
Centre at 311.   

 

Members of Council may contact City staff directly. 

 

ACCOUNTABILITY 

Commissioners Commissioners are responsible for preparing corporate reports to 

Council outlining the recommended name for their respective 

Facilities.  All reports are signed and presented to Council by the 

Commissioner, Community Services, in accordance with this 

policy. 

 

Departmental Directors All departmental directors are responsible for 

 ensuring all applicable managers/supervisors are aware of this 

policy and of any subsequent revisions, and 

 ensuring compliance with this policy  

 

Managers/Supervisors Managers/supervisors of staff who are responsible for the facility 
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naming/dedication process, including business planning, are 

accountable for   

 ensuring staff in their respective work units are aware of this 

policy and any subsequent revisions 

 ensuring applicable staff are trained on this policy and any 

subsequent revisions, with respect to their specific job 

function, and  

 ensuring staff comply with this policy 

 

Division/Department 

Responsibilities 

Staff in the division/department responsible for the Facility being 

named or dedicated are accountable for  

 confirming that Facility Naming/Renaming or Dedication is 

an appropriate tribute if honouring an individual 

 researching proposed name  

 obtaining written approval and consent of the named party or 

their representative if naming a Facility after an individual, 

event or organization 

 consulting with other divisions (e.g. Park Planning - Parks and 

Forestry Division, Heritage Planning - Culture Division, 

Cycling Office – Recreation Division) as required 

 determining the preferred name with the applicable ward 

councillor 

 advising the applicable director and the Commissioner of 

Community Services of the name to be recommended, and  

 drafting a corporate report recommending the Facility name, 

including a financial impact statement and location map, if 

applicable, to be signed by the Commissioner, Community 

Services. 

 

NAMING A NEW FACILITY 

Proposed Names Anyone may propose a name for a Facility.   

 

If the proposed name is in honour of an individual, the request 

must be accompanied by a written biography, including a 
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description of the individual’s contribution to Mississauga or the 

Facility and an explanation of why the honour should be given.   

 

Heritage Properties Heritage properties will be named in accordance with this policy 

and the following additional requirements  

 if the property is listed or designated as a heritage property, 

Culture staff will consult with the Heritage Advisory 

Committee as required to confirm the preferred name from a 

heritage perspective (e.g. original owner or builder; prominent 

owner; original property name) 

 when a property is designated under the Ontario Heritage Act, 

any sponsorship naming opportunity will acknowledge the 

heritage of the property. 

 

Selection Criteria 

 

 

 

 

 

All suggested names will be considered, unless the name 

 duplicates another existing name  

 will cause confusion due to similarity to another existing 

name  

 is meaningful only to a limited number of people and/or 

 detracts from the image of the City in light of generally 

prevailing community standards 

 

Preference is given to names which 

 have a direct relationship with the Facility - i.e. reflect the 

geographical location of the Facility  

 recognize the historical significance of the area - i.e. reflect 

the history of the area  

 honour the original inhabitants of the Facility by using the 

family name or the name used by the original inhabitants to 

describe the Facility  

 reflect unique characteristics of the site, such as ecological or 

scenic qualities  

 are in keeping with a specific theme  

 recognize the donation or sponsorship contribution of an 
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individual or organization to the particular Facility or 

 honour, a minimum of one year posthumously, an individual 

who has, for example, made significant positive contributions 

to their local community, the City of Mississauga, the 

Province of Ontario or Canada. 

Note:   Any member of Council may recommend Naming of a 

Facility in honour of a living individual.  Based on staff’s 

recommendation, Council may waive the requirement that 

recognition be posthumous.  However, a Facility may not 

be named in honour of an elected official unless the 

official has retired from public service. 

 

Naming Process 

 

The Commissioner of Community Services will consult with the 

respective ward councillor and, where the property is listed or 

designated under the Ontario Heritage Act, the Heritage Advisory 

Committee.  The Mayor will then be notified of the recommended 

name. 

 

The Commissioner of Community Services recommends one 

name to the General Committee (the “Committee”).  The 

Committee’s decision is deferred for 30 days to allow time for 

public comment. 

 

The Community Services Department notifies all residents and 

ratepayer associations within a 400-foot radius of the Facility of 

the proposed name.  The notice includes the date and time of the 

meeting at which the Committee will consider the name and 

advises that interested parties can arrange with Legislative 

Services, Corporate Services Department, to address the 

Committee.   

 

At the meeting scheduled to ratify the name, the Commissioner, 

Community Services presents a corporate report to the Committee 

outlining the recommended name and a summary of any public 
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comment.  The Committee considers both the staff 

recommendation and the public comment and may accept the 

recommended name, propose an alternate or defer a decision until 

further public comment has been solicited through appropriate 

media or a public meeting. 

 

If an alternate name is proposed, the process is repeated, 

beginning with notification to residents and ratepayer 

associations. 

 

Once a name has been approved, the Community Services staff 

person responsible for the Naming process forwards the name to 

the Land Information Services Section of the Transportation and 

Works Department for inclusion in the City’s database of place 

names. 

 

RENAMING A FACILITY Generally, changing the name of an existing Facility will not be 

considered.  However, if it is deemed appropriate, a name will be 

selected using the same criteria and process used for Naming.   

 

DEDICATION Dedication of a Facility is an honour reserved for those 

individuals whose actions or achievements meet the policy 

criteria.   

 

A written biography of the individual, including a description of 

the individual’s contribution to Mississauga or the Facility, and 

an explanation of why the honour should be given, will be 

required.   

 

The selection and approval process is the same as that for 

Naming. 

 

Note:   In accordance with the Cycling Way Finding Program, 

where recognition of an individual is requested for a multi-
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use cycling route or trail, Dedication only, and not 

Naming, will be considered.  This will ensure that 

comprehensive routes and trails are easily identifiable. 

 

Note: Where a Facility Dedication is deemed inappropriate, the 

request may be referred to Communications, Corporate 

Services Department for consideration of recognition under 

the City’s Civic Recognition Program policy. 

 

REFERENCE: 

 

GC-0394-2006 – 2006 06 21 

LAST REVIEW DATE: June, 2006 

 

CONTACT: For more information on requests for naming/dedication, contact 

311. 

For more information on the naming/dedication process, contact 

Park Planning, Parks and Forestry Division, Community Services 

Department. 
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Note: All 1950s Miles Lane photographs, Peter Orazem (my grandfather) 
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The City’s Urban Forestry “Significant Trees” website states: 

Significant Tree Programs have been developed over the last several years by 
many municipalities and counties throughout North America in response to the 
desire to recognize old/large and culturally significant trees in urban areas. The 
desire to preserve trees that have a history or a story to them has in many cases 
been the driving force of many municipalities...  

Mississauga's Significant Tree Program 
 
The City of Mississauga has defined Significant Trees as a tree that is 
recognized because of its size, form, rarity of species, age, its association with a 
historical figure or event, and/or a tree that is distinctive in the community… 

Anyone can nominate a tree for recognition, provided it is on City property 

Great! 

I nominate five (5) Significant Trees. They’re the last survivors of a small apple orchard 
that lined the north side of “Miles Lane” Concession 1, Lot 14 NDS in what is now 
Central Parkway East and Mississauga Valley. 

These five apple trees are recorded on a 1954 aerial map of Cooksville on the City’s 
eMaps website (white ellipse). 
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1954 Miles Lane apple orchard (white ellipse) with 2015 roads, buildings and parking 
lots filled in. 

 

1954 aerial survey Miles Lane orchard (white ellipse) detail. 
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1954 aerial survey Miles Lane orchard (white ellipse) detail 500 scale. Fuzzy, but you 
can still see individual apple trees. 

 

And five of these apple trees are still alive today. 
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Or if you prefer Google 2015 … 

 

And there really was a Miles Lane just like the 1954 aerial map showed.  

I know because in 1953 we came to Canada and we rented an old farmhouse for $50 a 
month at the very end of Miles Lane just east across Cooksville Creek bridge. 
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This photo of us standing at Miles Lane bridge shows two buildings. A farmhouse and a 
second building (likely a barn) can be seen in the distance.  

Over my left shoulder, middle ground, you can see the apple orchard right where the 
1954 aerial map records it to be --just west of the creek and north-side of Miles Lane. 

 

This 1955 photo is important because it supports the 1954 aerial survey that the apple 
trees were already mature and of good size. This suggests they were planted circa 
1890-1900 --perhaps even earlier. 
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There is no doubt that the City’s “eMaps” 1954 aerial map records apple trees growing 
west of the Cooksville Creek on the northern edge of Miles Lane. Examine each 
successive aerial map right up to 2015 and again, there’s no doubt that five of these 
trees are still alive today. 

There is also no doubt that these apple trees were part of a small orchard recorded in 
my grandfather’s Miles Lane/Cooksville Creek photo. And no doubt that they were 
already mature. 

 

And no doubt those shown growing closest to Miles Lane (in the 1955 photo) were bulldozed to 
make way for Central Parkway. 

 

What is in doubt is how old the five remaining Miles Lane apple trees really are. 
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My grandfather’s photo of the apple tree in front of the house we rented at the end of Miles Lane 
is of some help regarding age. 

 

The 1954 aerial map shows our front yard tree to be the same size as the mature apple trees 
growing at our neighbour’s just west of Cooksville Creek.  

I suggest to you that the larger of the Miles Lane apple trees were planted in the early 1900s. 
That would make the oldest one still alive now almost 120 years old. 

The Historical Atlas of Peel County recorded orchards in Cooksville on both sides of 
Centre Road (Hurontario) by 1877. It’s almost certain that settlers planted apple trees 
as soon as they cleared sufficient acreage. 

I examined the aerial surveys 1954 of the apple trees at the former Pinchin Orchard in 
Streetsville’s Hewick Meadows Park. Pinchin also had mature apple trees presenting 
the same size canopy that the mature Miles Lane apple trees did. 

The 1954 through 2015 aerial maps show that some of Pinchin’s mature apple trees 
died or presented themselves smaller than they were in ‘54. And that’s the same thing 
that happened to the Miles Lane apple trees. A few die-offs. And three large, mature 
apple trees got smaller! 

It took an actual ground visit to Hewick Meadows apple orchard to understand why it is 
so difficult to assign an age to an apple tree. 

Apple trees grow suckers. (Perhaps you’ve heard that when a starfish loses one of its 
legs that leg can grow an entire new starfish. Those echinoderms are famous for their 
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ability to regenerate limbs.) Well, apple trees can grow clones of themselves from 
suckers. 

So it’s possible for an apple tree to have been planted in the early 1800s, mature and 
sprout suckers that also thrive. Decades later the original trunk dies and the suckers are 
now a robust cluster of young trees. 

So how old are they? They might look to be 20-25 years old but they’re clones from a 
di-centurion parent. 

Something like these suckers sprouting directly from the one remaining live limb on a 
Pinchin apple tree that was already mature in 1954. 

 

Given that four of this tree’s five large limbs were dead, it’s then no wonder how an old 
apple tree can appear smaller in a 2015 aerial survey than an aerial 60 years earlier. 

I videotaped close to two dozen Pinchin apple trees that the 1954 aerial survey 
recorded as already mature. Most had dead limbs and were threatened by the smother 
of wild grape and/or Virginia Creeper. 

All were old, all were grand in their own way. But not one of the Pinchin apple trees is 
as imposing or oozed old like Significant Tree nominee, Miles Lane Apple Tree 1. 
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This is Miles Lane Apple Tree 1, “Walterhouse” and I’m nominating him as a Significant 
Tree –and his Significant apple cohorts complete with Significant orchard. 

  

The City of Mississauga 2011 Cooksville Creek Study refers to former farm land left 
fallow as “successional”. 

Successional communities reflect the stage of natural succession from field (i.e., 
cultural meadow) to sparse forest (i.e., cultural woodland). These communities 
are important sources of food and shelter for wildlife. The most dominant type of 
successional community is the cultural meadow, generally reflective of passive 
land uses (i.e.: highway rights-of-way), sites being left fallow after agriculture or 
during the urban development process (as is the case in many 
commercial/industrial/employment zones).  

“The most dominant type of successional community is the cultural meadow” and what 
I’m nominating is one of the rarest: an old Cooksville apple orchard with at least one 
tree dating back to the late 1800s. 
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(I might as well launch my Hail Mary pass right here.)  

I believe Miles Lane Tree 1 is the oldest apple tree on City of Mississauga land. If I’m 
wrong I’d feel honoured to meet an apple tree older. I’m nominating Miles Lane Tree 1 
but also his immediate Cooksville Creek orchard environment as Significant.  

Cooksville hasn’t a single Significant Tree on record, let alone an apple tree. 
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The Case for a Cooksville/Mississauga Significant Orchard. 

 

Can apple trees planted in the 1800s still be alive in 2016? Absolutely. They continually 
sprout “suckers” ground-level around their trunks. They’re doing that even now.  

8.2 - 12



Like Miles Lane Apple Tree 1. 

 

Unquestionably the oldest of the five Miles Lane apple trees is Apple Tree 1. It is multi-
trunked with all trunks dead but one.  

I’ve named Apple Tree 1 “Walterhouse” after William Walterhouse Sr who is recorded in 
Tremaine's 1859 Map of the County of Peel as owning the north half of Con 1 Lot 14 
and Con 1 Lot 13 NDS. 

Heritage Mississauga website states: 

The Walterhouse family was one of the earliest to settle in the Cooksville area. 
The first Walterhouse, William, came from New Jersey (probably Sussex County) 
as a child with his family about 1789. The family settled first in Lincoln County, in 
Thorold, but probably moved to TorontoTownship about 1809. At that time 
William and his family took up Lot 14 Con 1 NDS. In 1829 William purchased the 
north half of Lot 13 Con 1 NDS from John Harris. 
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The Tremaine 1859 map shows no detail about Cooksville farms other than location of a 
house.  
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But in the Historical Atlas of Peel County 1877 many Cooksville properties showed a 
house --and their orchard. 

[The farmhouse, inset, was our first home in Canada. It was already old back in 1953.] 

 

Look at all the Cooksville orchards! (dotted squares/rectangles) 
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Notice too that the Historical Atlas of Peel County 1877 records a road extending east 
from Centre (Hurontario) into Con 1 Lots 15 and 14. It would later be called Miles Lane 
after William Miles. I suggest it’s likely that in 1877 this “lane” was a community-use 
road. 

A quote from Hiking in the GTA 

Given Road in Mississauga is an example of a public road that was created on 
private property and then given over to the community for general use.  Until 
1971 it extended across the former Credit Valley Railway (now Canadian Pacific 
Railway) tracks to serve an orchard of over 700 trees that spread along both 
sides of Cooksville Creek. Central Parkway and Mississauga Valley Boulevard 
were built between 1971 and 1973 through this orchard and the surrounding 
farmland.  A new residential community was created north of the CPR tracks and 
the road was closed just south of them. 

The Historical Atlas of Peel County 1877 does not record this 700-tree orchard north of 
the CPR tracks in Con 1 Lot 14 or that Given Road extended north of the CPR tracks. 

But the 1954 Cooksville eMaps aerial survey certainly does. 

 

The larger apple trees [east part of yellow rectangle] almost certainly were planted by 
the Walterhouse family at the turn of the 20th Century. Perhaps earlier. By 1954, 700 
apple trees in all. 
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By comparison the Miles Lane orchard was tiny –less two dozen trees, perhaps less. 

Here’s what the Walterhouse Con 1 Lot 14 NDS 700-tree Cooksville apple orchard 
looked like in a 1954 aerial survey. 

 

And in 1977. Obliterated for the Cooksville Creek straightening and Mississauga Valley. 

 

Every one of those 700 apple trees bulldozed. 
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I’ve examined the 1954 aerial map of Cooksville (Ward 4) and the only apple trees 
recorded growing in the 1950s that are still around today are the five I’m nominating as 
Significant Trees. 

All five were part of a small orchard that survived only because they grew on what 
would become City of Mississauga property. 

Never mind that they may have been planted by the historically-significant Walterhouse 
family --how is their “We Survived the Big Bulldoze” not significant in itself? 

Here are the City’s five Miles Lane apple trees as they looked in a 1954 aerial survey 
(white ellipse) 

 

For context, present-day road and buildings (ie Metro). 
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Five Cooksville apple trees survived the 1960-70s bulldozers. Their 700 fellows just to 
the south didn’t. That’s significant. 

The City’s website states: 

When nominating a tree please provide as much information as possible about 
the history of the tree or site. Please specify where the tree can be found 
(providing links to maps and pictures is appreciated). 

I’ve already provided the site location, its history, complete with maps and pictures from 
the 1950s. 

So. I nominate Miles Lane Apple Tree 1 “Walterhouse”. 
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Measurement of the only trunk still alive 4.5' from the ground.   58 inches 

 

I nominate Miles Lane Apple Tree 2 “William”. 
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We had a logistical problem measuring his circumference 4’ 5” from the ground. We did 
however take measurements for each of the branches. 

From the smallest (dead) and going counter-clockwise, the trunks measure 27”, 38”, 
42”, 31”, 47” and 39”. 

I nominate Miles Lane Apple Tree 3 “Sarah”. 
“Sarah” presents as the smallest of the five Miles Lane apple trees in the 1954 aerial 
survey.  

 

Even now she’s generating suckers at ground level. Trunk circumferences from 4’ 5” 
from ground is 33” and 24”. 

I nominate Miles Lane Apple Tree 4 “Miles”. 
Miles is named after Miles Washington Cook.  

The City’s website states: 

Miles Washington Cook was born on April 10th, 1838 in Cooksville, a son of 
Jacob Cook and Anna Ogden….Cooksville is named after his father Jacob Cook 
who was a pioneer of the village. He served as the reeve of Toronto Township in 
1882 to 1883. 
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I nominate Miles Lane Apple Tree 5 “Edway”  
Like Apple Tree 4, Tree 5 “Edway” is also smaller than he was in the 50-60s aerial 
surveys. Both trees showed obvious loss of canopy between 1995 and 1999 –possibly a 
much-needed pruning or winter damage. 

Like Apple Trees 1 and 2, Tree 5 is also invaded by predatory vines (Wild Grape and 
Virginia Creeper). Perhaps as recently as last year, the City cut the vines threatening 
Tree 5, so thank you, but “Edway” is not out of the clear. 

A maple tree growing right beside him is overtaking this apple tree in reach and could 
possibly block the necessary light that “Edway” needs to stay alive. 

His one remaining trunk continues to sprout small branches and suckers, so certainly 
this fine old tree hasn’t given up. 
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The City’s Significant Tree Nomination website states: 

Please explain why this tree should be included. 
1. They need the City’s help. And if I’m successful in getting these five trees and 

this artifact-orchard accepted as a significant living Cooksville heritage site, I 
believe the City will protect the five apple trees from the killer vines currently 
threatening to suffocate them. 
 

 
 

2. Given how apple trees continually sprout ground suckers that develop into new 
trunks eventually replacing the old, it’s possible that the Walterhouse family were 
the first to plant that apple orchard. (Walterhouse, William, Sarah and Edway are 
named in tribute to this early historical Cooksville family) 
 

3. In the 1950s, there was a 700-tree apple orchard in the south half of this Con 1, 
Lot 14 property. Gone. I believe that you as Tree-People and Heritage 
Mississauga have a moral obligation to save these five Miles Lane tree and the 
tiny fragment of what’s left of their orchard. 
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4. When I lived in the old farmhouse on Miles Lane I don’t remember that apple 
orchard. As a five-six year old, I was too focused on exploring Cooksville Creek. 
But thanks to my grandfather’s excellent camera, we can confirm that those Miles 
Lane apple trees were already robust and mature back in 1955. 2016 makes 
them Old. 
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5. Those apple trees trace back to another time. Show me a grouping of centurion 
apple trees like this on City property because I’d feel truly privileged to meet 
them. 
 

6. All five all beautiful. 
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7. The City of Mississauga has no apple trees registered as Significant Trees. Yet 
in times past pre-Mississauga busted out in apple blossoms each spring. 
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8. This area of Cooksville Creek plus these apple trees would make a terrific Jane’s 
Walk redemption story about how entire apple orchards were wiped without a 
trace from the pre-Mississauga landscape and now, the City has finally done 
right by these trees. 
 
Mississauga council is fond of saying, “It’s never too late to do the right thing.” 
Granting these five Significant Tree status and protecting their small orchard is 
the right thing to do. 
 

9. In my short time visiting the Miles Lane apple orchard, I’ve documented an 
encouraging variety of songbirds as well as raccoons and squirrels. These five 
trees provide food and shelter for Cooksville Creek wildlife. 
 

10.  Last. The City’s website also has the Significant Tree Nomination Criteria of 
“unique species”.   ….”Unique”. Okay, Name any other cluster of Mississauga 
apple trees with their own Twitter account! 
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SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

 

 

Oldest McIntosh apple tree descendant cut down  

CBC News Posted: Aug 25, 2011 12:50 PM ET 

 “The last-known first-generation graft taken from the original McIntosh apple tree died 
this summer, but not before Ontario horticulturalists took a dozen cuttings in hopes of 
cloning the plant. 

The 150-year-old tree in Dundela, Ontario was cut down on July 25 after it lost its leaves, 
said Sandra Beckstead, the great granddaughter of Samuel Smyth, who grew the tree 
from cuttings taken from the original McIntosh.” 

 
Note: This 150-year old apple tree didn’t die from old age but “not enough water and 
moisture” from a very dry summer. 
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From Heritage Mississauga website  

www.heritagemississauga.com/page/Walterhouse-Family-of-Cooksville 

 
Walterhouse Family of Cooksville  

The Walterhouse Blacksmith’s shop was for many years a landmark in Cooksville. Located at 
what is now the corner of Hurontario and Agnes Streets the shop was operated by Lewis 
Walterhouse and after him by his son, Francis Lewis, known as Frank… 

…The Walterhouse family was one of the earliest to settle in the Cooksville area. The first 
Walterhouse, William, came from New Jersey (probably Sussex County) as a child with his 
family about 1789. The family settled first in Lincoln County, in Thorold, but probably moved to 
Toronto Township about 1809. At that time William and his family took up Lot 14 Conc 1 NDS. 
In 1829 William purchased the north half of Lot 13 Conc 1 NDS from John Harris. On his 
petition for land in 1829 William stated that he was native of New Jersey who had lived in 
Canada for thirty years. Mitchell & Co.’s General Directory for the City of Toronto, and 
Gazetteer for the Counties of York and Peel, for 1866, under Township of Toronto, Ward no. 3, 
shows William Walterhouse,Senr. and John Walterhouse at Conc 1, Lot 13, and George 
Walterhouse and William Walterhouse, Jnr. at Conc 1 Lot 14. 

William married Sarah Van Camp, probably in the United States, and had nine children, all of 
whom, except one, settled in the Cooksville area. Lewis Walterhouse, the son of William’s son, 
Isaac, is recorded in his father’s will, dated 14 April 1873, as a blacksmith. Edway Walterhouse, 
the son of William’s son, John, was the proprietor of the hotel, the Revere House, which stood 
for many years at the north-west corner of Hurontario and Dundas Streets. After the Revere 
House ceased operation as a hotel it became the home of Ward’s Drug Store and other stores. It 
was eventually demolished in the 1960s and the area is now the Cooksville Parkette. 
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CONCESSION 1, LOTS 13 AND 14, WAS WALTERHOUSE LAND, In the 1800s, WILLIAM, 
GEORGE, ASA, LEWIS AND JOHN WALTERHOUSE OWNED WHAT WOULD BECOME 
MISSISSAUGA VALLEY. 
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TOWNSHIP OF TORONTO LAND RECORDS Con 1 Lot 14 NDS. 
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From Heritage Mississauga. 

The Cooksville Fire of 1852: 

In all, 35 houses and businesses were lost, most of them with no insurance. The sawmill was 
saved although the dam was lost. Oddly, according to some reports, one of the buildings to 
survive was the Walter House, located nearby the blacksmith shop. The Walter House would 
later become the Revere House. 
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Update: May 30, 2016 

On a negative note, a distressing number of dead or dying trees stand dark against the 
vibrant green of those living. An entire stretch of barren trees extends north of the Miles 
Lane apple trees east across the Cooksville Creek. 

Two City-planted trees between the Miles Lane apple trees and Central Parkway are 
also dead. Many of the trees lining the west side of Arista Way are either dead or barely 
able to sprout leaves. Many bear injuries from the 2013 ice storm. 

 

The sobering number of dead or barren trees throughout Mississauga Valley reaffirms 
the survival wonder of the Miles Lane apple trees. How many bitter winters and ice 
storms have they experienced? 

And their story gets better. 
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In 2016, four of the five trees are confirmed producing apples. 

 

I won’t as yet call the small green bulge emerging from these fading blossoms (below), 
a tiny apple. But I’m quite optimistic that even old, vulnerable Walterhouse will bear fruit 
this season. 

If so, then Walterhouse –the oldest, will make five. 
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Significant Tree nomination submitted: May 30, 2016 
Ursula Bennett, Miles Lane, Cooksville, Ontario 1953-1956. 
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